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At a Glance 2014–15
INSTITUTION INVOLVEMENT

Scholars in residence...........................................................................................................................1,650 
Attendance during public hours...................................................................................................... 745,702 
Full-time staff members.........................................................................................................................312 
Part-time staff members.......................................................................................................................... 96

EDUCATION PROGRAM AND VOLUNTEERS

Participants in school programs
	 Students.......................................................................................................................................22,375
	 Schools............................................................................................................................................. 348
	 Teachers........................................................................................................................................... 608
Participants in other activities
	 Teacher training................................................................................................................................285 
	 Public garden tours.........................................................................................................................9,712 
	 Special docent tours...........................................................................................................................523 
	 Youth and family programs........................................................................................................... 15,639 
	 Continuing education.................................................................................................................... 2,663
Volunteers
	 Adult.............................................................................................................................................. 1,018 
	 High School....................................................................................................................................... 94

SUPPORT

Society of Fellows
	 Huntington Circle.............................................................................................................................145 
	 President’s Circle................................................................................................................................ 87 
	 Life Fellows........................................................................................................................................ 43 
	 Annual Fellows.................................................................................................................................313
Members..........................................................................................................................................36,746
Corporate Partners................................................................................................................................. 38 
Foundations........................................................................................................................................... 88
Government Entities................................................................................................................................. 2

Editor and writer: Diana W. Thompson. Principal photographers: Martha Benedict, Lisa Blackburn, Jamie Pham, Tim Street-Porter, 
David Wakely, Karen Zimmerman. Designer: Lori Ann Achzet. Printer: Pace Marketing Communications. This report was prepared 
by the Office of Communications and Marketing, 626-405-2269, publicinformation@huntington.org.

On the cover: The Celebration Garden, located at the southern end of the Steven S. Koblik Education and Visitor Center (EVC), features a changing 
display of colorful blooms that surround a stone-lined water runnel. Title page: The outdoor “hedge rooms” of the EVC have the striking backdrop 
of the San Gabriel Mountains. Opposite page: Three dramatic desert blooms: Puya venusta (left), a bromeliad from Chile, flowers in spring in the 
Desert Garden. Two winter-growing plants from South Africa, Oxalis obtusa (middle) and Gladiolus equitans (right) live in the desert collections 
nursery, where they receive winter rains but are kept dry during summer dormancy.
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 	 For the past 52 weeks, The Huntington has 
continued to actively collect and expand its 
American holdings—and gallery space—to 
become one of the largest displays of American 
art west of the Mississippi. My sense, after 
doing much reading about the family, is that 
Mr. Huntington would be happily surprised to 
see our current art curation perfectly mirroring 
his library collections of early American litera-
ture. For the first time, too, we offer some deep 
insights into the history of The Huntington—
the family and the place—in our new Mapel 
Orientation Gallery. And visitors love it.
 	 With all this good news, we also face chal-
lenges—chief among them, the brutal drought 
that has threatened our rare botanical collec-
tions. Our trees have suffered damage, even as 
our botanical team has worked mightily to stem 
the losses. I am constantly impressed by the 
ingenuity and can-do spirit of both our staff and 
volunteers in confronting these problems. They 
have created this most extraordinary place—
and you, our donors, have helped us to sustain 
it. As you read these pages, I hope you will be 
as awestruck as I am at all that we achieved in 
one year—that is, in just 525,600 minutes. 
 	 This annual report documents the breath-
taking accomplishments that come from your 
generous support. Thank you so very much for 
all that you contribute to The Huntington. I 
cannot wait to get started on the 31.5 million 
seconds that will constitute fiscal year 2016 
with all of you!

—Laura Skandera Trombley

Just 365 days ago The Huntington looked quite 
different indeed! With the opening of the Steven 
S. Koblik Education and Visitor Center, we have 
a new and wonderful way of greeting and intro-
ducing our friends, members, and visitors to 
this unique and beautiful place. We’ve added a 
fantastic gift shop that is twice the size of the 
prior one—or infinitely expandable if you shop 
online, which now you can. It is, in my humble 
opinion, the loveliest museum store in the na-
tion (and I speak from years of shopping expe-
rience), with unquestionably the nicest people 
to help you and the best parking in Los Angeles. 
We are also pleased with the offerings at our 
new Coffee Shop and sparkling Café. Adding to 
this mise-en-scène is a cluster of new drought-
tolerant gardens, classrooms, meeting spaces, 
and a gorgeous auditorium with lots of legroom 
and spectacular acoustics.
 	 We have had much to celebrate these past 12 
months, including the enormously successful 
14-year tenure of Steve Koblik. Steve left this 
great institution in a position of remarkable 
strength, even as so many cultural centers are 
concerned for their futures, watching attendance 
numbers—and relevance—plateau or falter. The 
Huntington has enjoyed robust health over the 
past decade: membership continues to grow and 
programming continues to expand accordingly, 
with an exciting and varied array of offerings. 
	 Our foray into postwar American art took a 
dramatic turn this past year with the arrival of 
a loan from the Calder Foundation—the artist’s 
Jerusalem Stabile, painted a cheery “Calder Red” 
and sited boldly, adjacent to the new entrance. 
I see it from my office window each morning 
and watch as members, their children, and 
their grandchildren gaze upon it with delight.

President’s Message
“NOW WE WELCOME THE NEW YEAR. FULL OF THINGS THAT HAVE NEVER BEEN.” 

—Rainer Maria Rilke

Photo by Meeno
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Nothing quite compares with the transforma-
tion that occurred this year with the opening 
of the Steven S. Koblik Education and Visitor 
Center. The $68 million project created a phe-
nomenal new entrance complex, including a 
vastly enlarged and sumptuous store, a bright 
and airy café, and a wood-paneled, acousti-
cally pristine auditorium that lecturers and 
musicians are gushing over—all surrounded by 
The Huntington’s first-ever California garden.
	 Equally impressive are the center’s four new 
modern classrooms, a picnic area for school 
groups, and a dedicated bus drop-off area that 
is safe and welcoming. Capping the project off 
were several new art acquisitions, plus a loan 
of Alexander Calder’s monumental Jerusalem 
Stabile, a striking red modernist sculpture that 
now greets visitors almost as soon as they set foot 
on the property. A new multipurpose room gives 
abundant and flexible space for botanical shows, 
dinners, and other educational and donor events.
	 Perhaps the most exciting part of the new 
complex for Library staff and research scholars 
lives behind the scenes—the 25,000 square 
feet of climate-controlled underground stor-
age. Significant space of this sort cements The 
Huntington’s reputation as a library that care-
fully preserves its current holdings while plan-
ning for future collecting.
	 Earlier in the year, a more focused construc-
tion project created five new rooms in the Lois 
and Robert F. Erburu Gallery of the Virginia 
Steele Scott Galleries of American Art. The 
5,400 square feet of new space, created by 
transforming a storage area into galleries, 
made it possible to display nearly 100 more 
works of 20th-century American art. Acquisi-
tion this year of an additional three works—
two paintings and a sculpture, all by American 
artists (see art acquisitions, p. 6)—testified to 

A detail from Bruce Davidson’s Blackpool, 1965, gelatin silver print, 
12 7/8 × 8 3/4 in., Yale Center for British Art, Gift of Henry S. Hacker, 
Yale BA 1965, B2009.13.2. © Bruce Davidson/Magnum Photos.

Collections
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	 The Robert F. Erburu Exhibition Endowment 
made this exhibition possible. 

The U.S. Constitution and the End of Ameri-
can Slavery | Jan. 24–April 20, 2015 | Library, 
West Hall Just after 3 p.m. on Jan. 31, 1865, 
Schuyler Colfax, the Speaker of the U.S. House 
of Representatives, called for the vote on a joint 
resolution that would amend the Constitution 
to abolish slavery in the United States. The tally 
was announced: 119 ayes to 56 nays, with 8 ab-
staining. After a moment of stunned silence, 
the chamber erupted in wild jubilation. 
	 Commemorating the 150th anniversary of 
the passage of the 13th Amendment, the exhi-
bition chronicled the long, tortuous, and bloody 
road that led to that fateful vote. The exhibi-
tion featured 100 rare items from The Hun-
tington’s collections, including letters by 
George Washington, Thomas Jefferson, and 
Abraham Lincoln. It also contained the writ-
ings of abolitionists, slave masters, runaway 
slaves, and slave speculators, among other items, 
many of which were exhibited for the first time.
	 The Robert F. Erburu Exhibition Endowment 
made this exhibition possible. 

Magna Carta: Law and Legend, 1215–2015 | 
June 13–Oct. 12, 2015 | Library, West Hall
Right before the close of the fiscal year, an exhi-
bition opened celebrating the 800th anniversary 
of the signing of Magna Carta. On June 15, 
1215, along the Thames River at a place called 

Runnymede, rebellious barons compelled King 
John to accept the Magna Carta, a “great char-
ter” of liberties that subjugated the power of 
the monarch to the rule of law.

The Huntington’s intention to continue col-
lecting in this area. 
	 Finally, it is hard to talk about the year 
without mentioning California’s punishing 
drought. The intense heat and lack of water 
have taken a toll on our trees, increasing their 
susceptibility to pests. The Huntington’s first-
ever arborist is working as quickly as he can to 
identify infected trees and remove them. 
	 Meanwhile, The Huntington continues to 
reduce water use. It has been diligently upgrading 
its aging irrigation system, reducing the amount 
of lawn, and taking water-saving measures 
wherever it can. Still, there is no getting around 
the fact that many of the exotic plants in the 
botanical collections hail from areas with abun-
dant water, and they must be preserved, too.

EXHIBITION HIGHLIGHTS

Bruce Davidson/Paul Caponigro: Two Amer-
ican Photographers in Britain and Ireland | Nov. 
8, 2014–March 9, 2015 | MaryLou and George 
Boone Gallery Bruce Davidson is known for 
gritty cityscapes; Paul Caponigro, for evocative 
landscapes. Both are Americans whose creative 
journeys took them through the British Isles. 
This exhibition examined the work of the two 
virtuosic photographers as they captured en-
during landscapes and changing cultural scenes. 
Davidson produced portraits of British men and 
women at work and play, while Caponigro cap-
tured stunning images of the stone circles, dol-
mens, and early churches of Britain and Ireland. 
	 The exhibition, co-organized with the Yale 
Center for British Art, was the first to pair these 
contemporaries. It was made possible with fund-
ing from Kelvin Davis and the Ahmanson Foun-
dation Exhibition and Education Endowment.

Your Country Calls! Posters of the First World 
War | Aug. 2–Nov. 3, 2014 | Library, West Hall 
In commemoration of the 100th anniversary of 
the start of World War I, the exhibition featured 
55 colorful vintage posters, created to influence 
national identity, build unity across interna-
tional borders, and mobilize citizens to action. 
	 The works were drawn entirely from The 
Huntington’s collection of prints and ephem-
era, and included such iconic works as James 
Montgomery Flagg’s image of Uncle Sam, I 
Want You for U.S. Army (1917). The exhibition 
comprised six sections, exploring enlistment, 
fundraising, labor and conservation, relief efforts, 
inspirational figures, and posters before the war.

A rare draft of Magna Carta, from the 13th-century English Laws 
& Statutes, was on display in “Magna Carta: Law and Legend, 
1215–2015.” The Huntington Library, Art Collections, and Bo-
tanical Gardens. Below: James Walker’s The True Defenders of 
the Constitution—an engraving that appeared in the Nov. 11, 
1865, issue of Harper’s Weekly—was on view in “The U.S. Con-
stitution and the End of American Slavery.” The Huntington 
Library, Art Collections, and Botanical Gardens.
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BOTANICAL SHOWS AND EVENTS

The Huntington’s botanical collections were the 
foundation for a robust cultural program, with 
many events based in particular on the Chinese 
and Japanese gardens. 
	 This year’s artist-in-residence, internation-
ally acclaimed violinist Cho-Liang Lin, held a 
series of concerts and met with several school 
groups, introducing modern Chinese music to a 
broad audience. Funding came from the Cheng 
Family Visiting Artist Program.
	 Many other events, including lectures and 
workshops, were offered through The Hunting-
ton’s Center for East Asian Garden Studies. The 
Huntington’s Chinese Garden curator, Duncan 
M. Campbell, made his mark on the program, 
with an emphasis on the history of the traditional 
Chinese garden and the library within the garden.
	 Visitors welcomed the Year of the Ram with 
two special events. A Chinese Cultural Arts 
Celebration featured artisans and performers 
from Guangdong Province. At the Chinese New 
Year Festival, crowds enjoyed lion dancers, 
traditional music, and savory Chinese cuisine. 
East West Bank was the sole corporate sponsor 
of these events. 
	 Support for Asian garden programs came 
from the Justin Vajna Memorial Fund for Edu-
cational Programs in the Chinese Garden and 
the Cheng Family Foundation. 

Botanical shows and events this year included:

• �31st Succulent Plants Symposium
• �Fall Plant Sale
• �Penjing Show (Southern Breeze Penjing Society)
• �Orchid Show and Sale (Southland Orchid 

Show Committee)
• �25th Annual Viewing Stones Show (California 

Aiseki Kai)
• �43rd Annual Camellia Show (Southern Cali-

fornia Camellia Society)
• �Bonsai-A-Thon (Golden State Bonsai Federation)
• �12th Annual Clivia Show (North American 

Clivia Society and the Southern California 
Clivia Club)

• �58th Annual Bonsai Show (California Bonsai 
Society)

and 19th-Century British Art | April 18–Aug. 
10, 2015 | Huntington Art Gallery

• �Velvet Paintings: 18th-Century Pastels from 
The Huntington’s Art Collections | May 16–
Sept. 7, 2015 | Huntington Art Gallery

• �Weird, Wild & Wonderful: The New York 
Botanical Garden Second Triennial Exhibition  
June 12–Aug. 24, 2015 | Brody Botanical Center

	  On display was The Huntington’s rare 
13th-century draft of the Magna Carta. The 
exhibition also included related material from 
The Huntington’s holdings in medieval and 
modern British law, literature, and history. 
Hahn & Hahn made this exhibition possible.

Samuel F. B. Morse’s Gallery of the Louvre and 
the Art of Invention | Jan. 24–May 4, 2015 | 
Virginia Steele Scott Galleries of American Art 
Most people associate Samuel Morse with his 
invention of Morse code. His first vocation, 
however, was as a painter. His masterwork, 
Gallery of the Louvre (on loan from The Terra 
Foundation for American Art), went on view 
as part of a special exhibition. 
	 Created between 1831 and 1833 in Paris and 
New York, this painting reproduced famous 
works by van Dyck, Leonardo, Murillo, Poussin, 
Rembrandt, Rubens, and Titian, among others 
from the collection of the Musée du Louvre in 
Paris, arranged in an imagined installation in 
the Salon Carré. Morse depicted 38 paintings, 
two sculptures, and numerous figures in a single 
composition spanning six by nine feet. 
	 The exhibition also contained Morse-related 
materials from The Huntington’s collections. 
The Terra Foundation for American Art organized 
and supported the exhibition. 
	 The Susan and Stephen Chandler Exhibition 
Endowment provided additional support. 

Other exhibitions this year included:

• �Highlights of American Drawings and Water-
colors from The Huntington’s Art Collections 
July 19, 2014–Jan. 6, 2015 | Virginia Steele 
Scott Galleries of American Art

• �Wrestling with Demons: Fantasy and Horror 
in European Prints and Drawings from The 
Huntington’s Art Collections | Aug. 29–Dec. 
15, 2014 | Huntington Art Gallery

• �Henry Fuseli’s The Three Witches | Oct. 11, 
2014–March 31, 2015 | Huntington Art Gallery

• �Eccentric Visions: Drawings by Henry Fuseli, 
William Blake, and Their Contemporaries | 
Nov. 22, 2014–March 17, 2015 | Huntington 
Art Gallery

• �Working Women: Images of Female Labor in 
the Art of Thomas Rowlandson | Dec. 19, 2014–
April 13, 2015 | Huntington Art Gallery

• �Between Modernism and Tradition: British 
Works on Paper, 1914–1948 | March 28–Sept. 
28, 2015 | Huntington Art Gallery

• �Glory After the Fall: Images of Ruins in 18th- 

Above: A watercolor image of an African Blood Lily, Scadoxus 
puniceus, was one of 47 in a traveling show, “Weird, Wild & 
Wonderful: The New York Botanical Garden Second Triennial 
Exhibition.” © Lisa Pompelli. Left: “Your Country Calls! Posters 
of the First World War” showcased the innovative use of graphic 
art to stir patriotism and service through the war years. Shown 
here: the color lithograph Preserve Co-operation, United States, 
1917, by Carter Housh. The Huntington Library, Art Collections, 
and Botanical Gardens.
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THE STEVEN S. KOBLIK EDUCATION AND VISITOR CENTER
After two years of construction, a stunning new entrance complex, the Steven 
S. Koblik Education and Visitor Center, opened to tremendous acclaim.

The complex features 6.5 acres of gardens and 94,000 square feet of 
facilities for lectures, conferences, classes, meetings, visitor amenities, 
collections, and institutional storage. 

Thanks to several acquisitions and a significant loan, the complex also 
features some stupendous public art. Greeting visitors in a stroll garden 
west of the entrance is Jerusalem Stabile (1976), a striking sculpture by 
American artist Alexander Calder (1898–1976), on loan from the Calder 
Foundation, New York, thanks to a donation to the Calder Foundation from 
the Philip and Muriel Berman Foundation. ( Jerusalem Stabile is a maquette 
for a much larger, final version produced by Calder.)

The Huntington also acquired Calder’s series of six Bicentennial Tapestries 
(1975) to hang in the lobby of Rothenberg Hall (a gift from the Berman 
Bloch family); a 1964 ceramic mural made by Los Angeles artist Doyle 
Lane (1925–2002), for the courtyard of the June and Merle Banta 
Education Center (a gift from MS Property Company); and a 1934 mural by 
Southern California artist Millard Sheets (1907–1989) for the Stewart R. 
Smith Board Room (a gift from Larry McFarland and M. Todd Williamson). 

The buildings of the Education and Visitor Center, designed by Architectural 
Resources Group, harmonize with the original early 20th-century estate 
structures on the property. 

The Office of Cheryl Barton designed the landscape to reflect the local 
Mediterranean climate as well as the agricultural history and elegant estate 
character of the grounds. Scott Kleinrock, The Huntington’s landscape 
design and planning coordinator, created the Frances and Sidney Brody 
California Garden, studded with stunning California native and other 
drought-tolerant plants.

Environmental sustainability was a major priority. The project reused asphalt 
and other hardscape produced during demolition, and it relocated several 
thousand cubic yards of excavated soil to elsewhere on the property—a 

substantial savings in cost that avoided the pollution that would have 
been created by removing these materials by truck.

Taking advantage of the mild Southern California climate, the buildings 
were designed with outdoor loggias and courtyards instead of indoor 
corridors and lobbies, leading to savings in construction and operating 
costs. The orientation of the buildings and the design of their windows 
minimize their solar exposure, further reducing cooling costs.

The elements in the Education and Visitor Center include:

• �A dazzling new Huntington Store, Coffee Shop, and Admissions and 
Membership area.

• �A shady and welcoming patio in the entrance area, the Avery and Andy 
Barth Family Grove.

• �The Frances and Sidney Brody California Garden, The Huntington’s first 
California Garden, featuring plants native to the area and to other 
Mediterranean climates.

• �Four classrooms and a shared courtyard that make up the June and 
Merle Banta Education Center.

• �Rothenberg Hall, featuring the 400-seat Robert C. Ritchie Auditorium, 
with its exceptional acoustics and audiovisual capabilities.

• �The Rose Hills Foundation Garden Court, with its distinctive 36-foot-
high glass dome.

• �A 5,000-square-foot multi-purpose room, Haaga Hall.
• �The Stewart R. Smith Board Room.
• �The Café, featuring indoor/outdoor seating for 300 and expansive 

garden views from the Norris Dining Terrace.
• �The Mapel Orientation Gallery, a place for visitors to learn about The 

Huntington, plan their visit, and share their impressions.
• �The Celebration Garden, with terraced beds of colorful seasonal blooms 

and a stone-lined water runnel leading to the historic heart of the estate.

A brilliant red-orange ceramic mural by Doyle Lane (1925–2002) animates the courtyard of the 
June and Merle Banta Education Center.
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• �A rare sculpture and more than 100 works on 
paper by the hard-edge artist Frederick Ham-
mersley, including 72 computer drawings printed 
in 1969, which were among the first examples 
of computer art. The gift came from the 
Frederick Hammersley Foundation.

• �John Martin’s The Seventh Plague of Egypt, 
The Plague of Hail, a drawing made for the 
artist’s 1835 publication Illustrations of the Bible.

• �John Minton’s Derelict Farm Machinery (1948), 
a watercolor painting depicting farming prac-
tices that were dying out as mechanization 
transformed post-war British agriculture. 

Library

The Huntington acquired three important man-
uscript collections, purchased by the Library 
Collectors’ Council, a group of 38 families 
who help support acquisitions. One comprises 
eight pages of research notes by Louis Pasteur 
(1822–1895) on the brewing of beer, dating 
from the 1870s. Pasteur’s work in fermentation 
helped transform the beer industry. It also pro-
vided him with the conceptual tools for devel-
oping vaccines against anthrax and, eventually, 
rabies inoculations.
	 The Library’s maritime history holdings re-
ceived an infusion of swashbuckling color in the 
form of 1,000 pages of journals, drawings, and 
watercolors by New England seaman David E. 
Marshall, better known as “Wicked Ned.” His 
papers offer a vivid, firsthand record of the life 
of a 19th-century sailor.
	 The Library acquired a collection of 52 unpub-
lished letters and other papers of the family of 
Jane Austen’s mother. Providing rich research 
fodder for literary and social historians, the ma-
terial spans six generations of the Leigh family 
of Adlestrop, the author’s maternal ancestors.
	 Three major gifts of photography also came 
to The Huntington this year, adding signifi-
cant depth to holdings related to Ansel Adams 
(1902–1984) and like-minded artists dedicated 
to the craft of fine-art, black-and-white pho-
tography. Adams produced seven portfolios 
over the course of his career, each containing 
between 10 and 15 photographs selected and 
printed by the artist himself, for a total of 90 
images. The Huntington received a set of all 
the images, a gift from George Melvin Byrne 
and Barbara S. Barrett-Byrne. 
	 The estate of Pasadena-born artist William 
R. Current (1923–1986) donated more than 400 

Head of a Boy (ca. 1928), by Sargent Claude 
Johnson (1888–1967).

Other art acquisitions this year included:

• �A group of 141 American prints, dating from 
1916 to 1954, including 15 lithographs by 
George Bellows. Also, 26 prints and drawings 
related to Morris Blackburn’s color screen print 
Orchestration (1947). These were gifts from 
Hannah S. and Russel I. Kully.

• �The painting Yellow Poem (1960) by Emerson 
Woelffer, a prominent abstract artist. The 
painting was a donation from Adam Mekler 
in honor of Ariel Gabriella Mekler and Daphne 
Lane Beneke.

• �41st Annual Spring Plant Sale
• �50th Annual Cactus and Succulent Show 

(Cactus and Succulent Society of America)

ACQUISITION HIGHLIGHTS

Art

At its annual meeting, the Art Collectors’ Coun-
cil purchased three works to help fill gaps in 
The Huntington’s collecting area, spending a 
total of nearly $1 million in donor funds.
	 These included two paintings from 1936—
Burlesque by Milton Avery (1885–1965) and Irises 
(The Sentinels) by Pasadena artist Helen Lun-
deberg (1908–1999)—and a ceramic sculpture, 

2015 COLLECTORS’ COUNCILS
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Robert Warren
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Maribeth and Hal Borthwick 
Caron and Steve Broidy
Cindy and John Carson
Susan and Stephen Chandler 
Eleanor Congdon
Kelvin Davis
Linda Dickason
Lois Erburu 
Judith and Stanley Farrar
Karin and Jonathan Fielding 
Marcia Good
Maria and Richard Grant 
Kelsey Hall
Claudia Huntington and Marshall Miller
Scott Jordan and Gina Valdez
Hannah and Russel Kully 
Sherry and John Light
William Lippman and Dagmar Solensky
Jeri and Tom Mitchell 
Diane and Trevor Morris 
Harlyne Norris
Carol and Laurence Pretty 
Marge Richards
Susan and Carl Robertson 
Anne and Jim Rothenberg 
Laura and Carlton Seaver 
Ruth B. Shannon
Lisa and Tim Sloan
Stewart Smith and Robin Ferracone 
Janet and Alan Stanford
Mary Ann Sturgeon 
Betsy and Joseph Terrazas 
Geneva and Chuck Thornton 
Sally Wenzlau
Alyce and Warren Williamson 
Deborah and Robert Wycoff
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• �An Ulmus parvifolia ‘Catlin’ bonsai, a gift 
from the family of noted bonsai artists Kay 
and Khan Komai.

• �A beautiful Acer buergerianum, a maple that is 
native to China, Korea, and Japan, a gift from 
Kathy Boehme, in a pot she made herself.

• �A group of 14 bonsai and 7 pots, a gift from 
the Victor Gail Trust.

 

Botanical

An exceptional gift of 1,200 cycads came from 
the estate of Loran M. Whitelock, a botanist who 
dedicated his life to collecting, growing, and 
conserving these plants. Cycads are incredibly 
diverse plants with a fossil history dating back 
200 million years; all those in the wild are rare 
and endangered. Botanical staff found new 
homes for the plants in the Australian Garden, 
Chinese Garden, Jungle Garden, and other areas 
corresponding to their native habitat and grow-
ing preferences. Many of the specimens joined 
Henry E. Huntington’s own collection of cycads, 
planted around his mansion (now the Hun-
tington Art Gallery). 
	 A recent donation of a large specimen of 
Cereus hildmannanus included the gift of 
time. The late Hans Liepmann, a noted aero-
nautics professor at Caltech, had originally 
purchased it as a small potted plant in 1981. By 
the time Dan and Felina Mahoney made the 
gift this year, it had grown to 12 feet. Cereus 
are native to southern South America and can 
grow to 30 feet in height, producing large 
white flowers followed by red fruit.
	 For bonsai collectors looking for a good 
home for their miniature trees, The Huntington 
offers an ideal environment and excellent care. 
Several bonsai gifts were received this year:
• �About 70 bonsai plants, along with bonsai 

pots, stands, books, and tools, a gift from 
Carlos M. Larralde, in memory of Gerald 
Lee Madison.

of his photographs. The striking black-and-white 
photographs depict the landscapes of the Amer-
ican Southwest, ca. 1956–58. 
	 An additional donation of 73 fine-art pho-
tographs by Ansel Adams and other important 
artists such as Edward and Brett Weston was a 
gift from Jack and Beverly Waltman.
	 A gift this year of papers from former Los 
Angeles County Supervisor Gloria Molina add-
ed significantly to The Huntington’s holdings 
in the area of L.A. history and politics. Packed 
into 350 boxes, the papers document Molina’s 
23 years in office as a member of the county’s 
governing body.

Other Library acquisitions this year included:

• �An archive of rare historic photographs of 
Santa Monica dating from as early as the 
1870s, from Ernest Marquez, a descendent of 
Mexican land grantees who owned the 
6,000-acre Rancho Boca de Santa Monica.

• �Sheet music, trade catalogs, advertising ephem-
era, and literary posters—part of a gift in 
progress from Jay T. Last.

• �A collection of books on aerodynamics, avia-
tion, and aerospace, a gift of Jeremy Norman.

• �A selection of papers of British-born novelist 
Christopher Isherwood.

• �Professional and personal papers of Paul Con-
rad, who served as chief editorial cartoonist 
for the Los Angeles Times from 1964 to 1993, 
a gift of the Conrad family.

• �Items from the Jack London Collection, a gift 
of Donald French.

The Huntington’s notable acquisitions included, left to right: 
Alexander Calder (1898–1976), Sphere and Spiral, 1975, wool, 
41 x 59 in. Gift of the Berman Bloch Family. © 2015 Calder 
Foundation, New York / Artists Rights Society (ARS), New 
York. Ansel Adams (1902–1984), Monolith, the Face of Half 
Dome, ca. 1926; Portfolio III, Yosemite Valley, 1960. © 2015 
The Ansel Adams Publishing Rights Trust. Gift of George Mel-
vin Byrne and Barbara S. Barrett-Byrne. Sargent Claude John-
son’s Head of a Boy, ca. 1928.
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More than 560 humanities scholars applied for 
Library research fellowships for the 2014–15 
academic year, with 159 receiving grants worth 
roughly $1.8 million. These included the highly 
coveted long-term fellowships, which allowed 22 
scholars to conduct advanced humanities research 
for a period of between 9 and 12 months.
	 The Huntington awards grants through a 
competitive application process. Each year’s se-
lection creates some overlapping areas of study. 
A few exciting clusters of research interests de-
veloped this year. Religion in 17th- and 18th- 
century England and America turned out to be 
a focus, with David Hall (Los Angeles Times 
Distinguished Fellow), Susan Juster (Robert C. 
Ritchie Distinguished Fellow), Matthew Kadane 
(Mellon Fellow), and Brent Sirota (NEH Fellow) 
all working on issues related to evangelical reli-
gion in the Anglo-American and Atlantic world.
	 Another constellation of scholars formed 
around the study of the celebrated British 
physicist and mathematician Sir Isaac Newton 
(1643–1727). This group of scholars in residence 
also benefitted from the coincidental timing in 
October 2014 of a Huntington conference fo-
cused on Newton: “‘All in Pieces’? New Insights 
into the Structure of Newton’s Thought.”
	 Research also took place in The Huntington’s 
botanical labs. Plant biologists created a protocol 
for safely freezing tissue from Aloe fivietii, a 
valuable technique for the long-term preservation 
of plants that are at risk due to over-collecting 
or loss of habitat. The Huntington also worked 
with the University of California, Berkeley to 
sequence a set of DNA markers in several threat-
ened species of the cycad genus Dioon that are 
native to Mexico and Honduras. 
	 Meanwhile, The Huntington received a 
$200,000 grant from the Getty Foundation to 
develop “A Magnificent Diversity: Images of 

Scholars will be able to glean new insights from a newly  
acquired trove of writings, drawings, and watercolors created by 
19th-century New England seaman David E. Marshall, otherwise 
known as “Wicked Ned.”

Research



concepts of the human body and the way it was 
depicted in medical treatises from the early Re-
naissance to the 17th century. The conference 
was convened by Jeanette Kohl, associate pro-
fessor of art history at University of California, 
Riverside, and funded by the J. Mario Molina 
Advised Family Foundation, a fund of the Silicon 
Valley Community Foundation.

Other conferences this year included:

“Desiring History and Historicizing Desire: 
Sexuality in Early Modern England” Con-
vened by Ari Friedlander, assistant professor of 
English at the University of Dayton; Melissa 
Sanchez, associate professor of English at the 
University of Pennsylvania; and Will Stockton, 
associate professor of Renaissance literature at 

Clemson University. Funded by The Huntington’s 
William French Smith Endowment.

“‘All in Pieces’? New Insights into the Struc-
ture of Newton’s Thought” Convened by 
Robert Iliffe, professor of intellectual history 
and the history of science at the University of 
Sussex, and William Newman, professor of 
history and philosophy of science at Indiana 
University. Funded by The Dibner History of 
Science Program at The Huntington.

“Markets, Law, and Ethics, 1300–1832” 
Convened by Simon Middleton, senior lecturer 
in history at the University of Sheffield, and James 
Shaw, senior lecturer in history at the Univer-
sity of Sheffield. Funded by The Huntington’s 
Dorothy Collins Brown Endowment with 
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Latin American Nature from Columbus to 
Darwin,” an exhibition that will be part of 
“Pacific Standard Time: LA/LA.” A first step 
was convening a panel of scholars to select ob-
jects for the exhibition. The exhibition is 
scheduled for 2017.

CONFERENCES

In celebration of the 500th anniversary of the 
birth of anatomist and physician Andreas Ves-
alius (1514–1564), The Huntington held a two-
day conference, “Vesalius and His Worlds: 
Medical Illustration during the Renaissance.” 
This program offered an opportunity to bring 
together rare book collectors, curators, art his-
torians, and physicians to explore changing 

IN PRINT
Finding the time to turn a dissertation 
into a book is a challenge for junior faculty 
seeking tenure. The Huntington’s Barbara 
Thom Postdoctoral Fellowship offers a 
research grant that allows non-tenured 
faculty to revise their manuscript over a 
period of 9 to 12 months.

This year, Abigail L. Swingen, assistant 
professor of history at Texas Tech 
University, published Competing Visions 
of Empire: Labor, Slavery, and the Origins 
of the British Atlantic Empire (Yale 
University Press, 2015), which is based 
on research she did as a Thom fellow at 
The Huntington in 2011–12. Swingen 
investigated how English politics and 

ideas of political economy influenced the development of African slavery 
and other forms of coerced labor in English West Indian colonies during 
the late 17th and early 18th centuries.

For scholars arriving at The Huntington for the first time, meeting with the 
curator in their area of research can provide a vital introduction to the best 
use of the collections. Sometimes, these curators themselves find time to 
produce their own scholarship. This year, this proved to be the case for 
several Huntington curators.

Peter J. Blodgett, the H. Russell Smith Foundation Curator of Western 
American Manuscripts at The Huntington, edited Motoring West, Volume 1: 
Automobile Pioneers, 1900–1909 (Arthur H. Clark Co.).

James Glisson, the Bradford and Christine Mishler Assistant Curator of 
American Art, contributed an essay to The Artist’s Garden: American 
Impressionism and the Garden Movement (University of Pennsylvania 
Press), edited by Anna O. Marley.

Sara S. Hodson, The Huntington’s curator of literary manuscripts, 
contributed an essay to The American Isherwood (University of Minnesota 

Press), edited by James J. Berg, dean of arts and sciences at College of 
the Desert in Palm Desert, and Chris Freeman, associate professor of 
English at the University of Southern California. 

Jennifer A. Watts, The Huntington’s curator of photography, authored A 
Strange and Fearful Interest: Death, Mourning, and Memory in the American 
Civil War (The Huntington Library, Art Collections, and Botanical Gardens).

Jessica Todd Smith, the Virginia Steele Scott Chief Curator of American Art, 
produced American Made: Highlights from the Huntington Art Collections, 
(The Huntington Library, Art Collections, and Botanical Gardens).

Steve Hindle, the W. M. Keck Foundation Director of Research, published 
“Representing Rural Society: Labor, Leisure, and the Landscape in an 
18th-Century Conversation Piece” in the journal Critical Inquiry.

A book published this year, Erica Charters’ Disease, War, and the Imperial 
State: The Welfare of the British Armed Forces During the Seven Years’ War 
(University of Chicago Press), won the award for Best First Book from the 
United Kingdom’s Society for Army Historical Research.

Other books were the result of research by long-term fellows and  
other scholars:

•	� Malcolm Baker (Mellon Fellow, 2007–08), The Marble Index: Roubiliac and 
Sculptural Portraiture in Eighteenth-Century Britain, Yale University Press. 

•	� Gregory P. Downs (Mellon Fellow, 2013–14), After Appomattox: 
Military Occupation and the Ends of War, Harvard University Press.

•	� Malcolm Gaskill (Mayers Fellow, 2009–10), Between Two Worlds: How 
the English Became Americans, Basic Books.

•	� Mark Hailwood (Bacon Foundation Fellow, 2012–13), Alehouses and 
Good Fellowship in Early Modern England, Boydell Press.

•	� John Krige (Eleanor Searle Visiting Professor in the History of Science 
and Technology, Caltech and the Huntington, 2008–09), Science and 
Technology in the Global Cold War, (with coeditor Naomi Oreskes), The 
MIT Press.

•	� Adam Shapiro (Dibner Fellow, 2009–10), Trying Biology: The Scopes 
Trial, Textbooks, and the Antievolution Movement in American Schools, 
University of Chicago Press.
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sponsorship from the USC-Huntington Early 
Modern Studies Institute.

“Illicit Atlantic Worlds” Convened by Mark 
Hanna, assistant professor of history at Uni-
versity of California, San Diego, and Kevin 
McDonald, assistant professor of history at 
Loyola Marymount University. Funded by the 
John Haskell Kemble Endowment with spon-
sorship from the USC-Huntington Early Modern 
Studies Institute.

“Rethinking Shakespeare in the Social Depth 
of Politics” Convened by Chris Fitter, professor 
of English at Rutgers University, Camden. 
Funded by The Huntington’s William French 
Smith Endowment and Mr. and Mrs. Frank 
Logan, with sponsorship from the USC-Hun-
tington Early Modern Studies Institute.

“The American Revolution: People and Power” 
Convened by T. H. Breen, Marsh Professor at 
Large at University of Vermont, and Patrick 
Griffin, professor of history at University of 
Notre Dame. Funded by The Huntington’s 
William French Smith Endowment and the 
Jack Miller Center for Teaching America’s 
Founding Principles and History, with spon-
sorship from the USC-Huntington Early 
Modern Studies Institute.

“Beyond the Copernican Revolution: New 
Narratives in Early Modern Science” Con-
vened by Jan Golinski, professor of history and 
humanities at University of New Hampshire. 
Funded by The Dibner History of Science Pro-
gram at The Huntington.

LECTURES

Public lectures gave numerous scholars the op-
portunity to share their research findings with 
a wider audience.  
• �Ray Allen Billington Lecture on the History 

of the American West | Ari Kelman, professor 
of history, Penn State University | “A Misplaced 
Massacre: Struggling over the Memory of 
Sand Creek”

• �Brody Lecture | Alain Touwaide, scientific 
director, Institute for the Preservation of 
Medical Traditions, and research associate, 
Smithsonian Institution | “Gardens for Health: 
A Walk through History”

• �Homer Crotty Lecture in British or European 
Civilization | Susan Brigden, Langford Fellow, 
Lincoln College, Reader in History, University 

of Oxford; Mary L. Robertson Visiting Fellow 
in Tudor Studies | “Reformation Diplomacy: 
Henry VIII and His Ambassadors”

• �Homer Crotty Lecture in British or European 
Civilization | Keith Wrightson, professor of 
history, Yale University | “‘Dating Statements’ 
and the Rise of Almanac Time in Early Mod-
ern England”

• �Homer Crotty Lecture in British or European 
Civilization | Paul Halliday, professor of his-
tory, University of Virginia | “Making the 
Charter Great”

• �Bern Dibner Lecture on the History of Science 
and Technology | William Newman, professor 
of history, Indiana University; Eleanor Searle 
Visiting Professor in the History of Science and 
Technology, Caltech and The Huntington | 
“Why Did Isaac Newton Believe in Alchemy?”

• �Paul G. Haaga Jr. Lecture on the History of 
American Entrepreneurship | Jonathan Levy, 
associate professor of history, Princeton Uni-
versity | “Entrepreneurial Values”

• �John Randolph Haynes and Dora Haynes 
Foundation Lecture on the History of Los 
Angeles | Frank Guridy, associate professor 
of history, University of Texas, Austin; Ray 
Allen Billington Visiting Professor at Occi-
dental College and The Huntington | “Game 
Day at the Coliseum”

• �Allan Nevins Lecture on American History | 
John Demos, Samuel Knight Professor Emer-
itus of History, Yale University | “On the Trail 
of the Heathen School”

• �Martin Ridge Lecture in Literature | Jonathan 
Bate, professor of English literature and provost, 
Worcester College, University of Oxford | “Ted 
and Sylvia Revisited”

• �Robert R. Wark Lecture | Kimberly Chrisman-
Campbell, fashion historian | “Fashion Vic-
tims: Dress at the Court of Louis XVI and 
Marie Antoinette”

• �Zamorano Lecture on the History of the Book 
| Matthew Fisher, associate professor of English, 
University of California, Los Angeles | “Li-
brary Fires, Medieval English Manuscripts, 
and the Value of Old Books”

The year also featured public lectures by Dis-
tinguished Fellows:

• �Joseph Glatthaar, professor of history, Uni-
versity of North Carolina, Chapel Hill | “A 
Tale of Two Armies” | Rogers Distinguished 
Fellow in 19th-Century American History

• �David Hall, Bartlett Research Professor, Har-
vard Divinity School | “Why They Mattered: 
Not Nathaniel Hawthorne’s Dour ‘Puritans’ 
but a People of Daring and Ethical Passion” | 
Los Angeles Times Distinguished Fellow in 
American Studies

• �Tim Harris, professor of history, Brown Uni-
versity | “Britain’s Century of Revolutions 
Reconsidered” | Fletcher Jones Foundation 
Distinguished Fellow in British History

• �Susan Juster, professor of history, University 
of Michigan | “‘God’s Wounds!’ Blasphemy 
in the Early Modern World” | Robert C. Ritchie 
Distinguished Fellow in Early American History

• �Kathleen Wilson, professor of history, Stony 
Brook University | “Admiral Nelson’s Women: 
Female Masculinity and Body Politics in the 
French and Napoleonic Wars” | R. Stanton 
Avery Distinguished Fellow in the Humanities

The Huntington also hosted two lectures for 
the George Dock Society for the History of 
Medicine:

• �George Dock Lecture | Mary Fissell, profes-
sor of the history of medicine at Johns Hop-
kins University | “A Look at America’s First 
Sex Manual”

• �Walter Jarvis Barlow Lecture | Nancy Tomes, 
professor of history at Stony Brook University 
| “The Anatomy of an Illness as Seen by the 
Patient: Norman Cousins and the Patients’ 
Rights ‘Revolution’ of the 1970s”

RESEARCH INSTITUTES

The Huntington co-sponsors two advanced re-
search institutes with the University of Southern 
California: the USC-Huntington Early Modern 
Studies Institute (EMSI) and the Huntington-
USC Institute on California and the West (ICW). 
The institutes award research fellowships and 
convene dozens of seminar meetings, lectures, 
and workshops throughout the year.

USE OF THE LIBRARY
The Library was open to scholars, also known 
as readers, 303 days of the year. Daily scholar 
visits averaged 80.

Scholars in Residence	 1,650

Total Number of Reader Visits	 24,428

Number of Rare Materials Used	 22,233 
(individual books or manuscripts)
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LONG-TERM RESEARCH FELLOWS, 2014–15
R. Stanton Avery Distinguished Fellow 
Kathleen Wilson (Professor, Stony Brook University) | Admirals as 
Heroes: Military and Naval Adventuring and British Masculinity in the 
Long 18th Century

Fletcher Jones Foundation Distinguished Fellow 
Tim Harris (Professor, Brown University) | Regicide: The British 
Monarchy on Trial: A Political, Religious, and Cultural History of the 
Three Kingdoms, 1642–49

Los Angeles Times Distinguished Fellow 
David Hall (Professor, Harvard Divinity School) | The Puritan Movement 
in England, Scotland, and New England, ca. 1550–1665

Robert C. Ritchie Distinguished Fellow 
Susan Juster (Professor, University of Michigan) | Sacred Violence in  
Early America

Rogers Distinguished Fellow in 19th-Century American History 
Joseph Glatthaar (Professor, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill) |  
The Army of the Potomac: From Defeat to Victory 

Dibner Research Fellows in the History of Science & Technology 
Kevin Lambert (Associate Professor, California State University, 
Fullerton) | Symbols and Things: English Mathematics and British 
Physics, 1800–1860

Stephen Snobelen (Associate Professor, University of King’s College) | Science 
and Religion in the Thought of Isaac Newton

Dana and David Dornsife Fellow 
Ann M. Little (Associate Professor, Colorado State University) | The Many 
Captivities of Esther Wheelwright

Fletcher Jones Foundation Fellow 
Matthew Fisher (Associate Professor, University of California, Los 
Angeles) | Out of the Ashes: The Cotton Library Fire and the Founding of 
the British Museum

Mellon Fellow 
Matthew Kadane (Associate Professor, Hobart and William Smith 
Colleges) | The Path to Enlightenment: The Life of Pentecost Barker

National Endowment for the Humanities Fellows 
Matthew Bahar (Assistant Professor, Oberlin College) | Pirating Empire: 
People of the Dawn in the Age of Sail

Chris Kyle (Associate Professor, Syracuse University) | Engaging the 
Public: Proclamations and Political Communication in Early Modern 
England, 1540–1642

Brent Sirota (Assistant Professor, North Carolina State University) | 
The Globalization of British Christianity: Evangelicalism and the Empire, 
1783–1848

Barbara Thom Postdoctoral Fellows 
Urvashi Chakravarty (Assistant Professor, George Mason University) | 
Serving Like a Free Man: Labor, Liberty, and Consent in Early Modern 
England

Catharine Franklin (Assistant Professor, Texas Tech University) | The 
Army Stands Between: The United States Army, Federal Indian Policy, 
and Native Sovereignty, 1862–1902

ACLS/Burkhardt Fellow 
Adria Imada (Associate Professor, University of California, San Diego) | 
Capturing Leprosy: The Medical Gaze in America’s Tropical Empire

John Simon Guggenheim Memorial Foundation Fellow in Residence 
Carla Mazzio (Associate Professor, University at Buffalo) | The Trouble 
with Numbers: The Drama of Mathematics in the Age of Shakespeare

Fellows in the Caltech-Huntington Program for the Study of Materialities, 
Texts and Images 
Susan Barbour (Lecturer, University of Oxford) | Elegiac Materialism: 
Documentary and Loss in the Poetry and Art of Susan Howe

Julie Park (Assistant Professor, Vassar College) | Dark Rooms and Moving 
Objects: Interior Life and the Novel in 18th-Century England

European Commission Research Executive Agency Marie Curie Fellow 
Sandra Rebok (Research Associate, Spanish National Research Council, 
Madrid) | Alexander von Humboldt and the Globalization of Science: 
Networks of Knowledge between Germany and the United States in the 
19th Century

Ray Allen Billington Visiting Professor at Occidental College and  
The Huntington 
Frank Guridy (Associate Professor, University of Texas, Austin) | 
Ambivalent Arenas: The Stadium and the American City

Eleanor Searle Visiting Professor in the History of Science and Technology 
at Caltech and The Huntington 
William Newman (Professor, Indiana University) | Deciphering a 
Historical Mystery: The Alchemy of Isaac Newton

Haynes Foundation Fellow 
Tom Sitton (Curator Emeritus, Natural History Museum of Los Angeles 
County) | Los Angeles County and Its Government, 1950–2010

Mary Robertson Fellow in Tudor Studies 
Susan Brigden (Langford Fellow, Lincoln College, and Reader in History, 
University of Oxford) | Literary Coteries in Mid-16th Century England

Steve Hindle, the W. M. Keck Foundation Director of Research (in the front row at left), stands 
with long-term research fellows (left to right): Brent Sirota, Chris Kyle, David Hall, Tim Harris, 
Carla Mazzio, Julie Park, Susan Juster, Catharine Franklin, Kathleen Wilson. Back row: Matthew 
Bahar, Urvashi Chakravarty, Susan Barbour, Ann M. Little, Stephen Snobelen, Frank Guridy, 
Adria Imada, Kevin Lambert, Matthew Fisher, Sandra Rebok, Joseph Glatthaar. Not pictured are 
Susan Brigden, Matthew Kadane, William Newman, and Tom Sitton.    



	 EMSI co-sponsors several Huntington re-
search conferences each year as well as semi-
nars with titles including Early Modern British 
History, Renaissance Literature, American 
Origins, the Long 18th Century, Past Tense, 
and Borderlands.
	 The EMSI annual workshop with the Wil-
liam and Mary Quarterly, “Early American 
Legal Histories,” convened by Sarah Barringer 
Gordon, a historian at the University of Penn-
sylvania, explored new work in law and history.
	 EMSI recently marked its 1,000th event with 
a special conference called “World and Ground,” 
which invited 12 scholars in early American 
history and culture to present papers on subjects 
ranging from slavery to capitalism.
	 ICW had a full slate of programs and events. 
Its “In Conversation” series, a popular lunch-
time discussion held at The Huntington, ex-
plored more than half a dozen topics. Speakers 
included Tyler Green, producer and host of the 
Modern Art Notes podcast, discussing the 
work of 19th-century American photographer 
Carleton Watkins; and Michael Datcher, an 
award-winning journalist, who shared insights 
into his historical novel Americus, set in East 
St. Louis during the 1917 race riots. 
	 ICW also commemorated 10 years of work 
aimed at understanding the history and culture 
of California and the American West with a 
celebration at The Huntington.

HUNTINGTON LIBRARY PRESS

It is difficult to reproduce in a single place the 
visual and intellectual splendor on offer at The 
Huntington. Even so, one particular volume—
The Huntington Library, Art Collections, and 
Botanical Gardens: Cultivating Curiosity—came 
close. Published by the Huntington Library 
Press, the lavishly illustrated book examined 
the many facets of The Huntington’s library, 
art, and botanical collections. 
	 Also published this year was Governing the 
Sea in the Early Modern Era: Essays in Honor 
of Robert C. Ritchie, which considered how the 
exploitation of the oceans changed slavery, long-
distance trade, property crime, the environment, 
literature, and memory. The volume, honoring 
former Huntington research director Robert C. 
Ritchie, was edited by Peter C. Mancall and Carole 
Shammas, both professors of history at USC.

	

Samuel Johnson: New Contexts for a New 
Century scrutinized the many aspects of Samuel 
Johnson’s career. The essays looked at Johnson as 
a lexicographer, moralist, poet, political com-
mentator, biographer, literary critic, and theo-
rist. It was edited by Howard D. Weinbrot, a 
professor emeritus in English at the University 
of Wisconsin-Madison.

HUNTINGTON LIBRARY QUARTERLY

The Huntington Library Quarterly, now in its 
78th year, specializes in the early modern period, 
publishing research in areas strongly represent-
ed in the Library’s holdings.
	 A special issue of the journal, entitled “Cu-
riously Drawn: Early Modern Science as a Visual 
Pursuit,” explored the visual dimension of sci-
ence in the late 17th and early 18th centuries, 
and featured 30 color reproductions, printed 
thanks to a grant from Cambridge University. 
Guest editors were Felicity Henderson (Lecturer 
in Archives and Material Culture at Exeter 
University), Sachiko Kusukawa (Fellow in the 
History and Philosophy of Science, Trinity Col-
lege, Cambridge), and Alexander Marr (Uni-
versity Lecturer in the History of Art, 1400–
1700, at the University of Cambridge and a 
Fellow of Trinity Hall). 

FELLOWSHIP APPLICANTS FOR 
2015–16
The Huntington received 654 fellowship 
applications for the academic year 
2015–16, the highest number to date.

			   Applicants	 Awards

Long-term 
	� (NEH, Mellon,  

Dornsife, Thom)	 119	 8

Short-term	 342	 141

Dibner  
	 (short-/long-term)	 110	 23/3

Travel grants for study 
	 in the UK	 83	 11

About 30 percent of the 2015–16 grantees 
selected as a result of this competition 
were from abroad—hailing from Australia, 
Canada, France, Germany, Hong Kong, 
India, Ireland, Netherlands, Spain, and the 
United Kingdom.

PEER REVIEW COMMITTEES
Long-Term Fellowships
David Cressy, Ohio State University
Alexander Nemerov, Stanford University
Gregory Nobles, Georgia Institute  
	 of Technology
David Shields, University of South Carolina
Wendy Wall, Northwestern University

Short-Term Fellowships
Dympna Callaghan, Syracuse University 
Hollis Clayson, Northwestern University
Brian Cowan, McGill University
John Craig, Simon Fraser University 
Elizabeth Dillon, Northeastern University
Frances Dolan, University of California, Davis
Ann Fabian, Rutgers University
Sandra Gustafson, University of Notre Dame
Susan Juster, University of Michigan
Michael Komanecky, Farnsworth  
	 Art Museum

Dibner Fellowships
Mary Fissell, Johns Hopkins University
John Krige, Georgia Institute of Technology
Bruce Moran, University of Nevada, Reno
Elizabeth Watkins, University of California, 
	 San Francisco
Robert Westman, University of California, 
	 San Diego

The lavishly illustrated volume The Huntington Library, Art 
Collections, and Botanical Gardens: Cultivating Curiosity offers 
an in-depth look at the institution and its collections.
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Each year, hundreds of school groups from kin-
dergarten through grade 12 come to learn about 
The Huntington’s library, art, and botanical 
collections. More than 22,000 students visited 
this year, most of them through field trips ar-
ranged by their schools. 
	 The Huntington is also engaging with chil-
dren and young adults in new and innovative 
ways, helped in large part by a generous grant 
from The Capital Group Companies. One such 
approach is by collaborating with groups that 
have long and successful track records in serving 
young people in the community. 
	 Here are some highlights from the year:

COMMUNITY COLLABORATORS

Writing can be a powerful medium for teens. 
A group of 75 girls, aged 13–19, came to The 
Huntington from WriteGirl, a Los Angeles–
based creative writing and mentoring organi-
zation. The girls spent the day at The Huntington 
using curriculum based on the works of prize-
winning science fiction writer Octavia Butler, 
whose papers reside here. With them were 60 
professional writers serving as mentors, guiding 
the girls as they learned about Butler’s personal 
history and literary style. Then the girls tried 
their hands at writing their own science fiction.
	 Girls and young women, aged 10–17, from 
the Pasadena YWCA’s Girls Empowerment 
Summer Camp learned about botany as they 
toured The Huntington’s Ranch Garden; then 
they returned to the classrooms to prepare 
healthy meals using fresh produce. Another 
group from the Pasadena YMCA, aged 14–17, 
trained to be junior docents in a workshop 
called “Women in Art.” Over a span of five 
weeks, the girls spent hours in the Virginia 
Steele Scott Galleries of American Art, choosing 
a particular artwork to study, making sketches, 

Stunning mixed-media depictions of The Huntington were the 
result of “Harmony in the Gardens,” a collaborative initiative by 
middle school students from Eliot Arts Magnet and Mayfield 
Junior School. 

Education
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as well as plants used to make drugs in the 17th 
to 21st centuries. 
	 Another science-related Huntington U of-
fering, “Beautiful Science on Stage,” explored 
what Alan Lightman, author of Einstein’s 
Dreams, called the “longstanding love affair 
between scientists and artists.” Instructor Ar-
den Elizabeth Thomas, executive director of 
Caltech’s MACH 33: The Festival of New Science-
Driven Plays, began her class in The Hunting-
ton’s permanent exhibition “Beautiful Science.” 
	 Shorter courses were also available, including 
“Fashion Forward: Dress and Style throughout 
the Centuries,” a three-session classroom and 
gallery course. Arts educator Lilit Sadoyan guid-
ed students in understanding how artworks por-
trayed what people wore in Western Europe, 
from ancient times to the era of Impressionism. 
	 And for those who wanted to delve deeply 
into just one object, “spotlight” courses offered 
a 30-minute look at unique objects from the 
collections. One course focused on Chaucer’s 
Canterbury Tales with Vanessa Wilkie, The 
Huntington’s curator of British historical 
manuscripts. Another course, led by Sara S. 
Hodson, The Huntington’s curator of literary 
manuscripts, examined the charred remains of 
Jack London’s manuscript of The Sea Wolf.

VOLUNTEERS

Without volunteers, The Huntington simply 
could not function. This year, 1,129 volunteers 
donated more than 50,000 hours of their time 
and expertise, a value of $1.1 million. Volunteers 

Blue Boy (ca. 1770) to introduce students to 
mural painting. Fifth graders from the school 
created a reproduction of the masterpiece on 
the wall of their school and visited The Hun-
tington to see how close their reproduction came 
to the original.
	 Now in its 10th year, the Langston Hughes 
Poetry Contest invited students from area high 
schools to submit poems honoring Langston 
Hughes, American poet and leader of the Har-
lem Renaissance. Ron McCurdy, a professor of 
music at the USC Thornton School of Music, 
read Hughes’ iconic poem “Ask Your Mama: 
Twelve Moods for Jazz,” accompanied by a 
musical score composed by McCurdy and per-
formed by his jazz quintet.  (McCurdy seemed 
particularly energized by the new, acoustically 
pristine Rothenberg Hall.) Then the poetry 
contest winners read their poems aloud, com-
municating touching messages of yearning, 
identity, and rebirth, while McCurdy and his 
jazz quintet played original compositions of 
music for each. This year’s participating schools 
included Alhambra High School, Carson High 
School, East Los Angeles Performing Arts Mag-
net, Frederick Douglass High School, John 
Muir High School, and Santana High School.

LIFELONG LEARNERS

Now in its second year, Huntington U, a series 
of seminar-style courses for adults, delved into 
science with “Medicinal Plants.” Instructor 
Debra B. Folsom led the class in investigating 
ancient medicinal plant history and traditions, 

and conducting research on the artist. At the 
workshop’s end, the girls’ family members en-
joyed a tour of the galleries, accompanied by 
the newly minted docents.
	 The Huntington partnered with the Boys 
and Girls Club of Pasadena to host the club’s 
fourth annual photo competition and exhibition. 
For inspiration, students took docent-led tours 
of The Huntington, including the photography 
exhibition “Bruce Davidson/Paul Caponigro: 
Two American Photographers in Britain and 
Ireland.” Then they snapped photos in three 
broad categories: Portraits, Surroundings, and 
Culture and Tradition.	
	 Another group from the Boys and Girls club 
of Pasadena and Monrovia used the exhibition 
“Samuel F. B. Morse’s Gallery of the Louvre and 
the Art of Invention,” featuring Morse’s master-
piece as the jumping-off point for a studio art 
class. After a presentation by The Huntington’s 
Virginia Steele Scott Chief Curator of American 
Art, Jessica Smith, the students learned about 
drawing and shading from professional artist 
Marion Eisenmann. 	
	 Monrovia School District’s Wild Rose Ele-
mentary School used Thomas Gainsborough’s 

Above, left to right: Children got a kick out of writing with a quill 
and ink during Civil War Living History Day. Students from two 
Pasadena middle schools pose in front of artwork they produced 
for “Harmony in the Gardens.” As part of a Shakespeare sum-
mer institute, middle school and high school teachers gather 
in the conservation lab to examine a work by Ben Jonson, a 
contemporary of the Bard and fellow poet. Drama students 
from the East Los Angeles Performing Arts Academy at Esteban 
E. Torres High School perform Shakespeare’s A Midsummer 
Night’s Dream, set to the music of the Beatles.
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teachers discovered in a series of workshops 
that were part of The Huntington’s Shake-
speare summer institute. Teachers worked in 
groups and individually, exploring scenes, text, 
character, voice, movement, and improvisation. 
They also examined the Library’s Shakespeare 
holdings and attended live theater performances 
to better understand how to infuse lessons 
with drama. The result: the teachers recharged 
their batteries and returned to the classroom 
better equipped to inspire a new generation of 
Shakespeare fans.
	 For the second year, Pasadena schoolteachers 
attended workshops to boost skills in inquiry-
based learning, the sort of engaged teaching 
style that gets students developing the analytic 
skills they need for deep learning. The program 
is part of a three-year partnership with Pasa-
dena Unified School District to train each K-12 
teacher in inquiry-based teaching methods us-
ing objects from The Huntington’s collections. 
This year, Huntington curators and educators 
worked with schoolteachers in four areas: bo-
tanical science, literary manuscripts, historical 
documents, and decorative arts. Teachers ex-
plored primary source materials, developed les-
son plans, and practiced inquiry-based skills 
they can use in the classroom. The Boone 
Foundation and William H. Hurt Philanthropy 
provided support for the workshops.
	 Urban agriculture is increasingly popular, 
especially in schools that are turning lawns into 
productive vegetable gardens. For the sixth year, 
educators came to The Huntington for a pro-
fessional development program called “Mas-
tering Urban Agriculture.” This year, 20 new 
participants joined 80 who returned from last 
year. A manual and workbook supported new 
content on propagation, pest control, and irri-
gation, as well as hands-on activities, including 
the construction of on-site garden beds.
	 The Dan Murphy Foundation, Edison In-
ternational, and the J. W. and Ida M. Jameson 
Foundation made generous grants to under-
write the cost of bus transportation to bring 
students to The Huntington.

middle school students took photographs at The 
Huntington and then worked together to create 
mixed-media works. Using the theme “Harmony 
in the Gardens,” the students selected photos, 
refined their ideas, and developed the planner 
for all 500 of Eliot’s students. The original 
mixed-media works went on exhibition in a 
specially crafted display cabinet outside the 
Mapel Orientation Gallery.
	 It was also a busy year for students from 
Torres High School. The East Los Angeles Per-
forming Arts Magnet students met with Hun-
tington musician-in-residence Cho-Liang Lin, 
who played his Stradivarius violin and led a 
discussion with students on the differences be-
tween eastern and western musical traditions. 
Torres students also worked with the Shakespeare 
Center of Los Angeles to produce a performance 
of A Midsummer Night’s Dream set to music 
by the Beatles. To prepare for the interpretation 
of the Bard, the students viewed Shakespeare’s 
Folio on display in the Library’s Main Hall 
and examined 19th-century theater posters.
	 A group of 24 students from the Torres En-
gineering & Technology Academy studied what 
it means to pursue a career in water conservation. 
The first series of the six-month pilot project, 
“H2O Flow,” gave students an understanding 
of how to trace water systems, test water quality, 
and conduct water treatment. Students learned 
about water conservation in sessions at The 
Huntington, the Metropolitan Water District 
of Southern California, the Hyperion Water 
Reclamation Plant, and the Los Angeles River 
itself, with guidance from the non-profit group 
Friends of the Los Angeles River. 
	 Students from Rockdale Elementary, a Los 
Angeles Unified School District arts magnet 
school, met with Peter Blodgett, The Hunting-
ton’s H. Russell Smith Foundation Curator of 
Western Historical Manuscripts, to learn how 
stories are recorded and stored in museums. 
Then they experienced a retelling of Rossini’s 
The Barber of Seville in the form of LA Opera’s 
performance of Figaro’s American Adventure. 
The partnership with Rockdale is longstand-
ing, dating from 2003.

TEACHER TRAINING

Bringing the drama of Shakespeare to life is 
easier when teachers receive guidance from 
scholars, educators, and theater professionals. 
That’s what 24 middle school and high school 

led docent tours, guided school groups, helped 
with garden maintenance, and worked in offices, 
among other efforts. Volunteers also include 
interns, high school students, and members of 
the Boards of Overseers and Trustees.
	 The opening this year of the Steven S. Koblik 
Education and Visitor Center required a new 
corps of volunteers. Volunteers now staff the 
new Frances and Sidney Brody California Gar-
den, which is studded with gorgeous, rugged 
plants accustomed to the hot, dry climate of 
Southern California. Other volunteers are ready 
to answer questions in the new Mapel Orienta-
tion Gallery, which gives visitors an overview 
of The Huntington and its activities, as well as 
its founders, Henry E. and Arabella Huntington. 
Volunteers attended lectures and received writ-
ten materials that brought them up to speed and 
then quickly moved on to the best instruction 
there is: on-the-job training.

PARTNER SCHOOLS

“The Harmony Project,” a collaborative effort 
with two partner schools, Pasadena’s Charles 
W. Eliot Arts Magnet Academy and Mayfield 
Junior School, created art that would illustrate 
day planners for Eliot students. Planners are 
critical for helping busy middle-schoolers de-
velop their organizational skills. Eliot admin-
istrators knew their students would benefit by 
having them; Mayfield administrators knew a 
collaborative art project for their students could 
be an enriching experience. And The Huntington 
served as subject and facilitator: more than 100 
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Robust and moving boldly forward is perhaps 
the best way to describe the overall fiscal health 
of the institution this past year. Revenues ex-
ceeded budget by $1.2 million, thanks primarily 
to Memberships and Admissions, and helped 
in part by a modest increase in admission prices, 
coupled with a growth in the number of people 
who came for a visit and liked it so much they 
became members. In addition to contributions, 
nearly all categories of earned revenues exceed-
ed budget at year’s end, including facility rentals 
and events, royalties, food services, filming, 
The Huntington Store, and plant sales. 
	 From a financial perspective, the big story of 
the year was the opening of the Steven S. Koblik 
Education and Visitor Center (EVC), an ambi-
tious project paid for entirely from donor con-
tributions. The complex of buildings and gar-
dens created new operating costs, which included 
equipment maintenance, insurance, utility costs, 
and supplies. The facilities also required addi-
tional staff members in many divisions across 
the institution, including Botanical, Member-
ship and Visitor Services, The Huntington 
Store, Facilities, and Special Events. A dramatic 
boost in sales at The Huntington Store led to 
increased purchases to stock the store with 
more inventory. Fortunately, The Huntington 
was able to offset these increased costs through 
the boost in attendance, as mentioned earlier, 
and from income earned from the new facilities. 
	 Other significant capital investments occurred 
during the year, including the construction of 
five new rooms in the Lois and Robert F. Erbu-
ru Gallery of the Virginia Steele Scott Galler-
ies of American Art, and technology invest-
ments throughout the institution, including 
migration to cloud-based storage. 
	 The Huntington’s restricted giving provides 
critical support to many programs. This year, 
The Huntington used $9.5 million in restricted 
funds to finance mission-critical activities, such 

Yarrow, kangaroo paw, and other blooms add a burst of color 
to the Celebration Garden.

Finances
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UNRESTRICTED GIVING

Almost one-third of The Huntington’s annual 
operating budget comes from unrestricted an-
nual support, given largely through the Society 
of Fellows, Corporate Partners, and Membership. 
These gifts provide a stable source of operating 
capital, sustaining The Huntington’s mission, 
operations, and day-to-day programming. 
	 The Society of Fellows provides the largest 
single source of unrestricted annual giving. 
Created in 1973 with 82 charter households, 
the Society of Fellows has grown to 597 house-
holds whose aggregate giving for the 2014–15 
fiscal year totaled $4.6 million.
	 Fellows are an integral part of The Hunting-
ton. Involved as docents, committee members, 
Overseers, and Trustees, they make an essential 
contribution to daily operations. Individually 
and as a group, the Fellows are deeply invested 
in our mission, as evidenced by this year’s 92 
percent renewal rate. 
	 Each year, members of the Society of Fellows 
are invited to roughly 50 events. This includes 
the annual Huntington Ball, a beautiful gala 
celebration that this year raised more than 
$415,000. Hosted on Sept. 6, 2014, by Kerstin 
and Steve Koblik, with former president Robert 
Allen Skotheim and his wife, Nadine, attending 
as honored guests, the Huntington Ball celebrated 
25 years of remarkable leadership. The nearly 500 
guests enjoyed cocktails on the south terrace of the 
Huntington Art Gallery and dinner on a special-
ly built floor extending onto the east lawn. Estate 
Catering provided delicious food, and Wayne 
Foster Entertainment provided dance music. 
	 Membership set a new record, with revenue 
totaling $4.4 million. The year ended with nearly 
36,800 Member households. The upper levels 
(Contributor through Benefactor) continued to 
see steady growth, totaling well beyond 11,000, 
a 9 percent increase from last year. The range of 
premier opportunities offered to the upper levels 
continued to be a strong driver for this growth.
 	 Members’ events included a very popular two-
day “open house” for the new Steven S. Koblik 
Education and Visitor Center. Feedback was 
unanimous: the new spaces were a hit. Member 
comments included, “Amazing,” “I’m so glad I’m 
a Member,” “Beautiful views, everywhere you 
look!,” and “I can’t wait to attend a concert in 
the auditorium.”

• �Mary Anne and Lary Mielke 
• �Toshie and Frank Mosher
• �Jud O. Roberts

	 Steve Koblik’s retirement inspired several 
major gifts made in his honor. One gift endowed 
the position of Vice President for Financial Af-
fairs and several provided endowed funds to 
advance strategic education and communica-
tions activities. The total of these gifts exceeded 
$5.5 million. These donors include:

• �Dan Greenberg and Susan Steinhauser
• �Bill and Daryn Horton
• �Claudia Huntington and Marshall Miller
• �June and Simon Li 
• �Margot and Mitch Milias
• �Wendy Munger and Leonard Gumport
• �Anne and Jim Rothenberg
• �Terry and Dennis Stanfill 
• �James Ukropina
• �Les and Nancy Waite

In addition, 34 families confirmed that they 
would make future gifts to The Huntington 
through their wills, trusts, retirement plan assets, 
life insurance policies, or through other planned 
giving vehicles. We are deeply grateful to them 
for their thoughtful and far-sighted generosity.
	 A new donor wall for Huntington Succes-
sors was installed adjacent to The Rose Hills 
Foundation Garden Court in the Education and 
Visitor Center. The list of over 500 donors hon-
ors those whose cumulative giving to The 
Huntington totals $100,000 or more, as well as 
those who have reached subsequent milestones 
of $500,000, $1 million, $5 million, and $10 
million. This year, 26 new names joined this 
list and 11 moved up to higher levels of giving.
	 The Huntington held its second annual, 
“An Evening Among the Roses: A Celebration 
of the LGBT Community at The Huntington.” 
The event was sold out, with more than 800 at-
tendees celebrating the important contributions 
to The Huntington made by the lesbian, gay, 
bisexual, and transgender community. Wells 
Fargo again served as lead sponsor of the event; 
additional support came from Los Angeles 
Magazine; the David Bohnett Foundation; the 
Los Angeles LGBT Center; Uptown Gay and 
Lesbian Alliance; Margit Holakoui Florist; 
KPMG; The Langham Huntington in Pasade-
na; and the ONE Archives Foundation.

as the funding of lectures and fellowships, the 
acquisition of art and library materials, and 
the hiring of staff to maintain the gardens. 
Each year, the list of special projects made pos-
sible by this funding grows to include new areas, 
like the Huntington Ranch Garden as well as 
school partnerships and special exhibitions. 
 	 Business ingenuity and creativity continue to 
drive the work of the institution. Given the pow-
erful impact of the EVC and the ever-expanding 
programmatic work underway, The Huntington 
continues to reflect the extraordinary drive and 
passion of its staff and the desire to fulfill—in 
a multitude of ways—the institution’s mission.

THE YEAR IN FUNDRAISING

Giving at The Huntington totaled nearly $30.5 
million in fiscal year 2014–15. It was an excep-
tional year for philanthropy—from the remark-
able giving for the EVC to the focused efforts 
that helped us tackle specific and timely pursuits, 
such as training Pasadena school district teach-
ers in inquiry-based learning, expanding our 
capacity for digital communication, and bring-
ing our payroll system into the 21st century.
	 The combined total giving from Membership, 
the Society of Fellows, Corporate Partners, the 
Huntington Ball, and other unrestricted giving 
sources exceeded $11.4 million, providing strong 
operating support. Unrestricted annual giving, 
including Membership, played an exception-
ally important role. Membership now totals 
almost 37,000 families and continues to grow. 
This stable and increasing source of funds gives 
the institution a measure of fiscal stability, allow-
ing it to plan its programs for the year ahead.
	 Several donors deserve special mention for 
their exceptional unrestricted support. These 
donors made gifts in other areas but also 
showed financial leadership in providing an-
nual support of $150,000 or more:

• �Scott Jordan
• �Charles T. Munger
• �Anne and Jim Rothenberg
• �David and Joan Traitel

This year, 47 new families joined the Society of 
Fellows. Of the 597 Fellows families, 52 gener-
ously made annual gifts of $25,000 or more—
an increase of five families from last year:

• �Margaret F. Leong and and Michael P. Checca
• �Terri and Jerry Kohl 
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Gallery of the Virginia Steele Scott Galleries 
of American Art.

	 ° �Margot and Mitch Milias contributed $1 
million through the Milias Foundation.

	 ° �Lisa and Tim Sloan committed $1 million.
	 ° �Maribeth and Hal Borthwick donated 

$250,000.
• �Jay and Deborah Last continued their sup-

port of the Library with gifts totaling almost 
$270,000 for acquisitions of the Jay T. Last 
collection of graphic arts and social history, 
and for staff salaries, benefits, and profes-
sional development.

• �For institutional projects, Jay and Deborah 
Last donated a total of approximately 
$410,000 for assessing our digital capacity 
and making future information technology 
upgrades.

• �An anonymous donor contributed $515,000 
to underwrite our communications and out-
reach activities.

• �Scott Jordan directed $200,000 through the 
Vanguard Charitable Endowment program 
to fund upgrades to the automated payroll 
systems.

• �Continuing their steadfast support of the 
Japanese Garden, Toshie and Frank Mosher 
contributed $180,000 for future programs 
related to Japanese culture.

• �Claudia Huntington and Marshall Miller 
donated $50,000 to the President’s Discre-
tionary Fund. 

• �Stephen E. Rogers made a gift of $35,000 to 
underwrite the purchase of a new climate 
control monitoring system for Library exhi-
bition and storage spaces.

Foundation, Corporate, and Government 
Support (grants of $10,000 or more)

• �Three foundations provided significant grants 
to fund renovations and additions to the Lois 
and Robert F. Erburu Gallery of the Virginia 
Steele Scott Galleries of American Art:

	 ° �The Ahmanson Foundation committed  
$1 million.

	 ° �The Fletcher Jones Foundation contribut-
ed $1 million. 

	 ° �The Ralph M. Parsons Foundation 
pledged $375,000.

• �The Whittier Trust—four $50,000 grants 
from the Confidence Foundation, Mericos 
Foundation, WWW Foundation, and the L. 

	 Unrestricted giving from corporations and 
foundations provides critical support to education 
programs. These unrestricted funds allow The 
Huntington to test new models, seed programs, 
train teachers, and provide transportation and 
free entry for children who could not otherwise 
visit. We are grateful for the participation and 
loyal commitment of the following donors:

• �Gardner Grout Foundation—$75,000.
• �Edison International—$50,000.
• �Wells Fargo—$50,000 to underwrite First 

Thursdays and $25,000 for Corporate Partners.
• �Bank of America/Merrill Lynch—$30,000.
• �Anonymous—$25,000.
• �Milo W. Bekins Foundation—$15,000.
• �The Langham Huntington Hotel, Pasade-

na—$15,000.
• �The Walt Disney Company—$10,000.
• �MATT Construction—$10,000.
• �Molina Healthcare, Inc.—$10,000.

In addition, The Huntington received gifts from 
bequests and estates for general unrestricted 
purposes. These include:

• �A bequest of in excess of $140,000 by the late 
Dr. Patricia A. Lowry, a former Huntington 
reader.

• �A bequest of $30,000 from the late Mildred 
E. Rodstrom, who had served as an art and 
general services volunteer.

• �A bequest of almost $11,000 from the late 
William R. Boyle.

• �A bequest of $10,000 from the estate of Mrs. 
William H. Doheny.

RESTRICTED GIVING

Individuals

• �Three generous gifts completed the funding 
for the Steven S. Koblik Education and Visi-
tor Center:

	 ° �$1 million from Avery and Andy Barth. 
Their gift is recognized by the naming of 
the Avery and Andy Barth Family Grove.

	 ° �Christine C. Benter committed $250,000 in 
memory of her late husband. The George 
H. Benter Jr. Family Garden is located at 
the northwest corner of the Frances  and 
Sidney Brody California Garden.

	 ° �Stephen and Susan Chandler contributed 
$200,000.

• �Three significant gifts helped fund the ex-
pansion of the Lois and Robert F. Erburu 

	 Casual visitors continue to be our primary 
source for new memberships. Recruitment of new 
Member households totaled more than 9,000, 
almost three-quarters of which were from on-
site sales. The visitor-to-Member conversion rate 
ended the year with a strong 2.5 percent average. 
This achievement is due to the extraordinary 
efforts of our Visitor Services and Membership 
Services staff.

GIVING THANKS FOR THE NEW 
EDUCATION AND VISITOR CENTER 
The new Steven S. Koblik Education and 
Visitor Center will enhance the visitor 
experience for generations to come. 

In particular, we wish to thank Charles T. 
Munger for his insight and remarkable 
generosity in making this project a reality. 

We also celebrate the following major 
supporters:

The Ahmanson Foundation  
Anonymous (3) 
June and Merle Banta and  
	 The Banta Family Foundation 
Andy and Avery Barth 
Christine C. Benter in memory of  
	 George H. Benter Jr. 
Estate of Frances Lasker Brody 
Susan and Stephen Chandler 
Estate of Howard “Tucker” Fleming Jr. and 
	 Charles Williamson 
Heather and Paul Haaga 
Claudia Huntington and Marshall Miller 
Terri and Jerry Kohl 
Mona and Frank Mapel 
Larry W. McFarland and M. Todd Williamson 
Wendy Munger and Leonard Gumport 
Kenneth T. and Eileen L. Norris Foundation 
Stephen E. Rogers in memory of Janet Rogers 
The Rose Hills Foundation 
Anne and Jim Rothenberg 
Ted and Lori Samuels 
H. Russell Smith, and Stewart R. Smith and 
	 Robin A. Ferracone 
The H. Russell Smith Foundation

In addition, we deeply appreciate the support 
provided by:

Gwen and Guil Babcock 
Laurie P. Barlow 
The Berman Bloch Family 
Judith and Stan Farrar 
Mary Grace and Peter D. Kaufman 
MS Property Company 
Dr. Louise Ritchie and Dr. Robert C. Ritchie 
Sally K. Wenzlau



19

• �California Community Foundation—$10,000 
at the direction of the Pfaffinger Foundation, 
in memory of Robert F. Erburu.

• �HSBC—$10,000 for support of educational 
programs. 

• �Christopher Isherwood Foundation—$10,000 
to support the Christopher Isherwood Foun-
dation Fellowship. 

• �J. W. and Ida M. Jameson Foundation— 
$10,000 for bus transportation to serve edu-
cational programs.

• �Los Angeles Railroad Heritage Foundation— 
$10,000 toward cataloging the Ernest Mar-
quez Collection.

• �Edward A. and Ai O. Shay Family Founda-
tion—$10,000 for educational programs.

• �Getty Foundation—$30,000 to support a 
matching gift from James F. Rothenberg.

• �Bank of America/Merrill Lynch—$25,000  
to sponsor the 2015 Mid-Autumn Moon  
Celebration.

• �Boone Foundation—$25,000 to train Pasadena 
Unified School District teachers in inquiry-
based learning methods.

• �Joseph Drown Foundation—$25,000 to sup-
port the Los Angeles Service Academy.

• �MacTon Foundation—$25,000 to digitize 
photography collections.

• �Tsan Tsung Memorial Foundation—$25,000 
for the Chinese Garden Phase II.

• �Philip and Muriel Berman Foundation— 
$20,000 to support the Calder Sculpture Fund.

• �Paul Hastings LLP—$20,000 to underwrite 
the Y. C. Hong family archive and exhibition.

• �Sky Vision Insurance Agency—$20,000 to 
support the Mid-Autumn Moon Celebration 
and Chinese Garden special projects.

• �Rachel Carson Center—$19,000 to support a 
fellowship at the Rachel Carson Center for 
Environment and Society.

• �New Century BMW—$15,000 to support 
Chinese Garden special projects.

• �Terra Foundation for the Arts—$15,000 in 
support of the “Copying from the Masters” 
program in connection with the exhibition 
“Samuel F. B. Morse’s Gallery of the Louvre 
and the Art of Invention.”

• �Desert Community Foundation—$15,000 
for the Biodiversity Rescue Fund, at the sug-
gestion of Anne Crotty.

• �Weingart Foundation—$24,000 to match 
gifts from Monica Lozano and the Rockefell-
er Foundation to catalog Spanish-language 
printed materials, and $10,000 for the Presi-
dent’s Discretionary Fund.

• �Rockefeller Foundation—$12,000 to match 
gifts from Monica Lozano and the Weingart 
Foundation to catalog Spanish-language 
printed materials.

• �California Community Foundation— 
$11,000, at the direction of the George A. V. 
Dunning Fund, to support Huntington Art 
Gallery operations.

• �Paul Mellon Centre—approximately $10,000 
to support the publication Facing the Text.

• �Airstream Los Angeles—$10,000 for Chi-
nese Garden special projects.

• �American Council of Learned Societies— 
$10,000 to support the Burkhardt Fellowship.

K. Whittier Foundation to catalog and con-
duct an oral history of California’s Whittier 
family, for a total of $200,000.

• �National Historical Publications and Records 
Commission of the National Archives 
—$108,000 for “Decoding the Civil War,” a 
crowdsourcing project to engage the public 
in deciphering Civil War telegrams.

• �Ray and Wyn Ritchie Evans Founda-
tion—$85,000 for the publication Japan: A 
Reverence for Beauty.

• �Los Angeles County—$55,000 to support 
cataloging collections management.

• �The Ahmanson Foundation—$50,000 for 
Library acquisitions.

• �Capital Group Companies—$50,000 to sup-
port the Youth and Family Continuing Edu-
cation and Corporate Partners.

• �Edison International—$50,000 to support 
Corporate Partners, Huntington Ball, and 
teacher training through the program “Cali-
fornia’s Place in American History.”

• �California Institute of Technology—$50,000 
from the Barbara Thom Trust to support sti-
pends for Huntington/Caltech fellows.

• �Sidney J. Weinberg Jr. Foundation—$50,000 
for communications and outreach activities.

• �Chapman Hanson Foundation—$50,000 for 
“Decoding the Civil War.”

• �Otis Booth Foundation—$50,000 to support 
the Ranch Garden.

• �The Frederick Hammersley Foundation— 
$44,000 for an upcoming exhibit.

• �Greenberg Foundation—$43,000 to support 
Blue Boy & Co: European Art at The Huntington.

• �E. Rhodes & Leona B. Carpenter Founda-
tion—$40,000 to support Phase II of the 
Chinese Garden.

• �George and Marcia Good Family Founda-
tion—$35,000 to underwrite the exhibition 
“The Artist’s Garden: American Impression-
ism and the Garden Movement, 1887–1920.” 

• �Dan Murphy Foundation—$35,000 for bus 
transportation to serve educational programs.

• �John Randolph Haynes and Dora Haynes 
Foundation—$42,000 to catalog the Ernest 
Marquez Collection and support the Hun-
tington/USC Institute for California and the 
West summer institute for California’s Place 
in American History.

• �Francis Bacon Foundation—$30,000 to sup-
port Bacon Research Fellows.

Huntington President Steve Koblik (middle) chaired this year’s 
Huntington Ball along with his wife, Kerstin (left). Former Hun-
tington President Robert Skotheim (right), and his wife, Na-
dine (seated), were honored guests.



20

PLANNED GIVING: GIFTS FOR THE 
FUTURE

• �Robert Essick, Huntington Overseer Emeritus, 
established a $300,000 charitable gift annui-
ty, his fifth at The Huntington, to support 
general operations.

• �An anonymous couple made an additional 
contribution of $115,000 to their charitable 
remainder trust, which will provide unre-
stricted support.

• �James Greaves established a more than 
$41,000 charitable gift annuity, to be added 
to the American Viewing Stone Resource 
Center Endowment, which supports the ac-
quisition, management, and preservation of a 
viewing stone collection.

ENDOWMENT

• �Anne and Jim Rothenberg endowed the posi-
tion of The Huntington’s Vice President for 
Financial Affairs with a pledge of $3 million.

• �Mario and Therese Molina donated in excess 
of $1 million to establish the Molina Fellow-
ship in the History of Medicine and Allied 
Sciences.

• �$1.2 million from the Estate of Loran and 
Eva Whitelock, including $1 million for The 
Loran and Eva Whitelock Endowment for 
Cycad Cultivation, Conservation, and Re-
search, and $200,000 for the care of the White-
lock cycad collection.

• �$815,000 from the estate of Elise Mudd Mar-
vin, which was added to the Elise Mudd 
Marvin Fund for Institutional Support.

• �Through their estates, the late Huntington 
readers Doyce B. Nunis Jr. and Ernest P. 
Mauk Jr. made a gift of $725,000, which es-
tablished two endowed funds:

	 ° �The E. Peter Mauk Jr./Doyce B. Nunis Jr. 
Research Fund, for research fellowships to 
scholars working in the fields of American 
history and/or American drama. 

	 ° �The E. Peter Mauk Jr./Doyce B. Nunis Jr. 
Library Fund for the purchase of books, 
manuscripts, and research materials related 
to American history and American drama, 
as well as for the cataloguing of papers do-
nated by Doyce B. Nunis Jr.

• �The estate of Donald Duke made an addi-
tional distribution of $250,000 for the pres-
ervation, cataloging, and housing of the 
Donald Duke Railroad Collection.

• �The Robert and Adelaide May Zimmerman 
Memorial Fund made quarterly distribu-
tions, $42,500 in total, toward the endow-
ment to support general operations. 

• �The I. N. and Susanna H. Van Nuys Founda-
tion made ongoing endowment distributions 
of more than $20,000 in support of the 
Schweppe Library Fund for the acquisition of 
books, manuscripts, and art.

• �The estate of Evelyn Zillgitt made a final dis-
tribution of $18,000, which was added to the 
Zillgitt Bonsai Court Maintenance Fund. 

• �Marty and Bruce Coffey continued their 
annual support of $12,500 for a research fel-
lowship in their name via their charitable 
lead trust. 

THE CHINESE GARDEN
Generous donors gave a total of $1.5 million 
to support Phase II construction of the 
Chinese Garden. To date, we have raised 
roughly $14 million of the $22 million needed 
to complete Phase II. Most significantly, The 
Huntington received a $1 million gift from 
Wan-go Weng, in memory of Virginia Dzung 
Weng. Mr. Weng’s calligraphy graces the 
entrance on the doorway plaque that bears 
the name of Liu Fang Yuan 流芳園 itself.

Four major structures remain to be built to 
complete the garden. These are the Flowery 
Brush Studio art gallery, Verdant Microcosm 
(including a penjing garden), Garden of Falling 
Petals, and Star-Gazing Tower, the last of 
which will sit atop the western hilltop ridge of 
the garden, affording a view of Mount Wilson 
Observatory in the distance. 

The year was punctuated by special events 
and celebrations that showcased Liu Fang 
Yuan as a wonderful backdrop for Chinese 
cultural and educational programs. In 
October, The Huntington hosted its fourth 
Mid-Autumn Moon Celebration, which 
attracted about 1,200 Premier-level Members 
and Chinese Garden donors who enjoyed 
Chinese and other Asian foods, beverages, 
and performances under the light of the 
harvest moon. New corporate sponsors—including New Century BMW/Airstream Los 
Angeles—joined returning sponsor Merrill Lynch/Bank of America.

In the spring, we partnered with the Ministry of Culture of the People’s Republic of China to 
welcome performers from Guangdong Province for The Huntington’s Chinese New Year 
cultural celebrations, sponsored by East West Bank. 

Artists from Guangdong Province, China, helped to cele-
brate the Lunar New Year with demonstrations of ancient 
crafts, including paper cutting, jewelry making, and em-
broidery (seen here).
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THE HUNTINGTON SUCCESSORS

Donors are recognized when their cumulative gifts exceed $100,000, as well as when their total giving reaches $500,000, $1 million, $5 million, 
and $10 million. This year’s list includes more than 500 Successors—comprised of individuals, foundations, corporations, and government agen-
cies—who have given more than $800 million in cash gifts, grants, bequests, and gifts to the collections. This year’s list of Successors celebrates 
cumulative contributions as of Dec. 31, 2014, as Successors’ gifts are based on the calendar year.

NEW SUCCESSORS
Anonymous
Philip and Muriel Berman Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. George Byrne
In memory of Dr. Wen-Hua Chang:  
	� C. Joseph and Shwu-Nuo H. Chang,  

Dr. Frederick Chang, Patrick Chang 
Confidence Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Donald A. Cotton
William R. Current Estate
Dedeaux Family/Dart Entities
Jonathan and Karin Fielding
Frederick Hammersley Foundation
The Christopher Isherwood Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Frederick D. Johnson Jr.
Harvey and Ellen Knell
The Li Family: Hailin, Xiaoyan, Xiang, Han, 
	 and Irwin
Estate of Dr. Patricia Ann Lowry
Dr. and Mrs. J. Mario Molina
Mr. and Mrs. J. Leland Mothershead III
Mr. David Netto
Mr. and Mrs. Laurence H. Pretty
Eileen White Read and Charles C. Read
David and Kathleen Rips
Carole Shammas and Darryl Holter
Trader Joe’s Company
Mary and Michael Veselich
Dr. and Mrs. Jack Waltman
Estate of Eva and Loran Whitelock
The Zhang Family: Simon, Claire, Tiffany, 
	 and Maggie

SUCCESSORS ASCENDING TO 
HIGHER LEVELS
Mrs. William W. Escherich
Mr. and Mrs. Gordon Fish
Gabrielle Jungels-Winkler
Jennie Kiang
Mona and Frank Mapel
Mary and Malcolm McDuffie
Margot and Mitch Milias
Jeremy M. Norman
Ronus Foundation
Leslie A. and Nancy J. Waite
Wan-go and Virginia Weng

CUMULATIVE GIVING TOTALING 
MORE THAN $10 MILLION
The Ahmanson Foundation
MaryLou and George Boone
Frances Lasker Brody
Burndy Library
Estate of Patricia D. Cassat
Dibner Institute/Dibner Fund
Deborah and Jay Last
Nancy and Charles Munger
Mr. Peter A. Paanakker
The Rose Hills Foundation
Anne and Jim Rothenberg

The Virginia Steele Scott Foundation
Estate of Robert Shapazian
Geneva and Charles Thornton

CUMULATIVE GIVING TOTALING 
MORE THAN $5 MILLION
Anonymous (2)
Mr. and Mrs. R. Stanton Avery
Gwen and Guil Babcock
Estate of Mrs. Harry A. Batten
Dr. and Mrs. Peter S. Bing
Lloyd and Margit Cotsen
Dr. Robert Essick
The Essick Foundation Inc.
Friends of The Huntington
Heather and Paul Haaga
The Fletcher Jones Foundation
W. M. Keck Foundation
Hannah and Russel Kully
The Andrew W. Mellon Foundation
Bradford M. and Christine J. Mishler
Michael Monroe and Deane Weinberg
National Endowment for the Humanities
The Kenneth T. and 
	 Eileen L. Norris Foundation
The Ralph M. Parsons Foundation
Loren and Frances Rothschild
Weingart Foundation

CUMULATIVE GIVING OF $1 MILLION 
TO $5 MILLION
Estate of Dr. and Mrs. Clarence H. Albaugh
The Annenberg Foundation
Anonymous (3)
ARCO Foundation
Associated Foundations Inc.
The Francis Bacon Foundation
June and Merle Banta
Mr. and Mrs. Peter K. Barker
Olin and Ann Barrett
Mr. and Mrs. Andrew F. Barth
The H. N. and Frances C. Berger Foundation
Julia B. Bodman
Dorothy Collins Brown
Dr. and Mrs. George Byrne 
California State Library
Capital Group Companies, Inc.
Susan and Stephen Chandler
The Cheng Family Foundation
Andrew and Peggy Cherng and  
	 the Panda Restaurant Group
The Christensen Fund
Marilyn and Don Conlan
Paul and Kay Conrad
Mrs. Homer D. Crotty
Judith and Bryant Danner
Estate of Elizabeth and Daniel Donno 
Mr. Donald Duke
Estate of Dorothy Dumke Elliott and 
	 Glenn Dumke

Mr. George A. V. Dunning and  
	 Mr. Robert M. Marino
Frances Crandall Dyke
East West Bank
Edison International
Mr. and Mrs. Roger Engemann
Mr. and Mrs. Robert F. Erburu
Mr. and Mrs. Stanley F. Farrar
Mr. and Mrs. Gordon Fish
Estate of Howard “Tucker” Fleming Jr. and 
	 Charles H. Williamson
Sam Francis Foundation
Estate of Mary Isabel Fry
Victor Gail and Tom Oxford
J. Paul Getty Trust
Mildred Browning Green
The John Randolph Haynes and  
	 Dora Haynes Foundation
Estate of George W. Hoffman
Mary B. Taylor Hunt
Claudia P. Huntington and Marshall Miller
Mr. and Mrs. William H. Hurt
The James Irvine Foundation
Estate of Patricia Geary Johnson
Mr. and Mrs. Earle M. Jorgensen
Margery and Maurice Katz
Mr. and Mrs. Peter D. Kaufman
John Haskell Kemble
Kennedy Galleries, Inc.
Cynthia Lasker
June and Simon K. C. Li
Los Angeles Times
Mona and Frank Mapel
Mr. Steve Martin
Elise Mudd Marvin Trust
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth S. McCormick
Margaret McKenzie
Mr. and Mrs. Edwards H. Metcalf
Margot and Mitch Milias
Mr. and Mrs. Warren D. Mohr
Dr. and Mrs. J. Mario Molina
Nancy Cook Moll
Mong Family Trust
Mrs. Melvin S. Morse
Mr. and Mrs. C. C. Moseley
Frank and Toshie Mosher
Peter W. and Merle Mullin
Ms. Wendy Munger and  
	 Mr. Leonard L. Gumport
The National Science Foundation
Mr. Wallace Libby Neff
Douglas and Elizabeth Nickerson
Mr. and Mrs. J. Randolph Richards
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen E. Rogers
Ronus Foundation
The Seaver Institute
William and Mary Jeannette Selwyn
Mr. and Mrs. E. L. Shannon Jr.
Judy Yin Shih and Joel Axelrod
Mr. and Mrs. H. Russell Smith

H. Russell Smith Foundation
Mr. Stewart Smith and  
	 Ms. Robin A. Ferracone
Mr. and Mrs. Alan G. Stanford
The Starr Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. John A. Sturgeon
Mr. and Mrs. Philip V. Swan
Mr. and Mrs. L. Sherman Telleen
Barbara Thom
The Times Mirror Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence R. Tollenaere
Mr. and Mrs. David T. Traitel
Leslie A. and Nancy J. Waite
The H. R. Wang Family 
Wells Fargo
Wan-go and Virginia Weng
Estate of Eva and Loran Whitelock
Mr. and Mrs. Norman B. Williamson
Mr. and Mrs. Warren Brooks Williamson
The Beth and Wilbur Woo  
	 Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Robert E. Wycoff
Gene and Billie Yeager
Robert Zimmerman and Adelaide May 
	 Zimmerman Memorial Fund

CUMULATIVE GIVING OF $500,000 TO 
$999,999
Anonymous
Avery-Tsui Foundation
Don Bachardy
Elizabeth Hay Bechtel
Mr. and Mrs. Robert P. Beckham Jr.
Anne Bradulov
Linda Lee Bukowski
Jonathan D. Bulkley 
Estate of Octavia E. Butler
Mrs. William B. Coberly Jr.
Marty and Bruce Coffey
Miss Anne Lloyd Crotty
Rosario Curletti
Mr. and Mrs. Trent R. Dames
Mr. Kelvin L. Davis 
Sandra and Bram Dijkstra
Dana and David Dornsife
Mrs. William W. Escherich
Dr. and Mrs. Gilbert S. Farfel
Dr. James J. and Sue Femino
Gloria Gartz
Mr. W. K. Glikbarg
Mr. and Mrs. Robert C. Goldsmith
Lester and Wilma Harrell
The Hearst Foundations
Mr. William H. Helfand
Estate of Elwood “Dutch” and  
	 Marion L. Holland
Mr. and Mrs. Ming Hsieh
Mr. Huang Nubo and the Zhongkun Group
Estate of Grace Hubble
Institute of Museum and Library Services



22

Barbara and William Hyland 
IBM
The Christopher Isherwood Foundation
Wilbur R. Jacobs Family
Elizabeth Bixby Janeway Foundation
The Janin Family
Eva, Michael, Aaron, Morgan and Nathan Jen
Mr. and Mrs. Frederick D. Johnson Jr.
Mrs. J. Stanley Johnson
Roger and Tony Johnston 
Drs. Thomas and Louise Jones 
Mr. and Mrs. Stuart L. Kadison
The Kaul Foundation 
Martha Hall Kilroe
Mr. and Mrs. Robert G. Kirby
Harvey and Ellen Knell
Kerstin and Steven Koblik
Mr. and Mrs. Jerry Kohl
Diana Korzenik
Samuel H. Kress Foundation
Sze-Ern and Margaret Kuo
Ms. Carolyne T. Lacy and Mr. Julian Schwab
Lampadia Foundation
The Langham Huntington Hotel, Pasadena
Walter Lantz Foundation
Estate of Mrs. Frederick G. Larkin
Mr. and Mrs. Melvin Larson
David and Ellen Lee
The Henry L. Lee Jr. Family
Michael, Michelle, and Rachel Lee
Dr. Oscar and Trudy Lemer 
Roger Levenson
The Li Family: Hailin, Xiaoyan, Xiang, Han, 
	 and Irwin
Mr. and Mrs. John R. Light
The Lin Family: William, Lucy, Stephanie, 
	 and Dennis
Ethan and Joanne Lipsig
The Ralph B. Lloyd Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Francis D. Logan
Charmian Kittredge London
Los Angeles Times Family Fund
Mr. and Mrs. Jon B. Lovelace
Estate of Dr. Patricia Ann Lowry
Henry Luce Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Donald Macfarland
MacTon Foundation 
Randell L. Makinson
Mr. and Mrs. Charles W. Malouf
Mr. and Mrs. Marlow V. Marrs
Otis “Dock” Marston
Mr. and Mrs. Al Martinez
Edward A. Mayers
McCormick Tribune Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. T. M. McDaniel Jr.
Mr. Larry W. McFarland and  
	 Mr. M. Todd Williamson
The Steven and Kelly McLeod  
	 Family Foundation
Giles W. Mead Jr.
Mrs. Elizabeth Medearis
Mr. and Mrs. Paul Mellon
Debby and Lary Mielke
Mr. and Mrs. Charles D. Miller
Mr. and Mrs. O’Malley M. Miller
Mr. and Mrs. Herschel K. Mitchell
Molina Healthcare Inc.
J. P. Morgan & Co. Incorporated
Marlis Haas Moser

Harriet Doerr
Mrs. Edward L. Doheny
Betty and Brack Duker
Mr. and Mrs. James K. Dunton
The Durfee Foundation
The Honorable Edmund D. Edelman
Gail and Jim Ellis
Karen and Eric Ende
Mr. and Mrs. Paul A. Erskine
Mahlon Everhart Jr.
Alix B. Fargo
Farmers Insurance Group
Mr. and Mrs. Max Farrand
Blaine and Lynda Fetter
Alisa M. Fickewirth and John M. Fickewirth
Jonathan and Karin Fielding 
Mr. Michael H. Finnell
First Interstate Bank of California Foundation
Ms. Beverly Erickson Fitzgerald
The Margaret and Thomas Fleming Family
Estate of Mr. French R. Fogle
The Forest Lawn Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Dale E. Fowler
Ms. Angela Fu, Christopher Lam, and 
	 Mathew Lam 
Fundación Ramón Areces
Mr. and Mrs. James M. Galbraith
The Gas Company, a Sempra Energy Utility
The Gilder Lehrman Institute of  
	 American History
Mrs. Constance Glenn
Golden State Bonsai Federation
George C. and Marcia Good
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas Goodan
Mr. and Mrs. Richard A. Grant
Dorothy Green
Gardner Grout Foundation
James Hague and Family
The Hon. Kenneth H. Hahn
The Hon. Cynthia H. Hall
Kelsey Browne Hall
Ruth Rowland Hall
Frederick Hammersley Foundation
Prof. Paul H. Hardacre
Col. Warren and Lois Hartman
Margaret and Will Hearst
Mr. and Mrs. Randolph Heartfield
Mr. and Mrs. H. Michael Hecht
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Henigson
Mr. and Mrs. Warner W. Henry
Dr. and Mrs. H. Herscher and Family
The William and Flora Hewlett Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Boyd Higgins
Boyd and Mary Kay Hight 
Estate of Dorothy and Kenneth Hill
Hillinger Family Trust
Historical Society of Southern California
David Hockney
Ms. Karen A. Hoffman and  
	 Mr. James Edward Hoffman
Hunt and Janet Holladay
The Hong Family
HSBC
Chang-Huan (C. H.), Haily Hsueh, and Family 
Marian Prentice Huntington Schinske, 
	� Elizabeth Gompertz Huntington, Julie 

Bates Huntington de Polo – John 
Brockway Huntington Foundation

Bill and Becky Hwang

John Boland
The Otis Booth Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. William H. Borthwick
The James G. Boswell Foundation
The Braun Foundation
Mrs. Ulric Bannister Bray
Lynn and Douglas Brengel
Mr. and Mrs. William C. Bryant
Mr. and Mrs. John E. Bryson
Mr. Warren E. Buffett
Dr. and Mrs. James C. Caillouette
Estate of Phillip and Mary E. Caldwell
Dr. and Mrs. Richard Call
Mrs. Elanne C. Callahan
Capital Research & Management, 
	 Jonathan B. Lovelace
Patricia Barry Carbonell
Carter Hawley Hale Stores Inc.
George and Patricia Cassat
Dr. Arthur B. Cecil and  
	 Mrs. Henrietta Smith Cecil
Mr. and Mrs. Kellogg Chan
Chandis Securities Company
Milton and Rosalind Chang
In memory of Dr. Wen-Hua Chang:  
	� C. Joseph and Shwu-Nuo H. Chang,  

Dr. Frederick Chang, Patrick Chang 
Arnold and Lorraine Chanin
Chapman Hanson Foundation
Margaret F. Leong and Michael P. Checca
Fred Y. and Sarah W. Chen
Mr. and Mrs. Raymond Kum-Nin Cheng
Chevron USA Inc.
China Shipping (Group) Company
Thomas Chu-Tsen Chiu, M.D., and  
	 Mrs. Sue Chiu
Christie’s
Leo and Ivy Chu
City National Bank
Confidence Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Theodore G. Congdon
Michael J. Connell Foundation
Joseph and Robert Cornell  
	 Memorial Foundation
COSCO – China Ocean Shipping  
	 (Group) Company
Mr. and Mrs. Donald A. Cotton
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph H. Coulombe
Norma and Gary Cowles
Margaret Cressaty
Ida Hull Lloyd Crotty Foundation
William R. Current Estate
Mr. and Mrs. Austin T. Cushman
Jeff Danziger
Robert Jensen Dau
Arthur Vining Davis Foundations
Ms. Nancy Davis
Estate of Mr. and Mrs. Richard D. Davis
Shelby Cullom Davis Foundation
Susan M. Davis
Robert A. Day and Milton C. Malkin
Dedeaux Family/Dart Entities
The Gladys Krieble Delmas Foundation 
Estate of Virginia M. De Nubila
Lois and Bill Derry
Mark and Rachel Dibner – The Argus Fund
Mr. and Mrs. James F. Dickason
Mary W. T. Dickinson
The Walt Disney Company

Mr. and Mrs. George D. Jagels Sr.
J. W. and Ida M. Jameson Foundation
Estate of Mr. William G. Johnston
Estate of Sandra Jones
Scott Jordan
Gabrielle Jungels-Winkler
Jennie Kiang
Mr. and Mrs. P. James Kirby
Harry Bronson & Edith R. Knapp Foundation 
The Kresge Foundation
Constance Lodge
Mr. Peter E. Marble
Mary and Malcolm McDuffie
Giles W. & Elise G. Mead Foundation
Diane and Trevor Morris
Mr. and Mrs. W. B. Munro
Dan Murphy Foundation
National Endowment for the Arts
David and Suki Nax
Jeremy M. Norman
Estate of Dr. Doyce B. Nunis Jr. and  
	 Dr. Ernest P. Mauk Jr.
Paul Hastings LLP
Ted and Lori Samuels
San Marino League
Linda and John Seiter
Lisa and Tim Sloan
Dr. and Mrs. Robert T. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. William French Smith
Mr. Harold C. Snyder and Mr. William Kleese
Lois F. Spaulding
Barbara and William Steele Jr.
I. N. and Susanna H. Van Nuys Foundation
Ruth C. Von Platen
Mr. and Mrs. William D. Wenzlau
The Zhang Family: Sophia, Jeffrey, Caren, 
	 and Johnny
Mrs. Evelyn Ruth Zillgitt

CUMULATIVE GIVING OF $100,000 TO 
$499,999
Dr. and Mrs. George Abdo
Mr. Ashwin and Dr. Sushma Adarkar 
Air China
Dr. and Mrs. David Alexander
Ameron
Anonymous (6)
Michael D. Antonovich/Los Angeles County
Myrtle L. Atkinson Foundation
Avery Dennison Corporation
R. Stanton Avery Foundation
Sidney and Diana Avery
BP
R. C. Baker Foundation
The Bank of America Foundation
Estate of Marion M. Bateman
Elizabeth and Stephen Bechtel Jr. Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. Arnold O. Beckman
Milo W. Bekins Foundation
Chris and George Benter
Philip and Muriel Berman Foundation
Binder Foundation
John A. and Elva A. Bishop and Family
Mr. Alan J. Bloch and Ms. Nancy M. Berman
Fred and Diane Blum
Mr. and Mrs. David A. Blume
BNY/Mellon
The Boeing Company
Mary Jane Boggs
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Mary and Michael Veselich
Abigail von Schlegell
Ms. Bettie E. Wagner
Mr. Albert Wahrhaftig
Dr. and Mrs. Jack Waltman
Dr. Robert Wark
Mr. and Mrs. Robert S. Warren
Msgr. Francis J. Weber
Mr. and Mrs. Sidney Weinberg Jr.
Estate of Elizabeth Kite Weissgerber
Mr. J. Patrick Whaley and Ms. Lynda Jenner
White & Case LLP
Mr. and Mrs. Ian L. White-Thomson
Mr. and Mrs. Frank S. Whiting
Lily Y. Wong
Richard and Bobbie Woo
Sara Bard Field Wood Family
Dr. Peter Ping-Yuan Wu and  
	 Mrs. Chong Hong Wu
Mr. Ping Chih Wu and Mrs. Norma S. Wu
J. Yang and Family Foundation
Tony and Josephine Yeh
Mr. Hubert Yen and Ms. Teresa Yen
Kwang-I and Ellen Yu
Marcia and Donald Yust
The Zhang Family: Simon, Claire, Tiffany, 
	 and Maggie
Dr. Cecile Zinberg
Mr. and Mrs. Curt J. Zoller 

Mr. and Mrs. Donald Slager
Estate of Helen Drake Smetz
The Stanley Smith Horticultural Trust
Nancy and Dick Spelke
Louise de Bevers Spetnagel
Harry and Cookie Spiro
Spring Street Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Henry Spurgeon
Michael St. Clair
Mr. and Mrs. Dennis Stanfill
Harry and Grace Steele Foundation
Susan Steinhauser and Daniel Greenberg
Mr. and Mrs. Charles Stephens
Mr. and Mrs. James O. Stolaroff
The Strugar Family Foundation
Mei-Chu Hsu Sun
Mr. Philip A. Swan
Louise and Barry Taper
Terra Foundation for the Arts
Betsy and Joe Terrazas
The Tewasart Family
Texaco Inc.
Tiffany & Co.
Martha and Leroy Tolles
Trader Joe’s Company 
Mr. Donald M. Treiman
Frederick Jackson Turner Family
Mr. and Mrs. James R. Ukropina
Union Bank of California
Unocal Corporation
U.S. Department of Education
ValleyCrest Landscape Companies

Jane and Kris Popovich 
Mrs. Joan Singleton Prestine
Estate of Jean F. Preston
Mr. and Mrs. Laurence H. Pretty
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Principal Financial Group
Florence M. Quinn
Eileen White Read and Charles C. Read
Mr. and Mrs. Lynn P. Reitnouer
Erika and Ken Riley
David and Kathleen Rips
Mr. and Mrs. Jud O. Roberts
Robinsons-May
Mr. and Mrs. Richard P. Roe
Carol and Steve Rountree
Gary, Brenda, and Harrison Ruttenberg
Santa Anita Foundation
Estate of Kendrick A. Schlatter
Dr. and Mrs. Warren G. Schlinger
Dr. John A. Schutz
Scudder Charitable Foundation
The Hon. and Mrs. R. Carlton Seaver
Security Pacific Foundation
Melvin R. Seiden and Janine Luke
Millie Louise Settle
Carole Shammas and Darryl Holter 
Irving Shepard
The Shorb Family
Dorothy L. Shubin and Gregory A. Pieschala
Ms. R. Gabriele S. Silten
Mr. John R. Singleton
L. J. & Mary C. Skaggs Foundation

Mr. George E. Moss Sr.
Roscoe Moss Company
Mr. and Mrs. J. Leland Mothershead III
Mrs. Linda Lo and Dr. Carl Moy,  
	 United Chinese Television 
Estate of Drs. Estella K. and Karol J. Mysels 
Dr. Earl F. Nation 
Mr. and Mrs. Robert H. Neithart
Nestle USA Inc.
Mr. David Netto
Norman J. Neuerburg
Henry Mayo Newhall Foundation 
Newhall Land & Farming Company
Estate of Frank Q. Newton
Northern Trust Bank
Northrop Grumman Corporation
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald L. Olson
Eugenie Omberg
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen R. Onderdonk
Ms. Mary Elizabeth Crotty O’Reilly
Ms. Joy K. Otte
The David and Lucile Packard Foundation
George Charles Page
Mr. and Mrs. James R. Page
Richard Palmer
Donald L. Parker
Pasadena Area Residential Aid
Gen. George S. Patton Jr. Family
Carol B. Pearson
Constance M. Perkins
Mr. and Mrs. Charles D. Perry Jr.
Peggy Phelps

CHINESE GARDEN DONORS

Generous donors continued to fund special events and programs; establish endowments for education, opera-
tions, and maintenance; and support the construction of Phase II of the Garden of Flowing Fragrance.

Sara and George Abdo
Mr. and Mrs. Donald J. Alschuler
Daniel and Toby Bernstein
Ms. Claudia G. Brown
E. Rhodes & Leona B. Carpenter Foundation
In loving memory of David Tong Chan: 
	� The Catherine K. Chan Family: Ada, 

Berda, Chris, Baldwin, and Wanda Chan, 
and Families

The Chang Family: Hollis, Linda, Blair,  
	 and Brent
Mr. Henry Chang
In memory of Dr. Wen-Hua Chang: 
	� C. Joseph and Shwu-Nuo H. Chang,  

Dr. Frederick Chang, Patrick Chang
Margaret F. Leong and Michael P. Checca
Mr. Hunter Chen
Mr. Larry and Mrs. Ying Chen
Minnie and Hon-Pong Cheng
Mr. and Mrs. Raymond K. Cheng
China Society of Southern California
Mr. and Mrs. John Chou
The William and Jeanette Chow Family: 
	� Joyce, Wilson, Jessica, Jacqueline Fong 

Yu, and Wyatt Fong De Chow
In memory of Joseph F. and  
	 Roberta A. Dammer
Mr. and Mrs. William Firchau
Edwin and Paula Fong Biggers, Matthew,  
	 and Jade Fong

Mr. and Mrs. Henry N. Foster
Mr. and Mrs. Robert E. Ham Sr.
The He Family: Stephen, Hong, and Annette
P. Emmy Hernandez, J.D.
Mr. and Mrs. Nowland C. Hong
Ms. Lucia Hsieh
Henry and Myriam Hu
Ms. Kathleen E. Jolly
Jennie Kiang and HYI
Carrie Kolb Foundation
Korean Cultural Center
Ms. Emily Kwan
David and Ellen Lee and the Lee Family
Eric, Suzie, Isaac, and Terrence Lee
Dr. Edward K. and Ginny O. Lew
Ms. Cynthia Li
Hsin-Lee Lin and Ling-Huei T. Lin
Ethan and Joanne Lipsig
Mr. Ping S. Lit and Mrs. Wai Ching Lit
Fong Liu
Marlynn Ma
Bob and Lana Mcdonell
Helen McGregor
Edward and Gisela Moriarty
In loving memory of our beloved mother/ 
	� grandmother, Mrs. Suk-Fong Chan Mui: 

Mrs. Lai-Wah Mui Chen, Dr. Peter W. 
Chen, Dr. Ophelia M. Chen, Dr. Audrey 
M. Chen, and Dr. Kevin G. Chan

Mei-Lee Ney

Mr. Brian D. Phillips and Ms. Hsiang-Rong Yang
Phillip T. Pi
Mr. and Mrs. Geoff Robertson
Mr. Irving Rosenbluth and  
	 Mrs. Hilde Shubin Rosenbluth
Mr. Otto A. Rotach
Ms. Virginia Shoda
Ms. Betty Shon
Yee-Jen and Alice Shuai
Christina Singleton and  
	 Celene Qingyun Mednick
Ernie So and Family
Ms. Sarah Soifer
In memory of parents Pang Kwok Sui and 
	� Wong Sui Fong and Profs. Charles 

(Tom) Sawyer, Ph.D., Donald C. 
Johnson, Ph.D., and E. B. Brown, Ph.D.; 
Chung Ning Pang, M.D., Katie R. Pang, 
M.D., and Winnie K. Pang, M.D.

Dr. Hwei-Chih Cheng Sun, Dr. and Mrs. 
	� Richard Sun, Dr. and Mrs. George Sun, 

Dr. Christina Sun
Mr. Paul T. Sze and Mrs. Margaret Y. Sze
Robert W. Tam and Julie Wong Tam
In memory of Har T. Tong: Sig, Rainbow, 
	 Adrienne, and Andrew Tong
Tsan Tsung Memorial Foundation— 
	 Jack and Grace Hou
Ms. Karen Tseng
Eddie and Betty Wang

Barbara and Kenneth Warner
Wan-go and Virginia Weng
The Wilbur and Beth Woo  
	 Family Foundation
Sophia Su-hwei Yen
In loving memory of Mr. and Mrs. James 
	� K. Yin: The Timothy Liu Family
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence S. Young
Chi and Rosa Zee
Zee Family Foundation
The Zhang Family: Simon, Claire, Tiffany, 
	 and Maggie

In Chinese tradition, a full moon symbolizes 
reunion and togetherness. Huntington Mem-
bers and friends gathered in the Garden of 
Flowing Fragrance to enjoy the annual Mid-
Autumn Moon Celebration.
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THE ARABELLA AND HENRY HUNTINGTON HERITAGE SOCIETY

The Heritage Society honors those who have made a commitment to the future of The Huntington by including the institution in their estate plans, 
whether through charitable gift annuities, charitable remainder trusts, promised gifts of collections, or other planned gifts.

William and Gisela Adams
Dr. Catherine Allgor and Dr. Andrew S. Jacobs
Brenda and David Anderson
Cecile M. Archibald
Richards Barger
Mr. and Mrs. Olin Barrett
Mary Lillie Florence Bassel
Dr. Lowell John Bean
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Beckham
Rosey Bell
Shirley Birosik
Mrs. George N. Boone
Dr. Beverly Boyd
Christy Snyder Bradley
Mr. Richard M. Bressler
Sandra J. Brodie
Mr. and Mrs. Jerry Brunkala
Mrs. William C. Bryant

Martha R. Burkard
Nancy Call
Ms. Birch Carlson
Dr. Cindy and Mr. John Carson
Mr. Burke E. Casari
Dr. and Mrs. Arnold Chanin

Mr. and Mrs. Raymond Cheng
Mr. and Mrs. LeRoy E. Christensen
Bill and Jodi Clark
Mr. and Mrs. Edward E. Clark
Marty and Bruce Coffey
Diana and Robert Coleman
Dorothy Crowder
Saralyn R. Daly
Nancy Davis
Mrs. Richard D. Davis *
Mrs. Ruby Davis
Ms. Susan M. Davis
Ms. Cristine Marie Del Amo
Mrs. William D. Derry
Barbara L. Donagan
Jim and Fernanda Dorsey
Mr. and Mrs. John A. Dundas II
Ms. Tooey Durning
William Eagleton
Frank W. Ellis
Mr. and Mrs. Edward W. Engs III
Mrs. William W. Escherich
Dr. Robert N. Essick
Dr. and Mrs. Gilbert Farfel
Judith Fong
John and Sandi Fox
Mr. and Mrs. James M. Galbraith
Mr. and Mrs. Michael A. Gallucci
Floyd E. Garner
Anita and Tony Garnier
Mr. and Mrs. Robert C. Goldsmith
Mr. and Mrs. Richard A. Grant Jr.
David and Cathy Grimes
Mr. and Mrs. John R. Gurley
Heather and Paul Haaga
Mr. and Mrs. William W. Haefliger
Harald R. Hahn
Niklas L. Hallberg and Suzanne Kyro
Mr. Mark S. Harmsen
Col. Warren and Lois Hartman
P. Haycock
Joan Henderson
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Henigson
Judith Herman
Mr. Ernest Hetherington
Caryl C. Hinckley
Susan H. and David L. Hirsch III
Mr. John Chandler Hoffman
Tania and Eric Idle
Ms. Judith L. Jacobus
Ms. Debra J. Jigamian
Ms. Carol Jones
Ms. Valerie E. Lyons and Mr. Jay Judson
Carita Kadison
Dr. Stephen A. Kanter
Mr. and Mrs. Maurice H. Katz
Ms. Peggy Kelley
Mrs. Dwight M. Kendall
Kerstin and Steve Koblik
Dr. and Mrs. Leslie Koepplin
Mr. Boris and Mrs. Kathryn Korin
Russel I. and Hannah Kully
Dr. Carlos M. Larralde, Ph.D.

David T. Leary
Mr. Jeffrey Lewis
Lisa Doreen Lipton
Mr. and Mrs. Warren Loomis
Richard G. Lottridge
Cris and Walt Lutz
Mr. Joseph Malletta
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen T. Mann
Ms. Beverly C. Marksbury
Mr. Ralph Allen Massey
Claire Huntington McCloud
Ms. Nancy McCurley
Mrs. Malcolm McDuffie
Lauren McFarlan
Iris L. McKinley
Carolyn L. Miller
John D. Miller
Ms. Linda G. Moore
Gisela Moriarty
Ms. Andrea Morseburg
Suzy Moser
Frank Mosher and Toshie Mosher
Mr. George E. Moss Sr.
Kathleen Mulligan
Peter Mullin
Dr. and Mrs. Robert W. Nafie
Mrs. David Nax
Mrs. Mei-Lee Ney
Mr. and Mrs. DeWitt C. Nugent
Dr. Paul Orth
Jean B. Osher
Mr. Martin Page
Mr. Courtland Palmer
Jane Palmer
Nan Rae and Charles Parker
Mrs. George E. Parsons Jr.
George C. Patterson
Mr. and Mrs. John Payzant
Kristy and James Peters
Peggy Phelps
Dr. George H. Phillips
Judith Sterling Plunkett
Mr. and Mrs. Howard Privett
Juliette Bonynge Quinn and John H. Quinn
Trudy L. Ralph
Ms. Valarie A. Reinl
Mrs. J. Randolph Richards
Dr. Louise Ritchie and Dr. Robert C. Ritchie
Mr. and Mrs. Jud O. Roberts
Ms. Sue Rogowski
Dr. Andrew Rolle
Mr. and Mrs. Samuel Rozenek
Mr. and Mrs. Phillip Schlosberg
Mr. and Mrs. Howard B. Schow
Marcia and Paul Secord
William and Mary-Jeannette Selwyn
Mr. Gilbert T. Sewall
Dr. Richard C. Sha
Mrs. E. L. Shannon Jr.
Mr. Harvey M. Shapiro
Ms. Judith Shaw
Ms. Rebecca Shea and Mr. Hoyt Sze
Mona and Randy Shulman

Mrs. William Sidenfaden
Tim K. Siu, M.D., and Annie C. Siu, D.D.S.
Lisa and Tim Sloan
Linda L. Smith
Dr. and Mrs. Robert T. Smith
Harold C. Snyder and William Kleese
Ms. Alison D. Sowden
Peggy Spear
Mr. and Mrs. Chester Specht
Dennis Stanfill
Mr. and Mrs. Alan G. Stanford
Mrs. William Steele
Robert H. Stiefel
Mr. and Mrs. John A. Sturgeon
Sandra Ann Suycott
Mr. Philip V. Swan
Mr. and Mrs. L. Sherman Telleen
Mary H. Tollenaere
Mrs. E. Leroy Tolles
Martha Doerr Toppin
Eleanor Hunt Tucker
Mr. and Mrs. David G. Turner
Samuel J. Uretsky and Barbara L. Resnick
Ms. Kimberley Valentine
Huibert W. Venema
Dr. and Mrs. Jack Waltman
Mr. Ronald E. Wardwell
Mr. and Mrs. Robert S. Warren
Msgr. Francis J. Weber
Mr. and Mrs. Ian Whitcomb
Mrs. Edward Whittington
Mr. Donald C. Whitton
Mrs. J. Clifford Willcox
Joseph A. Wittreich
Brian L. Woods
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Wycoff
Dr. and Mrs. Duke Yamashita
Mrs. E. Eugene Yeager
Dr. Cecile Zinberg
Linda D. Zinn

* Deceased during 2014–15

A perch on the south terrace of the Huntington 
Art Gallery makes a perfect spot for reading.
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SOCIETY OF FELLOWS

Gifts from the Society of Fellows help sustain the institution’s annual operating budget. Fellows participate not just in the fiscal well-being of  
The Huntington, but also as volunteers, docents, committee members, Overseers, and Trustees.

HUNTINGTON CIRCLE PLATINUM 
($100,000 AND ABOVE)
Avery and Andrew F. Barth ^
Lloyd and Margit Cotsen
Heather and Paul Haaga
Mr. Scott E. Jordan
Mrs. Gabrielle Jungels-Winkler
Mr. Charles T. Munger
Anne and Jim Rothenberg
Mr. and Mrs. David T. Traitel ^

HUNTINGTON CIRCLE GOLD  
($50,000 TO $99,999)
Mr. and Mrs. Guilford C. Babcock
June and Merle Banta
Mr. and Mrs. Peter K. Barker
The Gordon Binder Family
Mrs. George N. Boone
Michele and Roger Engemann
Robert N. Essick
Wendy Munger and Leonard Gumport
Sharon and John Light
Loren and Frances Rothschild
The SahanDaywi Foundation
Mr. Stewart R. Smith and  
	 Ms. Robin A. Ferracone
Marge and Sherm Telleen
Alyce and Warren Williamson

HUNTINGTON CIRCLE SILVER 
($25,000 TO $49,999)
Olin and Ann Barrett ^
Ms. Margaret F. Leong and  
	 Mr. Michael P. Checca
Mr. and Mrs. Bryant C. Danner
Mr. Kelvin Lloyd Davis
Nancy and Jim Dunton
Judith and Stan Farrar ^
Lynda and Blaine Fetter
Mrs. Douglas Goodan
Mr. and Mrs. Richard A. Grant Jr.
Ms. Karen A. Hoffman and  
	 Mr. James Edward Hoffman
Mr. and Mrs. William H. Hurt ^
Mr. and Mrs. Peter D. Kaufman
Kerstin and Steven Koblik
Mr. and Mrs. Jerry Kohl
Ethan and Joanne Lipsig
Frank and Mona Mapel ^
Tracy and Kenneth McCormick
Mr. and Mrs. Lary J. Mielke
Margot and Mitch Milias
Claudia P. Huntington and Marshall Miller ^
Mr. and Mrs. O’Malley M. Miller
Dr. and Mrs. J. Mario Molina
Frank and Toshie Mosher
Mr. Jud O. Roberts
Mr. Stephen E. Rogers
Dr. and Mrs. Warren G. Schlinger ^
The Hon. and Mrs. R. Carlton Seaver
Lisa and Tim Sloan
Alan and Janet Stanford
Leslie A. and Nancy J. Waite
Deborah and Robert Wycoff

HUNTINGTON CIRCLE  
($10,000 TO $24,999)
Dr. George Abdo and Ms. Sara Campbell
Mr. Ashwin and Dr. Sushma Adarkar
Anonymous
Judith M. Praitis and David M. Apel
Judy Yin Shih and Joel Axelrod
Marlene R. Konnar and  
	 John D. Baldeschwieler
Dan and Sandy Bane
Christine and Ken Bender
Christine C. Benter
Dr. and Mrs. Peter S. Bing ^
Mr. Alan J. Bloch and Ms. Nancy M. Berman
Fred and Diane Blum
Mary Jane Boggs
Maribeth and Hal Borthwick
Ms. Mai Lai and Mr. Robert M. Breech
Mr. and Mrs. Titus Brenninkmeijer
Ms. Carole Buss
Dr. and Mrs. James C. Caillouette ^
Mr. and Mrs. Kim Caldwell
Grant and Peggy Cambridge
Susan and Stephen Chandler
Ms. Jennifer Cheng
Marty and Bruce Coffey
Mr. and Mrs. John F. Cosgrove
Mr. and Mrs. Donald A. Cotton
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph H. Coulombe ^
Norma and Gary Cowles
Miss Anne L. Crotty
Mrs. James F. Dickason
Betty and Brack Duker
Mr. George A. V. Dunning and  
	 Mr. Robert M. Marino ^
Mrs. Robert F. Erburu
Alix B. Fargo
Dr. James J. and Sue Femino
Dr. and Mrs. Jonathan Fielding
Alan and Jean Fohrer
Mr. and Mrs. James M. Galbraith
Bernadette Glenn and Douglas Murray
Ms. Susan Steinhauser and  
	 Mr. Daniel Greenberg
Kelsey Browne Hall
Mr. and Mrs. H. Michael Hecht
Mr. and Mrs. Warner W. Henry
Mr. and Mrs. Barry Herlihy
Dr. and Mrs. John W. House
Mr. and Mrs. Carl W. Hulick
Drs. Thomas and Louise Jones ^
Jennie Kiang
Mr. Harvey and Dr. Ellen Knell
Hannah and Russel Kully
June and Simon K. C. Li
Mr. and Mrs. John F. Llewellyn
Mr. and Mrs. Francis D. Logan
Mr. and Mrs. Charles W. Malouf
Mr.* and Mrs. Marlow V. Marrs
Mr. and Mrs. Kimball P. McCloud ^
Ms. Kelly Sutherlin McLeod and  
	 Mr. Steven McLeod
Robert London Moore Jr.
Diane and Trevor M. Morris

Mr. and Mrs. George Moss Sr.
Mr. and Mrs. George E. Moss Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Peter W. Mullin
Mr. and Mrs. E. David Murphy ^
Mrs. Kenneth T. Norris Jr.
Jane and Ron Olson
Mr. Gregory A. Pieschala and  
	 Ms. Dorothy L. Shubin
Mr. and Mrs. John B. Quinn
Mr. and Mrs. Charles C. Read
Mr. and Mrs. Lynn P. Reitnouer
Mrs. J. Randolph Richards
Mr. Alfred H. Richter
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth G. Riley ^
Mr. and Mrs. David Booth Rogers
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Ronus
Ted and Lori Samuels
Mrs. Howard B. Schow
Mr. and Mrs. Emmons Sebenius
Dr. Carole Shammas and Dr. Darryl Holter
Mr. and Mrs. John F. Shea II
Mr. and Mrs. Dennis Stanfill
Mrs. William G. Steele Jr.
Mrs. Charles Stephens
Mrs. John A. Sturgeon
Mr. Philip A. Swan
Mr. Philip V. Swan and Mrs. Katherine S. Swan
Mr. and Mrs. Charles B. Thornton Jr. ^
Mrs. E. Leroy Tolles
Mr. James R. Ukropina
Mr. Robert S. Warren
Sally K. Wenzlau ^
Mr. J. Patrick Whaley and Ms. Lynda Jenner
Mr. and Mrs. Ian L. White-Thomson
Kwang-I and Ellen Yu

PRESIDENT’S CIRCLE ($5,000 TO $9,999)
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Adler
Anonymous
Mrs. Roy L. Ash ^
Mr. and Mrs. Paul Bennett
Dr. and Mrs. Robert L. Boardman
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas A. Brengel
Dr. Michael and Gaelen Burgess
Mary Blodgett and Carlton Calvin
Dr. Cindy and Mr. John Carson
Wayne and Judith Carter
Mr. George L. Cassat
Milton and Rosalind Chang
Ms. Catherine C. Cheney and Mr. Barry Jones
Mr. and Mrs. Donald P. Clark
Mrs. Eleanor Congdon ^
Dr. and Mrs. Richard T. Cooper
Mrs. Suzanne Viault Capps Crowell
Mr. and Mrs. Robert E. Denham
Retha Evans-Diener and Douglas Diener
Mr. William R. Eagleton
Gail and Jim Ellis
Mrs. Paul A. Erskine
Mrs. William W. Escherich ^
Alisa M. Fickewirth and John M. Fickewirth
Lorrie and Greg Forgatch
Mrs. George Good
Mr. and Mrs. William R. Graham

The Havner Family Foundation
Tad and Susie Henrikson
Katherine and David Hensley
Mr. and Mrs. Richard J. Hirrel
Janet Holladay ^
Carolyn Volk Horne
Jane Hulick
Jim and Jean Keatley
Mrs. Judith G. Kelly
Liz and Dennis Kneier
Dorena R. Knepper
Drs. Claire and Eugene B. Kopp
Mr. and Mrs. C. Douglas Kranwinkle
Mr. and Mrs. Randall Kroha
Mr. and Mrs. A. Richard Larson
Mr. and Mrs. George D. Leal
Mr. and Mrs. Mark J. Ledbetter
Mr. and Mrs. George A. Leiva
Cathy and Mark Louchheim
Ms. Beverly C. Marksbury
Ilene and Howard Marshall
Ms. Christine McCarthy and  
	 Mr. Michael McCormick
Mrs. Elizabeth Medearis and  
	 Mr. Sandy McLean
Mr. and Mrs. Willem Mesdag
Mr. and Mrs. John Leland Mothershead III
Dr. Philip D. Nathanson
Mr. and Mrs. Dominic Ng
Mr. Gaylord E. Nichols
Mr. and Mrs. Charles R. Norman
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen R. Onderdonk
Mrs. Jean B. Osher
Kathleen and Charles Peck
Mrs. Laura W. Perry
Mr. George D. Reardon and  
	 Ms. Susan Erburu Reardon
John and Susan Reitnouer
Mr. Joel and Dr. Ricki Robinson
Mrs. Elizabeth Sargent and Mr. John Swain
Linda and John Seiter
Mrs. E. L. Shannon Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. L. Dennis Shapiro
Mrs. Rosemary B. Simmons
Mr. and Mrs. Dennis Daniel Slattery
Pamela Girard and Shayne Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Spelke
Mr. and Mrs. Richard J. Stegemeier
Mr. and Mrs. Dean E. Stephan
Nina H. Stimson
Jayne Thomas
Mrs. Martha D. Toppin
Catherine and Paul Tosetti
Mr. and Mrs. Alex Trebek
Mr. Lawrence E. Uhl and Ms. Valerie Casey
Mr. and Mrs. John K. Van de Kamp
Mary and Michael Veselich
Ms. Nancy Voorhees
Barbara and Ken Warner
Dr. Nancy E. Warner and Christine Reynolds
Stephen and Carol Ann Warren
Robbie and David Zeidberg
William and Eileen Zimmerman
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FELLOWS ($2,500 TO $4,999)
Terry and Richard Abrams
Mr. and Mrs. Donald H. Albrecht ^
Mrs. David Alexander
Mr. and Mrs. Robert S. Anderson
Dr. and Mrs. George Andros
Mr. and Mrs. Dann V. Angeloff
Anonymous (2)
Mrs. George P. Armour ^
Mr. W. Jefferson Arnett
Mr. and Mrs. Frank Arthofer
James R. Asperger and Christine M. Adams
Mr. and Mrs. Mark W. Atkinson
Ms. Judith Avery
Ms. Ann K. Babcock
Ronald and Fabiana Badie
Mr. and Mrs. Danford M. Baker
Mr. and Mrs. Berton Banta
Mr. and Mrs. William Baribault
Mrs. Norman Barker Jr. ^
Ms. Laurie P. Barlow
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas W. Baxter
Mr. Emile Bayle
Rosey Bell
Mr. and Mrs. David W. Bianchi
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel E. Biles
Mrs. Willis C. Blakeslee
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce Blomstrom
Sue and Al Boegh
Rob and Kimi Bonner
Mr. and Mrs. Franklin Booth III
Philip Bourdillon and Nancy Martin
Mrs. Hannah G. Bradley ^
Mrs. Fred W. Brandt 
Ms. Dorrie Braun ^
Dr. and Mrs. James B. Breckinridge
John and Louise Brinsley
Mr. and Mrs. Steven Bristing
Nurit and Simon Burrow
Mrs. William D. Burrows
Mrs. John B. Callery ^

Rebecca R. and John M. Campos
Dr. and Mrs. Howard D. Cantwell
Mr. and Mrs. C. Byron Capps Jr.
William J. and Mary Lea Carroll
Mr. and Dr. Juan Ceva
Mrs. Linda L. Chang
Mr. and Mrs. Chunneng Chen
Mr. and Mrs. Mark Chen
Mr. and Mrs. Raymond Kum-Nin Cheng ^
Mr. and Mrs. James F. Childs
Mr. and Mrs. Brian Mauerhan Clamp
Mr. and Mrs. Edward E. Clark ^
Georgina and William Clayton Jr.
Tracey and Anne Coats
J. N. Colburn ^
Dr. and Mrs. Richard Cole
Mr. and Mrs. T. Samuel Coleman
Anne Colin
Mr. and Ms. Christopher W. Combs
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas J. Condon
Dr. and Mrs. Gary Conrad
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald H. Conzonire
Mrs. John Brown Cook ^
Mr. and Mrs. Richard W. Cook
Mrs. Rita Kirby Coulter
Bill and Kim Covey
Mrs. James A. Crabtree
Phyllis and Dave Crandon
Mr. and Mrs. David S. Crawford
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel L. Crotty
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Crowley
Ginny and John Cushman
Mr. and Mrs. John C. Cushman III
Mrs. Kathleen W. Dale-Foreman ^
Debra I. Danner
Ms. Peggy Dark
Ann H. Davis
Donald G. Davis
Mrs. Marvin Davis ^
Mrs. Richard D. Davis*
Ed de Beixedon and Cynthia Bennett

Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. De Kruif 
Elizabeth and Stanislas Debreu
Mr. and Mrs. K. Leo Dencik
Mrs. William D. Derry 
Evie and John DiCiaccio
Dr. and Mrs. John M. Dick
Mr. Kelly F. Duke and Dr. Cheryl Resnik
Katherine W. Dumke and Ezekiel R. Dumke Jr.
Jody and John Dundas
Wesley Earley
Mr. and Mrs. David A. Ebershoff
Linda and Darren Edwards
Ms. Franne Einberg
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas E. Ellison Jr.
Beverly Eng
Mr. and Mrs. Edward W. Engs III
Mr. and Mrs. Ralph E. Erickson
Mr. and Mrs. Randall Ewig
Dr. Suzanne L. Palmer and  
	 Mr. Daniele Facchini
Mr. Charles Fairchild
Mrs. Robert L. Farmer 
Mr. and Mrs. David R. Felton
Carl E. Foote and Claudia D. Foote
Ms. Susan A. Frank
Brad and Lisa Freer
Ms. Judith Gain
Mr. and Mrs. William Galloway
Mr. and Mrs. Michael A. Gallucci
Mr. and Mrs. Edward S. Garlock 
Mr. Neal Genda and Ms. Jennifer Saurenman
Mr. and Mrs. J. David Germany
Priscilla and Nelson Gibbs
Mr. and Mrs. Robert W. Gibson 
Mr. and Mrs. Robert B. Gifford
Mr. and Mrs. Robert W. Gillespie
Mr. and Mrs. David Gordon
Mr. and Mrs. Max L. Green Jr.
Dr. and Mrs. Stuart Green
Ms. Yvonne L. Green
Ms. Lucie Cooper Greer
Mr. and Mrs. William H. Greer Jr. ^
Mr. and Mrs. Robert L. Gregg
Mr. and Mrs. Gunnar Gundersen
Mr. and Mrs. William W. Haefliger
Mr. Harald R. Hahn
Don and Taylor Hall
Mr. and Mrs. James M. Hall
Mr. and Mrs. Robert C. Hamilton 
Mrs. Thornton Hamlin Jr.
Mrs. Janice Hammond
Mr. and Mrs. Henry L. Hancock
Mrs. Renee Block Hanson ^
Mr. and Mrs. Dan Hare
Mr. and Mrs. William S. Harris
Simon and Charlotte Harrison
Ellen and Richard Haserot
Jeanie and Tim Hatch
Mr. and Mrs. Randolph Heartfield 
Phyllis Henigson ^
Mr. and Mrs. Harold H. Hennacy
Mrs. Vincent W. Heublein
Ann and Manuel Hidalgo
Stephen and Karen Hillenburg
Adelaide Hixon
Mr. Donald M. Hoffman
Mr. and Mrs. Malcolm K. Holdsworth
Mr. and Mrs. Mark K. Holdsworth
Mr. and Mrs. Dennis Holt ^

Mrs. John C. Hoover ^
Ms. Tamia Hope
Mr. and Mrs. J. D. Hornberger ^
Mr. and Mrs. William L. Horton 
Mr. and Mrs. John F. Hotchkis Sr.
Mr.* and Mrs. Samuel W. Hunt
Mr. Edward O. Huntington
Mrs. Stirling L. Huntley
Mr. and Mrs. George D. Jagels Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Frank W. Jameson 
Mr. and Mrs. R. Scott Jenkins 
Mr. and Mrs. Frederick D. Johnson Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Gregory D. Johnson
Mr. and Mrs. Roger D. Johnston
Mr. and Mrs. Louis W. Jones Jr.
Valerie E. Lyons and Jay Judson
Mr. and Mrs. Arne Kalm
Stephen A. Kanter, M.D.
Mr. Nicolas Karazissis ^
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce A. Karsh 
Mr. and Mrs. Richard C. Keating
John and Jennifer Kelly
Mrs. Dwight M. Kendall ^
Ms. Patricia Hemphill Ketchum
Mrs. Gerrie Kilburn
Dr. Don F. King
Penny K. Kirby
Mrs. Katherine T. Kitchens and  
	 Mr. Dean J. Kitchens
Mr. and Mrs. C. Richard Knowles
Mr. and Mrs. Albin Koch
Ms. Shelley Allen and  
	 Mr. W. Robert Kohorst
Richard L. Kornblith and  
	 Lisa Shenkman Kornblith
Mrs. Rosanne M. Kusar
Ms. Carolyne T. Lacy
Ms. Eleni V. Lambros
Mr. and Mrs. Jay T. Last
Brian and Christa Lee
Dr. Henry L. Lee Jr. ^
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald G. Lee ^
Heather Lenkin and Richard Underwood
Dr. and Mrs. Eric Levander
Nancy and Ken Lewis
Mr. Winston B. Lewy and  
	 Mrs. Judith Primm Lewy
Charlene and Jack Liebau
Sharon A. Lilly and Joan E. Potter
Lindy and Rosa Lindholm
Linda D. Long
Mr. and Mrs. Donald Macfarland
Mr. and Mrs. H. Ross MacMichael
Mr. and Mrs. Michael W. Malone 
Mr. and Mrs. James L. Mamakos
Dr. and Mrs. Steven Mandel
Dr. Marguerite Marsh
Mr. and Mrs. Craig L. Martin
Linda Massey
Mr. and Mrs. Neal Mathisen
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas J. Maxwell 
Nancy Carroll McCurley
Mr. and Mrs. Keith S. McDonald
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen McDonald
Mr. and Mrs. Kingston McKee ^
Mr. and Mrs. Carson R. McKissick
Mrs. Edward H. McLaughlin Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Patrick F. McNally 
Mr. William H. McPherson ^

Members of the Society of Fellows enjoy first pick at the Plant Sale.
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Donna M. and Randall Melby
Dr. and Mrs. Ted Merchant 
Dr. and Mrs. John Brockway Metcalf ^
Mrs. Susan Stimmel Metcalf ^
David G. and Margaret Mgrublian
Mrs. Carolyn L. Miller ^
Mrs. Lynne Parkhurst Mircheff
Mrs. Annamarie Mitchell
Heather and Walt Mix
Mr. and Mrs. Grant Mogford
Mr. Robert and Dr. Linda Mollno
Ms. Cecilia Mong-Vajna
Hallee Gould and Richard Mooney
Ms. Linda G. Moore
Mr. Alfred W. Mordecai and  
	 Mrs. Victoria S. Mordecai
Mrs. Donald R. Moreland
Pauli Morin
Mr. and Mrs. Winston V. Morrow ^
Mrs. Martha W. Mulfinger
Dr. and Mrs. Robert W. Nafie
Mr. and Mrs. Merrill L. Nash 
Mrs. Beverly Neu
Mr. and Mrs. George F. Newell
David and Mahnaz Newman
Mei-Lee Ney
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Nicholson Jr.
Jeremy and Patricia Norman
Katherine and Bob Ray Offenhauser
Mr. Harry A. Olivar Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Peter O’Malley
Mr. Christopher Orndorff
Ms. Elizabeth Orndorff
Mrs. Erika O. Owens
Drs. Robert and Rita Palmer
Ms. M. Helen Pashgian
Ann C. Patterson
Melissa and Richard Patterson
Janet and Richard Pearson

Mr. and Mrs. Richard J. Pearson ^
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth S. Pelton
Ms. Ann Petersen and Dr. Leslie Pam
Bill and Megan Phelps
Peggy Phelps
Dr. and Mrs. Edmond H. Pi
Judith Plunkett
Mr. John L. Poole ^
Mr. and Mrs. J. Kristoffer Popovich
Mrs. Roe M. Powell ^
Laurence and Carol Pretty
Beth H. Price
Juliette Bonynge Quinn and  
	 John Howard Quinn
Mrs. Peggy Rahn
Mr. and Mrs. Robert D. Redford
Mr. George Reich and Mr. Albert Chiang
Mr. and Mrs. John Reith
Mr. and Mrs. John J. Reynolds
Francois and Carol Rigolot
David and Kathleen Rips
Dr. Louise Ritchie and Dr. Robert C. Ritchie
Dr. Cara Robertson
Mr. and Mrs. John H. Robinson Jr.
Jennifer Gayle Rogers
Mr. Jeffrey F. Romano and Mr. Stan A. Shayer
Mrs. Kathy L. Rose
Mr. Irving Rosenbluth and  
	 Mrs. Hilde Shubin Rosenbluth
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel Rothenberg
Ms. Camille Rutkowski
Mr. and Mrs. Steven R. Schilling
Devy and Carlos Schonfeld
Dr. Hagen Schroter and Ms. Barbara Sohal
Mr. and Mrs. Friedrich W. Seitz
Mrs. Alice Shulman
Mr. and Mrs. Randy A. Shulman
Ms. Barbara L. Simpson
Christina Singleton

Dr. and Mrs. Howard A. Slack ^
Mr. and Mrs. Donald M. Slager ^
Miss Helen M. Smith ^
Mr. Harold C. Snyder and  
	 Mr. William F. Kleese
The Family of Phillip K. Sotel
Laurie Sowd
Mr. and Mrs. Chester J. Specht ^
Sue Spence
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph A. Sposato
Mrs. Norman F. Sprague Jr. ^
Mr. and Mrs. Greg Stanislawski ^
Mr. and Mrs. William Guy Steele III 
Mr. William E. and  
	 Mrs. Barbara M. Steinwedell
Mr. Roger W. Stephens
Mr. and Mrs. George Stimson III
Mr. and Mrs. Carl Stucky 
Mr. and Mrs. Eldon W. Swanson
Rebecca Shea and Hoyt Sze
Kathleen Grzegorek and Jamil Tahir-Kheli
Jessica and James Tang
Mr. Stephen P. Tanner
Christopher and Clare Tayback
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas A. Techentin 
Marjorie and Bob Templeton
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph R. Terrazas Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Harlan H. Thompson 
Mr. and Mrs. James Thorpe ^
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence R. Tollenaere ^
Mr. and Mrs. Robert L. Toms
Mr. and Mrs. William L. Tooley
Dr. and Mrs. Robert E. Tranquada
Mark A. Treadwell and Patricia E. Anderson
Lannette and Scott Turicchi
Mr. and Mrs. David G. Turner
Nancy and Bob Twist
Betsey Tyler
Dr. Johannes Maarten Ultee

Mr. and Mrs. A. William Urquhart
Jamae van Eck
Mr. and Mrs. Robert D. Volk
Vivi and Erik Wahl
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas B. Walper
Ralph Collins Walter
Dr. Robin Jane Walther and  
	 Mr. James R. Walther
Mr. and Mrs. Michael M. Watkins
Dr. Wellington D. Watters and  
	 Dr. David Eidenberg ^
Mrs. Maria Low Way
Bill and Cindy Wenzlau
Mr. and Mrs. Carl T. White
Claude White
Dr. Ronald White Jr. and Ms. Cynthia White
Sally and Russ White
Mr. and Mrs. John P. Williams
Mr. and Mrs. Norman B. Williamson
Bruce and Gretchen Willison
Mr. and Mrs. Randolph G. Wilson
Alison and Joseph Winter
Ms. Wendy Kwong and Mr. John W. Wong
Diane and Leland Wong
Mr. and Mrs. Michael F. Wright 
Mr. Henry A. Yost
Dr. and Mrs. A. M. Zarem ^
Eva and Paul Zee
Mr. and Mrs. Robert L. Zuber
 
^ Indicates Life Fellow
* Indicates deceased in FY2015 

MEMBERS

Members at the Benefactor and Patron levels are recognized in the Annual Report. Including Benefactors and Patrons, there were 36,746 Hunting-
ton Member households at the close of the fiscal year.

BENEFACTORS
Ms. Gisela Adams and Mr. William Adams
Mrs. Dina Adamson
Mrs. Patricia R. Adler-Ingram
Mrs. Grace Anderson
Mr. and Mrs. Kurt Anderson
Mr. and Mrs. Wallis Arnold
Dr. Gordon Morris Bakken
Mr. and Mrs. Mark Banuelos
Martha Benedict
Mr. and Mrs. Randy Beyersdorf
Mr. and Mrs. James B. Black
Ms. Lauren Bon
Ms. Marla Borowski
Ms. Christina Brock
Rev. Joseph Jon Bruno and Mrs. Mary A. Bruno
Mrs. Linda L. Bukowski
Mr. James Burge and Ms. Laura Burge
Mr. Jay Cantor
Dr. Scott L. Carder and  
	 Mrs. Dana Hadley-Carder

Mr. R. J. Cathcart and Mrs. Joan K. Cathcart
Kenneth, Sarah, Kevin, Susie, and Karen Chan
Mr. and Mrs. C. Joseph Chang
Fred Y. and Sarah W. Chen
Mr. and Mrs. Robert W. Davis
Mrs. Jane Z. Delahanty
Mr. and Mrs. Bram Dijkstra
Mr. and Mrs. John Donovan
Ms. Louise Dougherty
Mr. Benjamin Edwards and Ms. Lady Edwards
Ms. Deborah Freeland
Mr. and Mrs. Will Freeman
Mr. Brett Furrey
Mr. Jerry Furrey and Mrs. Bobbie Furrey
Mr. Gregory Gajda
Mr. and Mrs. Julian Ganz Jr.
Ms. Christen Garrett
Ms. Pamela Garrison
Mr. and Mrs. Barry Gernstein
Mr. Richard Gonzalez and  
	 Mr. Douglas DeGenaro

Mr. David L. Gray
Ms. Susan H. Grimes Sweetland
Mrs. Margaret G. Grossman
In memory of Edna and Yu-Shan Han
Mr. and Mrs. Richard L. Harris
Mr. Per Harwe and Mr. Tristan Harwe
Ekkehart Hassels-Weiler and  
	 Christopher Hemingway
Mr. and Mrs. David Herman
Mr. Kenneth Hoffman and  
	 Mrs. Lorraine Hoffman
Mr. and Mrs. Calvin Hollis
Tsan Tsung Memorial Foundation— 
	 Jack and Grace Hou
Mrs. Marcia H. Howard and  
	 Ms. Debbie Babb
Mr. and Mrs. Paul Hufnagel
Eva, Michael, Aaron, Morgan and Nathan Jen
Dr. and Mrs. Brian R. Johnson
Dr. Meade B. Johnson
Mr. Ralph W. Johnson

Dr. Torrence V. Johnson and  
	 Mr. Aaron Johnson
Mr. and Mrs. Nelson D. Jones
Ms. Aileen T. Koskovich
Mr. and Mrs. Jim LaBarge
Mr. and Mrs. Hugh Langford
Mr. and Mrs. David Lee
Mr. Michael Lee
Ms. Eileen S. Leech and  
	 Mr. S. Kenneth Leech
Mr. Hailin Li and Mrs. Xiaoyan Zhang
Ms. Lucy X. Lin and Mr. William Zhen Lin
Ms. Fong Liu
Mr. and Mrs. Warren Loomis
Mr. and Mrs. Dave Lundegard
Mr. Michael Mackness
Dr. and Mrs. Ernest Maldonado
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Malone
James A. Martinez and Sangeeta Martinez
Mr. Serge Melkizian and  
	 Ms. Sara Simpson Melkizian



28

Mr. and Mrs. Matthew Mettler
Ms. Joan J. Michael
Mr. and Mrs. Donn B. Miller
Mr. David Minning and  
	 Ms. Diane Wittenberg
Ms. Mary H. Monzingo
Frances A. Moore
Mr. and Mrs. Gordon J. Mountford
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth Mueller
Ms. Sheila Muller and Ms. Karen Muller
Ms. Susan B. Napier and  
	 Ms. Marylene R. Vargas
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Newell
JC O’Connell and Maureen O’Connell
Mr. Ron Okuda and Ms. Cynthia F. Hozaki
Ms. Julie O’Reilly
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel Ouellette
Mr. and Mrs. John Patches
Ms. Samantha Pietsch
Jeff and Hally Prater
Mr. and Mrs. George J. Radda
Ms. Susan Redpath
Mrs. Maura Richardson
Mr. Richard F. Roberts
Mr. William A. Rogers
Mr. and Mrs. Orman R. Sartwell
Dr. and Mrs. Lawrence Schall
Mr. David Schwabauer and  
	 Mr. Michael McMahan
Ms. Kathleen King and Mr. Ming Shao
Dr. and Mrs. Walter E. Smith
Mr. David E. Solares
Mr. Steven Levi Somers and  
	 Mrs. Robin Lougee-Somers
Ms. Patricia Shapiro and  
	 Mr. Alexandre Spiridonov
Mr. Jim Stine and Mr. Ken Willner
Ms. Erika Strauss-Riddell
Mr. Vincent R. Talbot
Robert W. Tam and Julie Wong Tam
Mr. and Mrs. Robert C. Thorell
Ms. Lane Turzan
Ms. Mary Jaine Urban and Mr. William Urban
Dr. and Mrs. James Walters
Leslie Weaver and  
	 Mr. Nicholas Weaver-Weinberg
Mr. and Mrs. Aaron Weiss
Mr. and Mrs. James Weling
Wan-go and Virginia Weng
Ms. Patricia Wernet
Ms. Joyce White
Mr. and Mrs. Mark Wiedenbeck
Mr. John Willey
Mr. and Mrs. Edward Wong
Mr. and Mrs. Phelps Wood
Dr. D. Gareth Wootton and  
	 Dr. Barbara Kadell Wootton
Mr. Alex Wu
Chi and Rosa Zee
Mr. Johnny Zhang and Ms. Sophia Wong
Mr. Simon S. Zhang
Ms. Linda D. Zinn

PATRONS
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Bruce Abelson
Ms. Lynne A. Bauer and Mr. Randy L. Adams
Mr. and Mrs. Rick Adams
Mr. Larry W. Allen
Mr. and Mrs. Ricario Almira

Dr. Albert E. Amorteguy
Mr. and Mrs. David E. Anderson
Mr. Steven P. Appelbaum
Mr. Alan R. Armstrong
Mr. and Mrs. William Ashburn
Mr. and Mrs. Philbert Auzenne
Mr. and Mrs. Clarence Avant
Mr. Barry Babok and Ms. Illanna Trayber
Mr. and Mrs. Mustapha Baha
Daniel Beldy and Taylor Beldy
Mr. Michael Boran
Mr. and Mrs. Tom V. Borys
Ms. Bonnie Brae
Ms. Margaret Bray and Ms. Phyliss Rajaniemi
Mr. Matthew Breedlove and Miss Ji Y. Park
Mr. David Brown and Mrs. Hana Kawano
Mr. and Mrs. Tim Brown
Mrs. Stevey Bruce
Mr. Allen Brune and Mrs. Sandi Brune
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Bukata
Mr. and Mrs. John Burkle
Mr. Behle Burns
Mr. Douglas Burton
Mr. and Mrs. Aidan Butler
Mrs. John S. Byrnes Jr.
Mr. Ruel Caneda and Mrs. Kristen Lu
Mr. Jeff Carr and Mrs. Lynn Carr
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth A. Cashman
Mr. A. Bertrand Cassan Jr.
Dr. and Mrs. Jonathan L. Chang
Mr. and Mrs. Larry Chen
Mr. Robert Chen and Ms. Onnie Yen-Chen Lu
Mrs. Yen-Ying Chen and Mr. Simon Chen
Louis and Aliza Chertkow
Mr. Stephen Cho and Ms. Joan Wai
Mr. and Mrs. William Chow
Mr. Henry Chu and Ms. Julie Lee
Mr. and Mrs. Terry Cisco
Mr. Jerry Clark and Mrs. Deanna Durr Clark
Mrs. Maryadele Clougherty
Mr. Fraser Cocks and  
	 Ms. Catherine S. Herlihy
Mr. and Mrs. Chris Cox
Dr. and Mrs. Ray L. Craemer
Mr. Thomas H. Crosby Jr. and  
	 Mrs. Ellen Fu Crosby
Jeff and Wendy Dahlgren
Mrs. John Davidson
Mr. and Mrs. Carl T. Dawson
Ms. K. C. Deagon and Ms. Maggie Deagon
Ms. Anna Dekeyan and Mr. Harry Dekeyan
Mrs. Debra Dillard and Mr. David Dillard
Mr. Douglas Dombek and Mr. Curtis Dombek
Mr. Jackson Douglas and Ms. Linda Gleason
Ms. Kathleen E. Douglass and  
	 Ms. Heather Douglass
Mr. Scott Drerup and Ms. Arianna Rapp
Mr. Mark Duimstra and  
	 Mrs. Catherine Duimstra
Mrs. Adrienne Flair-Dumenigo and  
	 Mr. Jay A. Dumenigo
Mr. and Mrs. Robert B. Dunlap
Mr. Duy Duong and Ms. Gloria Juang
Mr. and Mrs. Bryan Earll
Mr. Robert L. Eichel
Mr. and Mrs. Arlan C. Emmert
Ms. Patricia A. Espinoza
Mr. Gregory Preston Evans
K. M. Evans and James Avedikian

Ms. Dorothy Falcinella
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey Fastnow
Mr. Strefan Fauble and  
	 Mr. F. Thomas Simpson
Mr. and Mrs. Russell Faucett
Mr. William K. Ferry and Mrs. Elizabeth Ferry
Mr. John Flores and Ms. Laura Byrnes
Mr. Michael Edward Flynn and Ms. Laura Lees
Mr. Paul Foerster and Mrs. Donna E. Wong
Daniel and Maryann Fong
Ms. Kim J. Sarchet and Dr. Jon M. Foran
Mr. Darrell A. Forgey
Mr. and Mrs. C. Edward Foster
Dr. Eric Foster and Dr. Kelly Foster
Dr. Harold Frankl
Mr. Kevin Gambrel and Mrs. Rieko Gambrel
Mr. and Mrs. James Garrison
Mr. Richard Geary and Mrs. Janet Ito-Geary
Mr. Marc Genin and Mrs. Victoria R. Genin
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas George
Leslie and Mort Gerson
Mr. Jody D. Gerstner and Mrs. Nancy Frost
Mr. and Mrs. Donald Gertmenian
Mr. Paul A. Gibbs
Mr. John Terry Ginn and  
	 Ms. Maryann Hutchison
Mr. and Mrs. John P. Gordon
Dr. and Mrs. Gregory L. Gorski
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel Goyette
Ms. Robyn Grandy
Mr. Robert A. Grantham and  
	 Mrs. Leah Grantham
Ms. Beverly Greene and  
	 Ms. Amy Greene LoCascio
Mr. James C. Griffin and Mrs. Sarah H. Griffin
Mrs. Leslie Guest and Ms. Amber Guest
Brett and Gina Gurewitz
Mr. Clarence Hall and Ms. Lauri Holbrook
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas Hall
Tom Hall and Cyndy Bauman
Mr. Franklin D. Halladay
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald Hamilton
Jerome Hannan and Chiu Kwan
Mr. Mark S. Harmsen
Ms. Linda L. Harris
Mrs. Sally L. Harris
Mr. Lawrence Hawley and Ms. Barbara Aran
Mr. Curt Hazell and Mrs. Patricia Doyle
Ms. Susan Heckerman and  
	 Mr. David Heckerman
Dr. Ellen Hecklinger
Ms. Barbara A. Kelley and  
	 Mr. George A. Henning
Mr. Ralph Herbert and Ms. Mary Roediger
Ms. Bernice Hernandez
Dr. Christian Herrera and Dr. Tina C. Wang
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph A. Herron
Mr. Phil Hettema
Dr. Thomas Hicklin and Mrs. Pamela Hicklin
Ms. Barbara A. Hillman
Mr. Paul Hofer
Mr. John Chandler Hoffman
Mr. Alan C. Hooker
Mr. George J. Houle
Mr. William Hsieh and Mrs. Kathy Cheng
Dr. and Mrs. Joseph KW Hsu
Mr. and Mrs. Chang Huan Hsueh
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen Huang
Miss Laurie Hunter

Mr. Henry E. Huntington III and  
	 Ms. Judith Huntington
Mr. and Mrs. Richard L. Hurd
Dr. Amir Hussain
Mr. and Mrs. Marc R. Isaacson
Dr. John Itamura and Dr. Julia Itamura
Mr. Gary T. Izumi
Mr. Stanley A. Jeong and  
	 The Hon. Ruth A. Kwan
Ms. Kathleen E. Jolly
Ms. Elizabeth Jones and  
	 Mr. Ted Mergenthaler
Ms. Tammy Jow and Ms. Carolee Jow
Mr. Don Jue and Ms. Maureen Drury
Mr. and Mrs. James R. Kaiser
Mr. Jason H. Kang
Ms. Patricia Kasababian
Mr. Norman Kelsey and Mrs. Patty Tokahuta
Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. Key II
Mr. Richard Alan Kidd and Mrs. Myrna Kidd
Mr. and Mrs. Philip Klinkert
Mr. Robert Knauss and Dr. Jamie Knauss
Mr. Scott Kolanach and  
	 Ms. Stephanie Courtney
Ms. Carole Kolla
Mr. and Mrs. Harvey Kong
Ms. Pam Koyzis
Mr. Arthur Krieger
Ken and Elisabeth Ladermen
Mr. and Mrs. Mark Ladesich
Sheila and Alan Lamson
Al Latham and Elaine Kramer
Mr. Cheng T. Lee and Mrs. Lay Eng Tan
Ms. Dora Kay Lee and Ms. Helena Yee
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald W. Lee
Miss Sharon Chin Lee and  
	 Miss Starla Chin Yamauchi
Mr. and Mrs. Bernadotte Lester
Ms. Jacqueline Liao
James and Juliet Lienemann
Mr. and Mrs. Chun Hong Lin
The Lincoln Plaza Hotel
Dr. Sherwood Lingenfelter and  
	 Dr. Judith Lingenfelter
Mr. and Mrs. Ray Loomis
Mr. Matthew Loscalzo and  
	 Dr. Joanne E. Mortimer
Mr. and Mrs. Samuel J. Losh
Ms. Betty Louie and Mr. David Louie
Ms. Margo K. Louis and Ms. Judith Louis
Mr. Qiang Ma and Ms. Tina Zheng
Dr. and Mrs. John MacAskill
Ms. Lynn S. Macbride and Mr. Tom Macbride
Mrs. Carolyn Novin and  
	 Mr. Angus MacDonald
Mr. and Mrs. J. G. Macdonald
Mr. Robert J. MacHott
Ms. Lourita MacNeill
Mr. Tom Malone
Dr. and Mrs. James Maloney Jr.
Ms. Beverly Maloof
Mr. James Manifold and  
	 Ms. Margaret Russell
Mrs. Karla I. Marshall and Ms. Corey Marshall
Mrs. Jo Ann Martin
Mr. Britton J. McConnell and  
	 Mrs. Mary McConnell
Mr. and Mrs. David McDonald
Ms. Stella McEvoy
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CORPORATE PARTNERS

The Corporate Partners provide vital support for The Huntington’s ever-expanding educational programs.

Ms. Elena D. Phleger and  
	 Mr. Thomas McHenry
Mr. Michael R. McLaughlin and  
	 Ms. Molly Hewitt
Janice Lee and Brian McMahon
May S. McNey
Angus and Carol McRonald
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth T. Mendes
Mr. Ernest Messner and  
	 Ms. Madelyn Messner
Ms. Jean Metcalf
Charles J. Meyers and Amy R. W. Meyers
Mrs. Barbara L. Miller
Mr. and Mrs. Donald Miller
Ms. Deborah Stugan-Miller and  
	 Mr. Gene R. Miller
Ms. Louise Mills
Ms. Ursula Hyman and  
	 Mr. James William Minges
Ms. Margaret J. Moe
Mr. and Mrs. Charles J. Moore
Anne E. Morea and Tristan Willenburg
Ms. Margaret Morgan and Mr. Wesley Phoa
Ms. Marilyn E. Morgan
Mr. and Mrs. James Moseley
Mr. Jeremy Moy
Mr. and Mrs. Victor V. Moy
Dr. Susan J. Mulley and Dr. R. Glenn Sellar
Ms. Sarah Murguia
Ms. Louisa Nelson and Mr. Mark L. Nelson
Ms. Jeanne Neville
New Century Auto Group
Dr. and Mrs. Edward M. Newman
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Newman
The California Notley Foundation
Mr. Tom Nuckols and Ms. Joanne Nuckols
Dr. Amal K. Obaid and Mr. Ikbal Obaid
Mr. Michael O’Brien and Ms. Jennifer Michaud
Ms. Maureen Ocampo and Mr. Joel Ocampo
Dr. and Mrs. Geoffrey Okada
Dr. Ynez V. O’Neill
Mr. Patton P. Oswalt and  
	 Mrs. Michelle McNamara
Mr. Tien Chun Pan and Mrs. Michelle Cheng
Mrs. Yvonne Pan
Mr. and Mrs. John E. Parcher
Mr. Robert S. Parker and  
	 Ms. Ronda D. Latham

Mr. Rene Parola and  
	 Mrs. Regina Parola-Meyers
Mrs. George E. Parsons Jr.
Mr. Mark A. Pedowitz and  
	 Ms. Carolyn A. Martin
Mr. Michael Peery
Mrs. Helen Pekny and  
	 Mrs. Jacqueline Magnuson
Meeno Peluce and Ilse Ackermann
Ms. Marjorie Perloff
Mr. John M. Phipps and Mrs. Ethel Phipps
Mr. Stephen Pickett
Mr. and Mrs. Lupe Picon
Mr. William R. Pierce
Mr. and Mrs. William L. Plunkett
Mr. Tom Politeo and Mrs. Mary Forgione
Mr. Carl Porter and Ms. Barbara Ellen Belgard
Ms. Gwen Powell and Ms. Ann Kubota
Ms. Janet L. Puchlik and Mr. Gerald S. Puchlik
Mr. and Mrs. Jerry Puzey
Mr. Von Quan and Mrs. Roberta Schwartz
Mr. and Mrs. John E. Raidy Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen A. Ralph
Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. Raney
Mr. and Mrs. Bryan Ransford
Mr. and Mrs. Santo Riboli
Ms. Susan F. Rice
Neal and Carol Richter
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Robinson
Mr. David A. Rodgers
Mr. Andy Rooke and Mrs. Juliann Rooke
Dr. Steven Rosen and Ms. Candice Rosen
Mr. Otto A. Rotach
Mr. and Ms. Stephen D. Rountree
Ms. Sandra J. Rygel
Brian Sabino and Cecille Lamorena
Mr. and Mrs. Nick Saggese
Mr. and Mrs. Dennis L. Salts
Mr. Kenneth D. Sanson Jr.
Ms. Janine Saraf and Mr. Sean Saraf
Dr. Anneila Sargent
Dr. Elaine Sarkaria
Mr. Kevin Savage and Ms. Britta Lindgren
Alexander A. Sawchuk and  
	 Mariette T. Sawchuk
Ms. Cynthia Scheer and Ms. Stephanie Scheer
Mr. and Mrs. William P. Schlarb
Mr. and Mrs. Phillip Schlosberg

Betty and Daniel Schlothan
Mr. and Mrs. John Schock
Ms. Cheri Schrupp
Dr. Eileen Schwartz Breyde
Mr. Seth Schwartz and Ms. Johanne Schwartz
Mr. Charles L. Seitz and Ms. Leah D. Davis
Dr. Frederic T. Selleck
Mr. and Mrs. Steven Serrurier
Ms. Judith Shaw
Mr. and Mrs. Kashif F. Sheikh
Dr. John J. Simmonds and Mrs. Valerie Duval
Dr. Neil Singla and Ms. Rosa L. Rivera
Mr. and Mrs. Adam Sisson
Ms. Kathleen Smith
Mr. Steven P. Smith
Mrs. Lugene Sanders Solomon
Mr. and Mrs. David Spivack
S. Jesse Stancarone and Ann M. Stancarone
Mrs. Lilah Stangeland
Mr. Michael J. Stangl
Dr. Nancy Steele and Mr. Bruce Steele
M. J. Steinbacher
Ms. Susan Stevens
Mr. Timothy B. Still
Mr. and Mrs. Andrew Stimer
Mrs. Karen Stoeffler and Mr. Hannes Stoeffler
Mr. Gregory P. Stone and Ms. Cindy Vail
Mr. and Mrs. Robert J. Stull
Dr. Hwei-Chih Cheng Sun, Dr. and  
	� Mrs. Richard Sun, Dr. and Mrs. George 

Sun, Dr. Christina Sun
Ms. Shirley Sun and Ms. Ernestine Sun
Mr. Thomas C. Sutton and  
	 Dr. Marilyn P. Sutton
Mrs. Beatrice Joan Taylor
Mr. Joseph Taylor and Ms. Doris Chih
Mr. and Mrs. Leo J. Taylor
Ms. Vickie Taylor and Mr. Warren A. Taylor
Mr. Jesse R. Telles and Ms. Shannon Telles
Ms. Nancy Terry
The California Notley Foundation
Mr. Eric Theis and Mrs. Sandy Camacho
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher Thomas
Mrs. Susan Thomas and Mr. Chandler Thomas
Mr. Luke Thornton and Ms. Elizabeth Silver
Mr. Spencer Wen Hau Tien and Ms. Lilly Tien
Mr. and Mrs. Vernon Tolo
Ms. Daria E. Topousis

Mr. Randall L. Townsend and  
	 Ms. Karen L. Mitchell
Mr. Edward Traynor
Mr. Ken Twomey and Mrs. Judi Twomey
Mr. Scott Uroff and Mr. James Uroff
Ms. Kimberley Valentine
Mr. and Mrs. Jon Vanderwerff
Mr. and Mrs. Greg Vanni
Mr. Leonard William Varner and  
	 Dr. Linda L. Varner
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph L. Velasquez
Ms. Emily J. Verna and Ms. Tris Verna Ferris
Mr. and Mrs. John Virsack
Ms. Brenda J. Wade
Mr. Edward K. Watson and  
	 Ms. Pamela Warner
Mr. Darrell Weber and Mr. Gary Mendes
Mr. and Mrs. Wendell L. Webster
Ms. Cathy Wei
Mr. Bruce Weiner and  
	 Mrs. Susan Jakubowski-Weiner
Ms. Leslie Rasmussen and  
	 Mr. Bernard Weinraub
Mr. and Mrs. Lon Wells
Mr. Christopher E. Whitemore
Mr. and Mrs. Michael R. Wilkinson
Mr. Christopher Wilson and  
	 Ms. Brooke Abercrombie
Mr. Gerald Wolff and Mrs. Georgetta Wolff
Dr. and Mrs. Andrew S. Wong
Mr. and Mrs. Stanley E. Wong
Richard and Bobbie Woo
Mrs. Tammy Woodman
Mr. Scott Woodward and  
	 Ms. Birgit Castleman
Mr. Nywood Wu and Meriel Lee Wu, M.D.,  
	 and Melissa, Meredith, and Michelle Wu
Ms. Tiffany Xu
Mr. and Mrs. Andrew Yee
Jeffrey and Renee Ying
Ms. Beckie D. Yon and Ms. Mary Jayne Parker
Mr. Alan F. Young
Mr. and Mrs. Robert A. Young
Mrs. Linda May Zeuschner and  
	 Mr. Robert M. Zeuschner
Ms. Selina Zhong and Mr. Peter Zhong

CORPORATE EXECUTIVE
The Capital Group Companies, Inc.
Edison International
Gardner Grout Foundation
Wells Fargo/Wells Fargo Foundation

CORPORATE BENEFACTOR
Air China
Bank of America/Merrill Lynch
East West Bank
Hahn & Hahn LLP
Paul Hastings LLP
Panda Restaurant Group Inc.
Union Bank

CORPORATE DIRECTOR
Anonymous
Milo W. Bekins Foundation
The Langham Huntington Hotel, 
	 Pasadena

CORPORATE COUNCIL
The Walt Disney Company
MATT Construction Corporation
Molina Healthcare Inc.

CORPORATE PATRON
Accenture
Achieving America Family Foundation

Anonymous
Breeders’ Cup Limited
Christie’s
City National Bank
City of San Marino
The Gas Company—A Sempra Energy Utility
HSBC
Jones Day
Pasadena Magazine
Sodexo
Town & Country Event Rentals, Inc.
ValleyCrest Landscape Companies
The Whittier Trust Company

CORPORATE MEMBER
Abell Auction
Floe Financial Partners Inc.
Julienne Fine Foods
MonteCedro
Northern Trust Bank
Resnick Foundation
San Gabriel Valley Economic Partnership
Sony Pictures Entertainment
WESCAP Group
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DONORS SUPPORTING SPECIAL PROJECTS 

For gifts other than Membership, Gifts-in-Kind, Honoraria, Memorials, and Matching Gifts

Dr. George Abdo and Ms. Sara Campbell
The Ahmanson Foundation
American Council of Learned Societies
American Institute of Physics
Anonymous
Myrtle L. Atkinson Foundation
Ayco Charitable Foundation
The Francis Bacon Foundation
Ms. Marybel Balendonck
Bancroft-Clair Foundation
Bank of America Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Hancock Banning III
June and Merle Banta
Banta Family Foundation
Dr. Gerald S. Barad
Mr. and Mrs. Max H. Baril
Mr. and Mrs. Peter K. Barker
Olin and Ann Barrett
Avery and Andrew F. Barth
Mr. and Mrs. Everett B. Bassin
Christine C. Benter
The Philip and Muriel Berman Foundation
Mr. Alan J. Bloch and Ms. Nancy M. Berman
Fred and Diane Blum
David Bohnett Foundation
Mrs. George N. Boone
Mr. Nick Boone
The Boone Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Franklin Booth III 
The Otis Booth Foundation
Maribeth and Hal Borthwick
Estate of Mr. William Boyle
Mrs. Hannah G. Bradley
Dr. and Mrs. James B. Breckinridge 
Mr. and Mrs. Steven Broidy
Dr. Katherine Bucknell Maguire
Cactus & Succulent Society of America
California Bonsai Society Inc.
California Community Foundation
California Institute of Technology
The Capital Group Companies, Inc.
Dr. Cindy and Mr. John Carson
Rachel Carson Center
Cengage Inc.
Susan and Stephen Chandler
Chanticleer Foundation
Chapman Hanson Foundation
Ms. Jennifer Cheng
The Cheng Family Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. Edward A. Chow
Christie’s
Mr. Pierson Clair IV
Mr. and Mrs. Edward E. Clark 
Mrs. Maryadele Clougherty
Marty and Bruce Coffey
The Marty and Bruce Coffey Family Foundation
Mr. and Ms. Christopher W. Combs
Community Foundation of  
	 Western North Carolina Inc.
Confidence Foundation
Mrs. Eleanor Congdon
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph H. Coulombe
Mr. and Mrs. Bryant C. Danner
Mr. Gale G. Davis and Mrs. Cynthia Davis
Mr. and Mrs. K. Leo Dencik

Desert Community Foundation
Marne and William Deverell
Mrs. James F. Dickason
Diggers Garden Club of Pasadena
Julia Stearns Dockweiler Charitable Foundation
Estate of Mrs. William H. Doheny
Prof. Frances Dolan
Mr. Douglas Dombek and Mr. Curtis Dombek
Joseph Drown Foundation
Estate of Donald Duke
Mr. George A. V. Dunning and  
	 Mr. Robert M. Marino
Edison International
Dr. and Mrs. Roger S. C. Eng
Mrs. Robert F. Erburu 
Dr. Robert N. Essick
The Essick Foundation Inc.
The Ray and Wyn Ritchie Evans Foundation
Alix B. Fargo
Judith and Stan Farrar
Sydney and Ray Feeney
Alisa M. Fickewirth and John M. Fickewirth
Fidelity Charitable Gift Fund
Dr. and Mrs. Jonathan E. Fielding
The Fletcher Jones Foundation
Ms. Kit Fuller
Mr. Kevin Gambrel and Mrs. Rieko Gambrel
Garden Club of Laguna Woods
George Dock Society for the  
	 History of Medicine
Thomas Gertmenian and Sally Barngrove
Ann and Gordon Getty Foundation
Glendale Mall Associates
Joseph Goddu Fine Arts Inc.
Golden State Bonsai Federation
Mrs. George Good
George and Marcia Good Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Richard A. Grant Jr.
Ms. Susan Steinhauser and  
	 Mr. Daniel Greenberg
The Greenberg Foundation
Mrs. Kathleen Grundhofer
Jerry A. and Kathleen A. Grundhofer 
	 Family Foundation
The Guerin Foundation
Kelsey Browne Hall
Ms. Marilyn Jane Hall
Frederick Hammersley Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. William T. Hammond
Gary K. Hart and Cary S. Hart
 The John Randolph Haynes and  
	 Dora Haynes Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Patrick N. Hoban
Ms. Barbara Hodson
Dr. Loren N. Horton
Mr. and Mrs. William L. Horton 
HSBC
Mr. and Mrs. William H. Hurt
Ms. Barbara F. Inamoto and  
	 Mr. George P. Sutton
The Christopher Isherwood Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Frank W. Jameson 
J. W. and Ida M. Jameson Foundation
Mr. Scott Eric Jordan
Valerie E. Lyons and Jay Judson

W. M. Keck Foundation
Dorena R. Knepper
Mr. and Mrs. Jerry Kohl
Jerry & Terri Kohl Family Foundation
KPMG LLP
Hannah and Russel Kully
Ms. Coralie Kupfer
Kupfer Law and Mediation
Mr. and Mrs. Kam Kwok
Mr. and Mrs. Jay T. Last
Sharon and John Light
Mr. William D. Lippman
The Little Garden Club of Pasadena
Mr. and Mrs. Francis D. Logan
Los Angeles County
Los Angeles Railroad Heritage Foundation
Estate of Dr. Patricia Ann Lowry
Ms. Monica Lozano
Mr. and Mrs. Donald Macfarland
Macfarland Family Foundation
MacTon Foundation
Frank and Mona Mapel
Estate of Elise Mudd Marvin
Estate of Dr. Ernest P. Mauk Jr.
Mayfield Junior School of the Holy Child Jesus
Helen S. and John J. McKetta Jr.  
	 Charitable Foundation
Mrs. Edward H. McLaughlin Jr.
Ms. Constance C. McPhee
The Paul Mellon Centre
Mericos Foundation
Margot and Mitch Milias
The Milias Foundation
Jack Miller Center

Claudia P. Huntington and Marshall Miller
Mrs. Annamarie Mitchell
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas M. Mitchell
Dr. and Mrs. J. Mario Molina
Diane and Trevor M. Morris
Frank and Toshie Mosher
Mr. and Mrs. Victor V. Moy
Alfred C. Munger Foundation
Mr. Charles T. Munger
Dan Murphy Foundation
The National Archives and Records 
	 Administration
National Philanthropic Trust
Mr. Henry M. Nevins
The Newberry Library
Nichi Bei Fujin Kai
Mrs. Kenneth T. Norris Jr.
Estate of Dr. Doyce B. Nunis Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Stuart O’Melveny
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen R. Onderdonk 
Mrs. Yvonne Pan
Ms. Nan Rae and Mr. Charles L. Parker
The Ralph M. Parsons Foundation
Pasadena Audubon Society
Pasadena Community Foundation
Pasadena Garden Club
Paul Hastings LLP
Peco Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Ralph Peer II
Mr. and Mrs. James Peters
James G. Phillipp and Concepcion Arechebala
Dr. William D. Phillips and  
	 Dr. Carla Rahn Phillips
Laurence and Carol Pretty

Milton Avery’s Burlesque, 1936, oil on canvas, was one of several purchases by the Art Collectors’ 
Council. The Huntington Library, Art Collections, and Botanical Gardens. © 2015 The Milton Avery 
Trust / Artists Rights Society (ARS), New York.
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HONORARIA 

The Huntington is privileged to recognize gifts made in tribute of someone admired, respected, or remembered in a special way.

Mr. Ashwin Adarkar and  
	 Dr. Sushma Adarkar 
		  Heather and Paul Haaga

Mr. and Mrs. Olin Barrett 
	 Mr. George Stephens Jr.

Dr. Jean R. Brink and Mr. Peter Brink 
	 Dr. Anne Lake Prescott

Ms. Maddy Deligio 
	 Mrs. Erin Questad and  
		  Mr. Mario Espinoza

Mr. James Glisson 
	 Dr. and Mrs. Robert Dewhirst

Dr. and Mrs. Steven S. Koblik 
	 Anonymous 
	 Ms. Susan Steinhauser and  
		  Mr. Daniel Greenberg 
	 Mr. and Mrs. William L. Horton 
	 MacTon Foundation 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Michael D. McGaha 
	 Margot and Mitch Milias 
	 Claudia P. Huntington and Marshall Miller 
	 Anne and Jim Rothenberg 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Dennis Stanfill 
	 Weingart Foundation

Mr. and Mrs. Harvey Kong 
	 Mr. David Ascher

Mr. and Ms. Larry Latimer 
	 Ms. Kathleen Schofield

Ms. Virginia O. Lew and Dr. Edward K. Lew 
	 Daniel and Toby Bernstein

Ms. Carol P. Lewis 
	 Ms. Kimberly Martin

June Li 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Donald J. Alschuler 
	 Fidelity Charitable Gift Fund 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Bruce G. McGregor

Mr. and Mrs. Dave Liggett 
	 Greater Kansas City Community 
		  Foundation 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Dave Lundegard

Ms. Suzy Moser 
	 Dr. George Abdo and Ms. Sara Campbell 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Donald J. Alschuler 
	 Mrs. Linda L. Chang 
	 Ms. Margaret F. Leong and  
		  Mr. Michael P. Checca 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Chunneng Chen 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Raymond Kum-Nin Cheng 
	 Mr. and Mrs. John Chou 
	 Mr. and Mrs. William Chow 
	 Fidelity Charitable Gift Fund 
	 Mrs. Paula J. Fong 
	 Mr. Stephen He and Mrs. Hong Chen 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Nowland C. Hong 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Henry Hu 
	 Mr. Eric Fun Lee and Ms. Susanna Kong 
	 Ms. Virginia O. Lew and Dr. Edward K. Lew 
	 Ethan and Joanne Lipsig 
	 Ms. Fang Z. Liu 
	 Mei-Lee Ney 
	 Mr. Brian D. Phillips and  
		  Ms. Hsiang-Rong Yang

	 Dr. and Mrs. Edmond H. Pi  
	 Ms. Betty Shon 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Yee-Jen Shuai 
	 Christina Singleton 
	 Mr. Ernie So 
	 Dr. and Mrs. Richard Sun 
	 Ms. Julie Wong Tam and Mr. Robert Tam 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Eddie S. Y. Wang 
	 Dr. and Mrs. Edward Wong 
	 Mrs. Beth Woo 
	 Beth & Wilbur Woo Family Foundation 
	 Eva and Paul Zee

Mrs. Suki Nax 
	 Mr. Patrick Reid

Judith Plunkett 
	 Ms. Yvonne L. Green

Mr. Lynn Paul Reitnouer and  
	 Mrs. Winslow Rowe Reitnouer 
		  Ms. Susan M. Davis

Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth G. Riley 
	 Ayco Charitable Foundation 
	 June and Paul Bilgore

Mrs. Coreen Rodgers 
	 Mr. Cliff Kolovson and  
		  Ms. Ilene Knopping-Kolovson

Anne Rothenberg 
	 Mr. and Mrs. D. Kerry McCluggage

Princeton University Class of 1969
Mr. and Mrs. Charles C. Read 
Redondo Beach Seniors
William Reese Company
Renaissance Society of America
Mr. and Mrs. John J. Reynolds
Jeep Rice
Mrs. J. Randolph Richards 
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth G. Riley 
David and Kathleen Rips
Dr. Louise Ritchie and Dr. Robert C. Ritchie
Susan W. and Carl W. Robertson
Mr. Joel and Dr. Ricki Robinson
The Joel and Ricki Robinson Family 
	 Foundation
Estate of Mildred E. Rodstrom
Mr. and Mrs. David Booth Rogers
Mr. Stephen E. Rogers
Dr. Malcolm J. Rohrbough and  
	 Ms. Sarah Hanley
Mr. Jerry Romotsky and Dr. Sally Romotsky
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Ronus
The Rose Hills Foundation
Anne and Jim Rothenberg
Loren and Frances Rothschild

Mr. and Ms. Stephen D. Rountree
San Francisco Succulent & Cactus Society
San Marino Girl Scouts
Estate of Kendrick A. Schlatter
The Schwab Fund for Charitable Giving
The Scottsdale Foundation
The Hon. and Mrs. R. Carlton Seaver
The Seaver Endowment
The Seaver Institute
Mr. and Mrs. Emmons Sebenius
Mrs. Terry Seidler
Mrs. Mary-Jeannette Selwyn
E. L. & Ruth B. Shannon Foundation
Mrs. E. L. Shannon Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. L. Dennis Shapiro 
Mr. Allen E. Shay and Ms. Kirsten L. Hansen
Edward A. and Ai O. Shay Family Foundation
The Shea Foundation
Shekels Charitable Foundation
Mr. Eric W. Sigg
Sky Vision Insurance Agency
Lisa and Tim Sloan
H. Russell Smith
Mr. Stewart R. Smith and  
	 Ms. Robin A. Ferracone

Mr. and Mrs. Richard Spelke
Alan and Janet Stanford
Stanford University
Mr. Robert H. Stiefel
Mrs. John A. Sturgeon
Mr. Philip V. Swan and  
	 Mrs. Katherine S. Swan
Terra Foundation for the Arts
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph R. Terrazas Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. David Thompson
Elizabeth S. Thompson
Mr. and Mrs. Charles B. Thornton Jr.
The Thornton Foundation
Thousand Oaks Library
Mr. Spencer Wen Hau Tien and Ms. Lilly Tien
John Toomey Gallery Inc.
Mr. Paul Tsai and Mrs. DauhLian Chi
Ms. Maureen B. Tyson and  
	 Ms. Maureen A. Tyson
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Ulyatt
University of California, Riverside
University of Southern California
Uptown Gay and Lesbian Alliance Inc.
USC Emeriti Center
I. N. and Susanna H. Van Nuys Foundation

Vanguard Charitable Endowment Program
WWW Foundation
Mr. Robert J. Walcott and  
	 Mrs. Laurie J. Sanderson-Walcott
Mr. and Mrs. Robert A. Waller 
Robert A. Waller Foundation
Mr. Ronald E. Wardwell
Mr. Robert S. Warren
Mr. and Mrs. Paul H. Webb
Sidney J. Weinberg Jr. Foundation
Dr. Howard D. Weinbrot and  
	 Ms. Dawn T. Simon Weinbrot
Weingart Foundation
Wells Fargo Foundation
Sally K. Wenzlau
Westfield Santa Anita
Estate of Mr. Loran M. Whitelock
L. K. Whittier Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Mark Wiedenbeck
Mr. Willis B. Wood Jr.
Deborah and Robert Wycoff
Zamorano Club
Estate of Evelyn Zillgitt
Robert Zimmermann Memorial 

Namibian native Cyphostemma juttae pos-
sesses a unique trait for harnessing energy 
from the sun: even after losing its fleshy leaves 
in winter, the plant’s translucent parchment-like 
bark allows light to reach the photosynthetic 
layers below.
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MEMORIALS 

Gifts made in the enduring memory of loved ones support the general programs of The Huntington or one of our five program divisions.

Mr. Robert Anderson 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Leslie J. Fedor

Ms. Marilyn Beasley 
	 Ms. Jill S. Weinreich

Mr. George H. Benter Jr. 
	 Christine C. Benter 
	 Mrs. Judith C. Nunnelly

Ms. Peggy Park Bernal 
	 Mr. Carl R. Baker 
	 Miss Victoria Bernal 
	 Ms. Barbara Bishop 
	 Mr. Jeremy Clear 
	 Ms. Kathy Coontz 
	 Ms. Anne De Wolfe 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Donald E. Dunham 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Richard L. Ehlen 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Duncan Fowler 
	 Ms. Nancy T. Gilmour 
	 Mrs. George Good 
	 Alexis Goubran-Wang 
	 Mr. Harvey D. Hagman and  
		  Ms. Kathryn Lacombe 
	 Ms. Katherine Harkness 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Richard V. Healy 
	 Huntington Westerners 
	 Ms. Miriam Jin 
	 Mr. and Mrs. James Krough 
	 Mr. and Mrs. William R. Marken 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Meyer 
	 Ms. Rhonda Ruick O’Brien 
	 Ms. Elizabeth H. Richardson 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Harlan J. Sandberg 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Ralph Shapira 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Randy A. Shulman 
	 Rev. and Mrs. Rell D. Spickerman 
	 Jo Ann and Ken Todd

Mr. Frederick Brandt 
	 Mr. and Mrs. James M. Galbraith

Ms. Helen Carothers 
	 Ms. Erica Hahn

Ms. Hallie Carruth 
	 Hally and Jeff Prater

Mrs. Barbara Charles 
	 Dr. and Mrs. Thomas J. Maxwell

Mr. George Ching 
	 Edward K. Lew, D.D.S. Incorporated 
	 Ms. Virginia O. Lew and Dr. Edward K. Lew

Mr. Tom Clougherty 
	 Ms. Carol Reynolds

Ms. Francie Cornwell 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Calvin B. Cornwell 
	 Lagerlof, Senecal, Gosney & Kruse LLP

Mrs. Elizabeth Crahan 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Gary J. Herman 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Arnold Levine 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey Markwith 
	 Ms. Margaret A. Miller 
	 Ms. Stacia F. Payne 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Paul Young

Ms. Emma Dagan 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Henry N. Foster

Mr. and Mrs. Joseph F. Dammer 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Joseph F. Dammer Jr.

Morgina Williams Eagleton 
	 Anonymous 
	 Ms. Susan D. Murray

Mr. Robert F. Erburu 
	 California Community Foundation 
	 Mr. Robert L. Davis and  
		  Ms. Patricia A. Brunette 
	 Ms. Betty S. Foreman and  
		  Mr. Theodore T. Tsotsis 
	 Dr. and Mrs. John W. House 
	 Pfaffinger Foundation 
	 Mr. O. Stanley Woolson Jr.

Mr. and Mrs. Gordon Fish 
	 John W. Fish 
	 Marcia M. McMahon

E. L. & Ruth B. Shannon Foundation 
	 Mrs. E. L. Shannon Jr. 
	 Ms. Barbara E. Wagner

Mr. Edward Warren Hoak 
	 Dr. and Mrs. Robert K. Vickery Jr.

Mr. Samuel W. Hunt 
	 Mrs. John A. Sturgeon

Louise and John Jacobus 
	 Ms. Judith L. Jacobus

Soon-Kyun Yoon Jensen 
	 Fidelity Charitable Gift Fund 
	 Mrs. Vivian Kun and Mr. William Kun

Mr. Kiyoshi Kishimoto 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Keith R. Anderson

Mr. and Mrs. Khan Komai 
	 Baikoen Bonsai Club 
	 California Bonsai Society Inc. 
	 Mr. Chris Komai 
	 Mr. Neil Komai 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Ralph Y. Komai 
	 Ms. Karen Margolis 
	 Santa Anita Bonsai Society

Mr. Frank H. Kono 
	 Trader Joe’s Company 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Leroy Watson

Li-Tzu H. Lee 
	 Mr. Hunter Chen 
	 Regeneron Pharmaceuticals Inc.

Ms. Ruby K. Lee 
	 Mr. and Mrs. William Firchau 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Robert E. Ham Sr. 
	 Ms. Cynthia Li
	 Bob and Lana Mcdonell 
	 Ms. Sarah Soifer

Mr. Edward I. Levin 
	 Ms. Nancie Bornstein 
	 Dr. Thomas McLean 
	 Ms. Janice R. Paster 
	 Ms. Lana Sternberg

Mr. and Mrs. Chi-Wen Liu 
	 Mrs. Pei-Lu Liu and Mr. Timothy L. Liu

Ms. Kathy Madsen 
	 Marty and Bruce Coffey 
	 The Marty and Bruce Coffey  
		  Family Foundation 
	 Ms. Maureen M. C. Draper 
	 Mr. and Mrs. John Finch 
	 Mr. and Mrs. James M. Galbraith 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Fred Schoellkopf

Mrs. Nancy Munger 
	 Ms. Ava Chang 
	 Bob Cialdini and Bobette Gorden 
	 Mr. William M. Podley

Ms. Rosemarie Nevarez 
	 Ms. Michelle Meyer

Dr. and Mrs. Robert Lee Oldham 
	 Estate of Dr. and Mrs. Robert Lee Oldham

Mr. Robert C. Osher 
	 Mrs. Judith Ostrander

Ms. Jessie Rose Parkin 
	 Ms. Carol Belnap

Felix Pulinski 
	 Ms. Barbara Neisler

Mr. Edward O. Robinson 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Charles R. Adams 
	 Mrs. Maryadele Clougherty 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Raymond Kelly 
	 Mr. and Mrs. David Mattoon 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Guy Patterson 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Arnold E. Soderberg 
	 Mr. and Mrs. John M. Wagner

Mr. Donald G. Rogers 
	 Don L. Smith, M.D., and Kathe L. Smith

Ms. Fran Schenck 
	 Mr. Peter Lee Chun 
	 Mr. and Mrs. J. David Germany 
	 Ms. Louise C. Guerin and Mr. Nick Kratz 
	 Mrs. Mikki Heydorff and Mr. J. K. Heydorff 
	 Mr. Edwin E. Loh 
	 Ms. Jean Parry 
	 Mr. Wayne L. Schenck 
	 Mrs. Gloria D. Sierra and  
		  Mr. Cristian A. Sierra

Ms. Barbara L. Simpson 
	 Mrs. Thomas K. Caughey 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Henry N. Foster 
	 Lester Hammar 
	 Mr. and Mrs. John F. Harvey 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth G. Riley 
	 Mrs. Rosemary B. Simmons 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Gary Toebben

Mr. H. Russell Smith 
	 Fidelity Charitable Gift Fund 
	 Claudia P. Huntington and Marshall Miller 
	 Ms. Olivia Garfield and  
		  Mr. Michael A. Newkirk 
	 Mrs. Terry Seidler 
	 Mr. Lee Wagman 
	 William and Eileen Zimmerman

Mrs. Selena A. Spurgeon 
	 Mr. Charles H. Spurgeon

Charles Stephens 
	 Mr. Jud O. Roberts

Martin Stoner 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Charles J. Goodacre 
	 Mrs. Elaine Porter

Mrs. Janice H. Strugar 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Douglas G. Strugar 
	 The Strugar Family Foundation

Har T. Tong 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Sig Y. Tong

Mrs. William Tookey 
	 Ms. Louise C. Guerin and Mr. Nick Kratz

Ms. Lourene E. Vail 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Jerold J. Haserot

Ms. Ann Fox Wakeley 
	 Dr. Beverly M. Boyd

Mr. Edwin Wald 
	 Mrs. Carrie Wald Cordova

Mrs. Barbara R. Warner 
	 Huntington Westerners

Mrs. Robert S. Warren 
	 Mary Jane Boggs 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Phil Bosl 
	 Mrs. Janet O. Bowmer 
	 Mr. & Mrs. Joseph H. Coulombe 
	 Mr. and Mrs. David S. Crawford 
	 Fidelity Charitable Gift Fund 
	 Dr. and Mrs. Lee Grund 
	 Mrs. Thornton Hamlin Jr. 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Bruce Jones 
	 Mr. and Mrs. George D. Leal 
	 Marjorie and Steven Lewis 
	 Mr. and Mrs. David Link 
	 Ms. Sheila Mahaney 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Sherman J. McQueen 
	 Mrs. Elizabeth Medearis and  
		  Mr. Sandy McLean 
	 John and Thelma Orr 
	 Mrs. Judith Ostrander 
	 Pasadena Community Foundation 
	 Mrs. Linda Pretzel-Roberts 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth G. Riley 
	 Mrs. John S. Rossiter 
	 Ms. Katherine P. Schiels 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Friedrich W. Seitz 
	 Mrs. E. L. Shannon Jr. 
	 E. L. & Ruth B. Shannon Foundation 
	 Mr. and Mrs. James K. Singleton 
	 Mrs. John A. Sturgeon 
	 Mr. Philip V. Swan and  
		  Mrs. Katherine S. Swan 
	 Mr. James Thompson 
	 Mr. Ron Toews and The Hon. Beth Grimes 
	 Mrs. E. Leroy Tolles 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Franklin E. Ulf 
	 Mr. Robert S. Warren 
	 Mr. Martin Carl Washton and  
		  Mrs. Susan Washton

Alan Wayte 
	 Mrs. Nancy L. Savage

Ms. Virginia Dzung Weng 
	 Mr. Wan-go H. C. Weng

Mrs. Lily Y. Wong 
	 Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence S. Young

Mr. and Mrs. James K. Yin 
	 Mrs. Pei-Lu Liu and Mr. Timothy L. Liu
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IN-KIND DONORS 

The Huntington thanks individuals and corporations who have responded to institutional needs through nonmonetary gifts of tangible goods or 
services. In-kind gifts support our programs and build our collections, contributing to the institution’s overall success.

Dr. George Abdo and Ms. Sara Campbell
Mrs. Jean Abell and Ms. Ann Shearing
Abraham Lincoln Presidential Library  
	 and Museum
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher Adde
Mr. Cyrus Afshin
Mr. John B. Ahouse
Alberting Museum
Anonymous
Dr. Jamie Armstrong 
Mr. and Mrs. Richard J. Arnold
Art Car Museum
Ashgate Publishing Limited
Dr. Helen Barr
Ms. Barbara Barrett-Byrne
Avery and Andrew F. Barth
Mr. and Mrs. Everett B. Bassin
Ms. Leslie Batson
Mr. Joseph Bellows
Martha Benedict
Dr. Shelley M. Bennett
Mr. Jacob Berkowitz
The Philip and Muriel Berman Foundation
Dr. Stephen Bernard
Bernard Quaritch Ltd.
Mr. John Bertram
Bird Pick Tea & Herb
Rev. Stephanie Miller and  
	 Dr. Robert Bjorklund
Mr. and Mrs. John R. Blakesley
Mr. John Blew
Mr. Isaac J. Bloch
Dr. Peter Blodgett and Ms. Sara S. Hodson
Ms. Kathy Boehme
Ms. Nancy Bogen
Bon Appetea
Mr. William Bradley
Dr. and Mrs. James B. Breckinridge
Dr. Susan Brigden
Estate of Mr. Ernest A. Bryant III
Ms. Olive Buchan
Mr. Matt Buff
Mrs. Linda L. Bukowski
Ms. Elizabeth V. Foldi and Mr. Leo Bulgarini
Ms. Jacqueline Bunge-Barger
Dr. Michael J. Burden
Dr. Chuck Campbell
Dr. Cindy and Mr. John Carson
Mr. Barry Cauchon
Mr. Gusmano Cesaretti
Ms. Myra D. Chalfant
Dr. Erica M. Charters
Ms. Carolyn Check
Mr. David Chen
Fred Y. and Sarah W. Chen
Mr. Jin Chen
Mr. Gabriel Ching
Mr. Richard N. Cirino
Mr. and Mrs. Nicholas R. Clapp
Ms. Linda S. Clarke
Mr. Jim Clinefelter
Sharon F. Collins and Michelle Collins

The Conrad Family: Carol Kay Conrad, 
	� David Paul Conrad, Elizabeth Conrad 

Cannizzaro, James Erik Conrad
Mr. Gale Cooper
Copa Vida Cafe
Norma and Gary Cowles
Crepe Studio
Dr. David A. Cressy
Mr. Hal Cunningham
Dr. Simona Cupic
Mr. Darryl J. Curran and Ms. Carole Brieant
Nicholas and Olivia Curry
Delicious Food Cafe
Mr. Michael Devirian and Ms. Lauri Sager
Mr. Dennis Dewenter
Mr. Brent C. Dickerson
Mr. David Dixon
Dr. Clayton Drees
dusitD2 Constance Pasadena
Eagle Rock Historical Society
Dr. John Stephan Edwards
Dr. Thomas Elias and Ms. Hiromi Nakaoji
Mr. Don Elkins
Dr. Richard R. Ellis
Erin Hanson Gallery
Dr. and Mrs. Daniel Timothy Erwin
F. Marion Crawford Society
Fanta-Sea Grill
Farm Cuisine Restaurant
Dr. and Mrs. Marion V. Filippone
Mr. Steven Fischler
Mr. John W. Fish
Ms. Theresa M. Flaherty
Ms. Anne Fleming
Mr. Rafael Z. Flores Gonzalez
Fluff Ice
Fondation D’Entreprise Louis Vuitton
Mr. Stuart Fox
Mr. Rudy Franchi
Mr. Donald French
Friends of Sharon A. Receveur
Mr. Gernot U. Gabel
Estate of Victor Gail
The Hon. and Mrs. Gil Garcetti
Prof. Malcom Gaskill
Mr. Daniel L. Geiger
Ms. Aleta George
George Washington’s Mount Vernon 
	 Estate and Gardens
Glendale Public Library
Rosalie and Nathan Gorchoff
Mr. James L. Greaves
Dr. Michael S. Green and Ms. Deborah Young
Ms. Susan Green and Mr. Lawrence Green
Green Zone
Ms. Susan Steinhauser and  
	 Mr. Daniel Greenberg
Ms. Wanda Grunwald
Hai Di Lao Hot Pot
Dr. David Hall
Dr. Dewey W. Hall
Frederick Hammersley Foundation
Mr. Roger K. Hamson

Mr. Russell Hanlin
Mr. and Mrs. Dennis Harbach
Mr. David Henderson
Dr. Thomas H. Henriksen
Ms. Janice Heppe
Mr. Garrett Hermanson
Dr. and Mrs. Steve Hindle
Ms. Willie Angel Hjorth
Joseph Holden Trust
Hopkins Fulfillment Service
Rev. Huston Horn
Ms. Velina H. Houston
Mr. Fu Qian Huang
Ms. Faye Hueston
Mr. and Mrs. Wayne Hunnicut
Huntington Library Press
Huntington-USC Institute on California 
	 and the West
Mr. William K. Hutchinson and  
	 Mrs. Lois A. Hutchinson
Ms. Karina Busto Ibarra
Images by Lighting
Dr. Caroline Ings-Chambers
Mr. Sam Irvin
Mr. Tom Jacobson
Ms. Susan E. James
Mr. Peter Jensen
Mr. Ralph W. Johnson
Mr. Ron Johnson
Mr. and Mrs. Alan Jutzi
Dr. Peter Keating
Mr. Ian F. Kelly
Dr. Paulina Kewes
Ms. Janet A. King
Mr. William R. Kinman and  
	 Dr. Gay Toltl Kinman
Dr. Julia Kloss-Weber
Mr. David Knott
Kerstin and Steven Koblik
Mr. George Kolbe
Ms. Diana Korzenik
Mr. Eric Kramer
Ms. Shelley Kresan
Hannah and Russel Kully
Sze-Ern and Margaret Kuo
Mr. and Mrs. Frederick Kuri
Ms. Cynthia J. Kurtz
Ms. Patricia Kurtz
Prof. Earle G. Labor
Lake Clark National Park and Preserve
The Langham Huntington Hotel, Pasadena
Dr. Carlos M. Larralde
Verlag Laugwitz
Mr. Hans Lee
Ms. Janeen P. Lee
Leeds Art Foundation
Mr. Henry Willard Lende Jr.
Mr. Brian Levine
Dr. Dan Lewis and Mrs. Pamela Bailey Lewis
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Lindsay
Mrs. Margaret Lindstrom and  
	 Mr. Bill Lindstrom
Dr. Sarah J. Lippert

Mr. and Mrs. Gerald Locklin
Log House Plants
Ms. Dione Longley
Mr. Elmer J. Lorenz
Mr. Gary D. Lowe
Luscious Dumplings Inc.
M. S. Property Company
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel Mahoney
Maison Akira Restaurant
Mama Musubi
Mr. and Mrs. Jack Margolis
Mr. Tom Martin
Mr. Michael McCahill
Mr. and Mrs. Edwin McCann
Ms. James S. McGee
Mr. Bruce W. McKittrick
Mr. Ken McLeod
Mrs. Marcia M. McMahon
Mr. Adam Mekler and Ms. Daphne Beneke
Melwood Press
Mr. Paul Melzer
Mr. and Mrs. O’Malley M. Miller
Mr. Ronald Miller
Dr. George Edward Milne
Mr. Dwight Minton
Ms. Gloria Molina
Dr. and Mrs. J. Mario Molina
Mr. Manny Morales
Morgan Library of Ohio Imprints
Ms. Nancy D. Moure
Moxon Chappel
Ms. Kathleen Nagy
Mr. and Mrs. Merrill L. Nash
The National Museum of Modern Art, Tokyo
Mrs. Suki Nax
Mr. Harold B. Nelson
Mr. David New
New Fusion
New Moon Restaurant
New Port Seafood Restaurant
Mr. and Mrs. David Nguyendo
No. 1 Kazoku
Jeremy and Patricia Norman
Mrs. Kenneth T. Norris Jr.
Northwestern University
Nuccio’s Nursery
Dr. Philip M. O’Brien and Ms. Ann J. Topjon
Mr. Hobart T. Oei and Mrs. Anita Oei
Mr. Robert P. Palazzo
Palm Springs Art Museum
Palomar College Library
Panda Restaurant Group Inc.
Paul Hastings LLP
Peking Tavern
Ms. Lucia Marino and Mr. Robert Pierpoint
Pine & Crane
Ms. Sheila Pinkel
Portland Art Museum
Printing Historical Society
Prof. Lewis Pyenson
Qiushi USA Distribution
Mr. D. Michael Quinn
Ms. Nina Ragle and Mr. John L. Ragle
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Mr. Roy E. Randolph
Mr. John Ray
Ray-Ray Restaurant & Teahouse
Mr. Patrick H. Rayermann and  
	 Mr. Richard Rayermann
Dr. Sandra Rebok
Mr. Adam Rettig
Rice Thai Tapas
Prof. Roger C. Richardson
Ms. Kathy Riggs
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald Rindge
Dr. Louise Ritchie and Dr. Robert C. Ritchie
Dr. Malcolm J. Rohrbough and  
	 Ms. Sarah Hanley
Dr. Andrew Rolle and Dr. Myra Rolle
Roni
Mr. Brian Rooney
Mr. Michael Rossington
Loren and Frances Rothschild
Routledge
Roy’s Pasadena
RP WIP LA Med Office Leasehold Owner LLC
Mr. Stephen Rulo
Dr. Sharon V. Salinger
Sam Woo BBQ
Samuel Johnson Society of the West
San Gabriel Nursery
San Gabriel Valley Economic Partnership

Russell E. Scharman and Douglas K. Scharman
Dr. Gary Schmidgall
Mr. Randol Schoenberg and  
	 Ms. Pamela Mayers-Schoenberg
Ms. Barbara H. Schultz
Dr. Ingo Schwarz
Prof. Donald Scragg and Dr. Leah Scragg
Mr. Robert F. Seal
Ms. Stella See
Estate of Helena Seltzer
Dr. Robert M. Senkewicz and  
	 Dr. Rose Marie Beebe
Seoul Museum of Art
Mr. Stewart Sexton
Ms. Katie Shapiro
Ms. Barbara D. Shaw Topping
Mr. and Mrs. James W. Shuttleworth
Mr. and Mrs. David Simpson
Single Stone on Mission Street
Singpoli Group LLC
Mr. Gideon F. Smith
Dr. and Mrs. Robert T. Smith
Dr. and Mrs. Walter E. Smith
Smithsonian Institution Scholarly Press
Laurie Sowd
Ms. Elizabeth B. Spelman
Ms. Daisy Montfort Spooler
Dr. Jon Stallworthy

Mr. Gaylord Staveley
Lee Stone
Dr. Roger G. Swearingen
Mr. John F. Szabo
Dr. Jinhua Tan
Cecile Tang Shu-Shuen
Tangerine Press
Taschen GmbH
Dr. Lisa Tetrault
Ms. Cathy Thomas
Mrs. William Tookey
Dr. David S. Torres-Rouff
Town & Country Event Rentals Inc.
Mr. Arthur Tress
Mr. Philip Trower
Dr. Elly R. Truitt
Mr. Richard Turner
Universität Hamburg
University of Minnesota Press
University of North Carolina Press
Ms. Dana R. Van Kooy
Ms. Mary Van Loo
Ms. Holly Vecchio
Vietnam House
Mr. Michael Vinson
Dr. and Mrs. Jack M. Waltman
Mr. Freeman Wang
Mr. George Warburg

Dr. Lawrence Warner
Mr. Tom Waterman and Mr. Jason Waterman
Ms. Jennifer Watts
Ms. Anita Weaver
Msgr. Francis J. Weber
Ralph J. and Virginia L. Wedgwood
Dr. Howard D. Weinbrot and  
	 Ms. Dawn T. Simon Weinbrot
Mr. Robert Weiss
Mr. Henry Wessells
Estate of Mr. Erling Richard West
Ms. Cicely Wheelon
Dr. Andrea White
Ms. Karina White
Dr. Ronald White Jr. and Ms. Cynthia White
Mr. and Mrs. Ian L. White-Thomson
Whittier Trust
Mr. and Mrs. Norman B. Williamson
Ms. Diana Wong
Mr. Glen Woodmansee
Xinhua News Agency
Ms. Joanne L. Yeck
Mr. Randy Young
Kwang-I and Ellen Yu
Ms. Miharu Cynthia Yuge
Zilin
Mr. Sigmund Zygelman and  
	 Ms. Joyce Zygelman

American International Group, Inc.
Amgen Foundation
Bank of America Foundation
Baxter International Foundation
The Benevity Community Impact Fund
The Boeing Company
California Community Foundation
The Capital Group Companies, Inc.
Chevron Matching Gifts
FM Global Foundation
The Getty Foundation
IBM International Foundation
Internal Drive, dba iD Tech Camps
Mattel Foundation
Medtronic
Microsoft Matching Gifts Program
Mitsubishi Cement Corporation
Occidental Petroleum Corporation
Oracle Corporation
Regeneron Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
Rockefeller Foundation
Scitor Corporation
Sempra Energy Foundation
Shell Oil Company Foundation
Silicon Valley Community Foundation
The Walt Disney Company Foundation
Weingart Foundation
Western Asset Management Company 
	 Charitable Foundation

MATCHING GIFT ORGANIZATIONS 

The following companies have matching gift programs that made gifts to The Huntington this year.

Despite its foul smell, the bloom of the rare Amorphophallus titanum, or “Corpse Flower,” attracted thousands of visitors. The 2014 bloom was  
The Huntington’s fifth since 1999.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Trustees of The Henry E. Huntington Library and Art Gallery

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Henry E. Huntington Library and Art Gal-
lery (“The Huntington”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2015, and the re-
lated statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then 
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accor-
dance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of fi-
nancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted 
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the finan-
cial statements are free from material misstatement.
	 An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair pre-
sentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circum-
stances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
	 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of The Henry E. Huntington Library and Art Gallery as of June 30, 2015, and the results of its op-
erations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally ac-
cepted in the United States of America.

Other matters
Report on 2014 summarized comparative information 
We have previously audited The Huntington’s 2014 financial statements (not presented herein), and we ex-
pressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated November 11, 
2014. In our opinion, the accompanying summarized comparative information as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2014, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has 
been derived.

Los Angeles, California
November 20, 2015
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Year ended June 30, 2015 (With Summarized Comparative Financial Information as of June 30, 2014) 

								        2015	 2014
								        Total	 Total
ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 						      $ 15,329,304 	 $ 30,168,562
Short-term investments 						      20,535,336 	 34,097,138
Accounts and other receivables 						      150,767 	 264,618
Grants and contributions receivables						      20,195,676 	 20,769,191
Prepaid expenses 						      457,790 	 476,108
Inventories 						      937,243 	 492,344
Pooled investments 						      423,468,482 	 433,068,706
Beneficial interests in trusts, insurance and real estate						      19,414,091 	 19,120,008
Real estate 						      1,739,026 	 1,472,403
Fixed assets 						      166,607,549 	 146,991,674
		  Total assets 						      $ 668,835,264 	 $686,920,752

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 
Liabilities
	 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 						      $ 4,203,540 	 $ 9,556,711
	 Note payable 						      - 	 1,330,000
	 Obligations under unitrust and annuity agreements 						      5,180,290 	 5,424,698
	 Asset retirement obligation 						      396,638 	 377,749
	 Other liabilities 						      8,573,566 	 8,000,000
		  Total liabilities 						      18,354,034 	 24,689,158

Net assets
	 Unrestricted 						      342,878,707 	 339,043,414
	 Temporarily restricted 						      174,240,603 	 196,185,709
	 Permanently restricted 						      133,361,920 	 127,002,471
		  Total net assets 						      650,481,230 	 662,231,594
		  Total liabilities and net assets 						      $ 668,835,264 	 $686,920,752
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year ended June 30, 2015 (With Summarized Comparative Financial Information for the Year Ended June 30, 2014)

						      Temporarily 	 Permanently 	 2015 	 2014
					     Unrestricted 	 Restricted 	 Restricted 	 Total 	 Total
Operating support and revenue
	 Investment return used for operations 			   $ 13,660,403 	 $ - 	 $ - 	 $ 13,660,403 	 $ 13,029,993
	 Individual, corporate and foundation contributions 			   11,737,005 	 15,455,649 	 6,359,449 	 33,552,103 	 38,711,554
	 Fees, auxiliary services, sales and other revenue 			   10,616,536 	 - 	 - 	 10,616,536 	 9,867,664
		  Total operating support and revenue 			   36,013,944 	 15,455,649 	 6,359,449 	 57,829,042 	 61,609,211
Net assets released from restriction
	 Satisfaction of restrictions 			   23,382,854 	 (23,382,854) 	 - 	 - 	 -
		  Total operating support and revenue and net assets released from restrictions 		  59,396,798 	 (7,927,205) 	 6,359,449 	 57,829,042 	 61,609,211

Operating expenses
	 Program 			   41,955,993 	 -	  - 	 41,955,993 	 45,622,982
	 Supporting 			   9,189,986	  -	  - 	 9,189,986 	 6,842,190
	 Cost of sales and auxiliary services 			   4,211,350 	 - 	 - 	 4,211,350 	 3,423,655
		  Total operating expenses 			   55,357,329 	 - 	 - 	 55,357,329 	 55,888,827

Changes in net assets from operations			   4,039,469 	 (7,927,205) 	 6,359,449 	 2,471,713 	 5,720,384

Other non-operating revenue, gains and losses
	 Investment return 			   115,250 	 (137,902) 	 - 	 (22,652) 	 59,390,286
	 Change in value of split interest agreements 			   (319,426) 	 (219,596) 	 - 	 (539,022) 	 (713,004)
	 Investment return used for operations 			   - 	 (13,660,403)	  - 	 (13,660,403) 	 (13,029,993)
		  Total non-operating revenue, gains and losses 			   (204,176) 	 (14,017,901) 	 - 	 (14,222,077) 	 45,647,289

Changes in net assets			   3,835,293 	 (21,945,106) 	 6,359,449 	 (11,750,364) 	 51,367,673

Net assets at beginning of year 			   339,043,414 	 196,185,709 	 127,002,471 	 662,231,594 	 610,863,921
Net assets at end of year 			   $ 342,878,707 	 $ 174,240,603 	 $ 133,361,920 	 $ 650,481,230 	 $ 662,231,594
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended June 30, 2015 (With Summarized Comparative Financial Information for the Year Ended June 30, 2014)

								        2015	 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets 						      $(11,750,364) 	 $ 51,367,673
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash used by operating activities
	 Depreciation 						      9,942,319 	 7,518,747
	 Non-cash change to asset retirement obligation 						      18,887 	 17,988
	 Amortization of pledge discounts 						      (459,343) 	 402,638
	 Receipt of contributed securities 						      (6,245,305) 	 (5,832,985)
	 Contributions for long-term investment 						      7,458,178 	 7,527,570
	 Net realized and unrealized loss (gain) on investments 						      1,612,547 	 (56,417,707)
	 Gain on sale of assets 						      (56,750) 	 -
	 Changes in operating assets and liabilities
		  Accounts and other receivables, including accrued investment income 						      106,287 	 109,764
		  Grants and contributions receivable 						      (11,361,039) 	 (20,337,215)
		  Prepaid expenses 						      18,318 	 133,304
		  Inventories 						      (444,899) 	 (21,386)
		  Notes and mortages receivable 						      - 	 119,587
		  Accounts payable and accrued expenses 						      (493,580) 	 908,865
		  Other liabilities 						      573,565 	 8,000,000
		             Net cash used by operating activities 						      (11,081,179) 	 (6,503,157)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 						      75,930,305 	 138,218,460
Proceeds from sales of contributed securities 						      6,245,305 	 5,832,985
Purchases of investments 						      (53,896,607) 	 (173,993,593)
Purchases of fixed assets 						      (34,361,035) 	 (33,758,553)
Improvements of real estate holdings 						      (266,623) 	 (36,794)
		             Net cash used by investing activities 						      (6,348,655) 	 (63,737,495)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Contributions for long-term investment 						      4,935,719 	 14,806,499
Change in beneficial interests in trusts and insurance 						      (1,015,143) 	 4,810,377
Net borrowings on note payable 						      (1,330,000) 	 (1,330,000)
		             Net cash provided by financing activities 						      2,590,576 	 18,286,876
Change in cash and cash equivalents 						      (14,839,258) 	 (51,953,776)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of fiscal year 						      30,168,562 	 82,122,338
Cash and cash equivalents at end of fiscal year 						      $ 15,329,304 	 $ 30,168,562

Supplement cash flow information:
	 Gifts of securities 						      $ 6,245,305 	 $ 5,832,985
	 Accounts payable related to the acquisition of fixed assets 						      $ 1,022,801 	 $ 4,354,424
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2015 (With Summarized Comparative Financial Information for June 30, 2014)

1. ORGANIZATION

The Henry E. Huntington Library and Art Gallery (“The Huntington”) is a California nonprofit charitable trust created in 1919 by Henry E. Huntington to promote and advance 
“learning, the arts and sciences, and to promote the public welfare; to render the books, manuscripts and other contents available to scholars and other persons engaged in research 
or creative work in history, literature, art, science and kindred subjects; to disseminate and contribute to the advancement of useful information and knowledge; ...and generally to 
conduct an institution of educational value to the public.”

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

Basis of Presentation 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America (“GAAP”). The Huntington reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily 
restricted net assets and permanently restricted net assets.

	� Unrestricted net assets – net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations. The Board of Trustees may elect to designate such net assets for specific purposes or to 
function as endowment. This designation may be removed at the Board’s discretion.

	� Temporarily restricted net assets – net assets that are subject to donor-imposed stipulations that either expire by passage of time or can be fulfilled and removed by actions of 
The Huntington pursuant to these stipulations. As the restrictions are satisfied, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the 
accompanying statement of activities and changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions. Donor restricted contributions received and expended in the same 
reporting period may be recorded as unrestricted contribution.

	� Permanently restricted net assets – net assets that are subject to donor-imposed stipulations that must be maintained in perpetuity while permitting The Huntington to use or 
expend part or all of the income derived from the donated assets.

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
All highly liquid investments with maturity of three months or less when purchased are considered to be cash equivalents. The Huntington maintains its cash and cash equivalents 
with major financial institutions. Accounts at these institutions are guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) up to $250,000 for each bank. The 
Huntington is exposed to credit risk for amounts held in excess of the FDIC limit. The Huntington does not anticipate nonperformance by these institutions.

Short Term Investments 
Short term investments were comprised of money market mutual funds, short term commercial papers and short term treasury notes. The Huntington’s short term investments are 
measured at fair value using quoted prices that represent Level 1 inputs.

Inventories 
Inventories are reported at the lower of cost or market on a first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) basis and consist of items held by The Huntington Store and Huntington Library Press 
publications.

Investments 
Investments with a readily determinable market value are stated at fair value; hedge funds and limited partnerships are also stated at fair value. Other investments including real 
estate and oil leases are stated at cost. Gains or losses and investment income on investments are reported in the statement of activities and changes in net assets as increases or 
decreases in unrestricted net assets, unless their use is temporarily or permanently restricted by explicit donor stipulation. Interest and dividends are accrued as earned or declared.

Beneficial Interests in Trusts, Insurance and Real Estate 
The Huntington has a beneficial interest in a number of split-interest agreements. Interests in the gift annuity fund, pooled income fund, and charitable remainder trusts are stated 
at fair value, with a corresponding liability for the present value of estimated future payments, using discount rates ranging from 3% to 7.5% and life expectancy tables, to the 
beneficiary(ies) other than The Huntington. A reserve account is maintained for the gift annuity fund in compliance with California Department of Insurance regulations. The 
Huntington is the beneficiary of life insurance policies with a cash surrender value. The Huntington is also a beneficiary of a one-sixth interest in an apartment building. The gains or 
losses and investment income on split-interest agreements are reported in the statement of activities and changes in net assets as investment income. When The Huntington is 
named as trustee under the terms of a split-interest agreement, the agreement is recorded at the fair value of the trust on the date of the trust; a corresponding liability is recorded to 
recognize the present value of expected future cash flows to be paid to the beneficiary(ies). When The Huntington is not named as trustee under the terms of a split-interest 
agreement in which it has a beneficial interest, the agreement is recorded when The Huntington is notified of the beneficial interest and when the market value of the agreement can 
be readily ascertained.

Fixed Assets 
Fixed assets are recorded at cost or amounts assigned at dates of gifts, less accumulated depreciation. The Huntington’s policy is to capitalize property acquisitions of non-expend-
able items with a cost of over $10,000 or more and with a useful life of more than one year. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives 
of the buildings and building improvements (10-30 years), equipment and vehicles (3-15 years), and land improvements (15-25 years).

Note Payable 
In July 2012, The Huntington purchased items of furniture designed by Frank Lloyd Wright; the dining table, chairs, and reclining chair had previously been loaned for exhibition by 
the seller. Part of the purchase was funded by a three-year, interest-free note from the seller of $2,660,000. In July 2013, a payment of $1,330,000 was made, and the final payment of 
$1,330,000 was made in July 2014. 

Asset Retirement Obligation 
The Huntington records conditional asset retirement obligations consistent with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 410, Asset Retirement Obligations. Accrued asset 
retirement obligations, net of accumulated amortization, at June 30, 2015 and 2014 are $396,638 and $377,749, respectively.

Other Liabilities 
In July 2013, The Huntington received a distribution of $8,000,000. In May 2015, The Huntington received a final distribution of $573,566 on the above mentioned trust. These 
distributions were made prior to the determination of the trust liabilities. Consequently, The Huntington may need to refund all or a portion of these distributions if needed by the 
trust to settle outstanding liabilities.
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Contributions and Grants 
Unconditional contributions and grants are recorded as revenue when executed, and other contributions are recorded when received. The Huntington records gifts of cash and other 
assets as temporarily restricted contributions if they are received with stipulations from the donor that limit their use or are to be received in the future. When a donor restriction 
expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and 
reported in the statement of activities and changes in net assets as net assets released from restriction.

Contributed Services 
A substantial number of volunteers have donated significant amounts of time and services to The Huntington’s program operations and to its fundraising campaigns. Contributed 
services are recognized by The Huntington if the services received (a) create or enhance long-lived assets or (b) require specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing 
those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation. The services donated by volunteers are not reflected in the accompanying financial statements as 
an expense or as income from donations since such services do not meet the above criteria for recording under GAAP.

Fees, Auxiliary Services, Sales and Other Revenues 
Fees, auxiliary services, sales and other revenues include admissions, bookstore sales, publications sales, fees for reproducing Huntington images, concession fees from the food 
services provider, fees for filming on Huntington property, and revenues from other auxiliary services.

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses. While management believes that these estimates are adequate as of June 30, 2015, it is possible that actual results could differ from those 
estimates.

Impairment of Long-lived Assets 
Management reviews each asset or asset group for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset or asset group may not be recoverable. 
The review of recoverability is based on management’s estimate of the undiscounted future cash flows that are expected to result from the asset’s use and eventual disposition. If an 
impairment event exists due to the projected inability to recover the carrying value of an asset or asset group, an impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the carrying value 
exceeds estimated fair value. No impairment provision was recorded by The Huntington during the year ended June 30, 2015.

Taxes 
The Huntington operates as a not-for-profit organization and has been recognized by the Internal Revenue Service as an organization exempt from income taxation pursuant to 
Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3) on its income other than unrelated business income and has also been recognized by the Franchise Tax Board as exempt from state 
franchise or income tax pursuant to California Revenue and Taxation Code Section 23701(d) on its income other than unrelated business income. As required by GAAP, The 
Huntington has identified and evaluated its significant tax positions for which the statute of limitations remain open and has determined that there is no material unrecognized 
benefit or liability to be recorded. The open tax years are the years ended June 30, 2012 through June 30, 2014 for federal tax purposes, the years ended June 30, 2011 through June 30, 
2014 for California tax purposes, and the years ended June 30, 2012 through June 30, 2014 for New York tax purposes. There have been no material changes in unrecognized benefits 
as of June 30, 2014 or June 30, 2015, nor are any material changes anticipated in the twelve months following June 30, 2015. There have been no related tax penalties or interest, 
which would be classified as a tax expense in the statement of activities.

Functional Expense Reporting 
The costs of providing program and supporting services have been summarized by function, based on estimates developed by management. 

Prior Year’s Summarized Financial Information 
The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized information in total, but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a 
presentation in conformity with GAAP in the United States of America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with The Huntington’s financial statements for 
the year ended June 30, 2014, from which the summarized information was derived.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 
In May 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued ASU 2015-07, Disclosures for Investments in Certain Entities That Calculate Net Asset Value per Share (or its 
Equivalent). The guidance specifically classified how investments valued using the net asset value (NAV) practical expedient within the fair value hierarchy should be classified. The 
ASU was issued in order to address diversity in practice. The amended standard’s key provision exempts investments measured using the NAV practical expedient from categoriza-
tion within the fair value hierarchy and related disclosures. The new guidance is effective for The Huntington for the year ending June 30, 2017, with early adoption permitted.

In October 2012, the FASB issued ASU 2012-05, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230), Not-for-Profit Entities: Classification of the Sale Proceeds of Donated Financial Assets in the 
Statement of Cash Flows. The amendments in the update require not-for-profit entities to classify cash receipts from the sale of donated financial assets consistently with cash 
donations received in the statement of cash flows if those cash receipts were from the sale and were converted nearly immediately into cash. The adoption of ASU 2012-05 is 
effective prospectively for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2013; however, retrospective application to all prior periods presented upon the date of adoption is permitted. The 
adoption of ASU 2012-05 did not have a material effect on The Huntington’s financial statements.

3. POOLED INVESTMENTS

The investments of The Huntington include permanent endowments, funds established by the Board of Trustees to function as endowment, and other balances. Investment returns 
related to the assets of permanent endowments is classified depending on donor stipulation.

The Endowment Fund investments are managed on a total return basis to provide both income and capital appreciation. Under The Huntington’s endowment spending policy, a 
spending rate is assessed against endowments that support unrestricted and certain temporarily restricted activities, consistent with an annual budget approved by the Board of 
Trustees. The spending policy allows the expenditure of a prudent amount of the total investment return over a period of time that preserves the future purchasing power of 
endowment principal. A spending rate of 4.9% of the preceding twelve-quarter average market value of Endowment Fund investments was appropriated to support current 
operations for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014.

The following schedule summarizes the investment return in the pooled investments and investments from beneficial interest in trusts, insurance, and real estate:
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    						                                 June 30,		
							       Temporarily	 2015	 2014	
						      Unrestricted	 Restricted	 Total	 Total
Pooled investment returns
Dividends and interest 				    $ 3,174,036 	 $ 2,585,931 	 $ 5,759,967 	 $ 5,678,960
Net realized gains 				    9,478,468 	 7,326,372 	 16,804,840 	 33,317,439
Net unrealized (losses) gains 				    (10,180,458) 	 (8,236,929) 	 (18,417,387) 	 23,100,268
External fees 				    (2,356,796) 	 (1,813,276) 	 (4,170,072) 	 (2,706,381)
		  Investment return 				    $ 115,250 	 $ (137,902) 	 $ (22,652) 	 $ 59,390,286

The Endowment Fund includes cash and cash equivalents of $13,555,415 and $26,426,472 at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, and short-term investments of $5,684,598 and 
$4,421,379 at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Pooled investments are comprised of the following:

             						                               June 30,
								        2015	 2014
Treasuries 						      $ 17,861,140 	 $ 19,686,275
US equities 						      74,798,416 	 72,022,392
International equities 						      73,446,835 	 73,777,114
Emerging markets investments 						      56,386,120 	 69,029,888
Marketable alternative investments 						      92,620,824 	 83,791,689
Non-marketable alternative investments 						      51,840,073 	 44,858,075
Real asset funds 						      56,482,213 	 69,843,385
Accrued interest and dividends 						      32,861 	 59,888
								        $ 423,468,482	 $ 433,068,706

4. FAIR VALUE OF INVESTMENTS

The Huntington accounts for its investments at fair value. ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements, defines fair value, established a framework used to measure fair value, and expands 
disclosures about fair value measurements. The standard prioritized, within the measurement of fair value, the use of market-based information over entity-specific information and 
established a three-level hierarchy for fair value measurement based on the transparency of information, such as the pricing source used in the valuation of an asset or liability as of 
the measurement date.

Investments measured and reported at fair value are classified and disclosed in one of the following categories:

	 Level 1 – Quoted prices in active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date, without adjustment.

	� Level 2 – Pricing inputs, including broker quotes, are generally those other than exchange-quoted prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable as of 
the reporting date, and fair value is determined through the use of models or other valuation methodologies.

	� Level 3 – Pricing inputs are unobservable for the investment, and includes situations where there is little, if any, market activity for the investment. Investments that are included in 
this category generally include privately held investments and securities held in partnership format

The determination of where an asset or liability falls in the hierarchy requires significant judgment. The Huntington evaluates its hierarchy disclosures each reporting period and, 
based on various factors, it is possible that an asset or liability may be classified differently from period to period. However, The Huntington expects that changes in classifications 
between different levels will be rare.

The Huntington’s valuation methodologies used for alternative investments measured at fair value is based on net asset value (“NAV”) of shares held by The Huntington at fiscal 
year-end. There have been no changes in the methodologies used at June 30, 2015. The preceding method described may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative 
of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although The Huntington believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market 
participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the 
reporting date.

The following table summarizes the valuation of The Huntington’s investments by the ASC 820 fair value hierarchy levels as of June 30:

					     Quoted prices in active	 Significant Other	 Significant Other
					     Markets for Identical	 Observable	 Unobservable	 2015	 2014
					     Assets (Level 1)	 Inputs (Level 2)	 Inputs (Level 3) 	 Total 	 Total
Short term investments 			   $ 20,535,336 	 $ - 	 $ - 	 $ 20,535,336 	 $ 34,097,138

Treasuries 			   $ 17,861,140 	 $ - 	 $ - 	 $ 17,861,140 	 $ 19,686,275
US equities 			   48,203,288 	 26,595,128 	 - 	 74,798,416 	 72,022,393
International equities 			   - 	 63,497,635 	 9,949,200 	 73,446,835 	 73,777,113
Emerging markets investments 			   31,686,815 	 - 	 24,699,305 	 56,386,120 	 69,029,888
Marketable alternative investments			    - 	 - 	 92,620,824 	 92,620,824 	 83,791,689
Non-marketable alternative investment 			   - 	 - 	 51,840,073 	 51,840,073 	 44,858,075
Real asset funds 			   26,690,680 	 5,578,506 	 24,213,027 	 56,482,213 	 69,843,385
					     $ 124,441,923 	 $ 95,671,269 	 $ 203,322,429 	 $ 423,435,621 	 $ 433,008,818
Total beneficial interests in trusts, insurance, and real estate 		  $ 11,280,623 	 $ - 	 $ 8,133,468 	 $ 19,414,091 	 $ 19,120,008

Total investments as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 amounted to $423,468,482 and $433,068,706, respectively, which include the investments in the table above and accrued interest 
and dividends amounting to $32,861 and $59,888, respectively.
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The following table includes a roll-forward of the amounts for the year ended June 30, 2015 for the investments classified within Level 3. The classification of an investment within 
Level 3 is based upon the significance of the unobservable inputs to the overall fair value measurement.

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3):

							       Non-		  Beneficial
						      Marketable	 Marketable		  Interest in  
				    International 	 Emerging 	 Alternative 	 Alternative 	 Real 	 Trusts, Insurance, 
				    Equities 	 Markets 	 Investments 	 Investments 	 Asset 	 and Real Estate
Beginning Balance June 30, 2014 		  $ 9,780,080 	 $ 53,668,730 	 $ 83,791,689 	 $ 44,858,075 	 $ 23,997,746 	 $ 7,616,431
	 Total gains
		  Gross realized gains 		  - 	 1,359,208 	 5,237 	 5,433,209 	 2,174,811	  -
		  Gross realized losses		   - 	 (127,912) 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 -
		  Gross change in unrealized appreciation 		  1,292,560 	 4,198,235 	 8,548,930 	 5,165,522 	 2,290,056 	 110,544
		  Gross change in unrealized depreciation 		  (1,123,440) 	 (5,523,699) 	 (6,950,752) 	 (5,048,578) 	 (3,278,658) 	 (477,089)
	 Purchases 		  - 	 1,736,369 	 7,821,625 	 12,603,671 	 6,568,043 	 883,582
	 Sales 		  - 	 (9,763,758) 	 (595,905) 	 (11,171,826) 	 (7,538,971) 	 -
	 Transfers out of Level 3 		  - 	 (20,847,868) 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 -
Ending Balance June 30, 2015 		  $ 9,949,200 	 $ 24,699,305 	 $ 92,620,824 	 $ 51,840,073 	 $ 24,213,027 	 $ 8,133,468
Amount of net unrealized gains relating to assets still held at June 30, 2015 		  $ 1,949,200 	 $ 4,294,055 	 $ 24,313,140 	 $ 3,745,742 	 $ 1,714,959 	 $ -

The Huntington uses the NAV to determine the fair value of all the underlying investments which (a) do not have a readily determinable fair value and (b) to prepare their financial 
statements consistent with the measurement principles of an investment company or which have the attributes of an investment company. Per Accounting Standards Update 
(“ASU”) 2009-12, the following table lists investment in other investment companies (in partnership format) by major category:

Category Strategy
NAV in 
Funds

# of 
funds

Remaining 
Life

$ Amount  
of Unfunded 

Commit-
ments

Timing to Draw Down 
Commitments

Redemption Terms
Redemption 
Restrictions

Marketable 
alternative 

investments

Investments with managers 
who use alternative 

strategies, including hedging, 
to provide returns with 

reduced volatility compared to 
the equity and bond markets

$ 92,620,824 25 NA $1,260,000 NA

10 funds 45-90 day
notice, annual only;
11 funds 30-90 day

notice, calendar
quarter-end; 3 are
other time periods

3 funds have side
pockets; 1 fund 
has lock-up 6 

months; 1 fund 
has ongoing soft 
lock-up, 11 have

redemption gates
10%-33%

Non-marketable 
alternative 

investments

Illiquid investments in 
privately held companies 

which are expected to 
produce returns in excess  

of traditional equities

$ 51,840,073 38 1-13 years $44,186,141

7 funds, commitment
period has expired;

remaining funds
range from 1-13 years

NA
3-13 year lockup,
with 2-4 years

extension

Real asset funds
Investments that will provide 
protection from the longterm 

effects of inflation
$ 24,213,027 17 1-10 years $17,797,463

1 fund, commitment
period has expired;

remaining funds
range from 1-10 years

NA

17 funds have 5-15 
year lock-up with 

1-2 year 
extensions

5. GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE

Unconditional promises to give are included in the financial statements as grants and contributions receivable, and revenue is recorded in the appropriate net asset category. Certain 
promises to give are recorded after discounting, at a rate between 1% and 9% at June 30, 2015, at the present value of the future cash flows. As of June 30, unconditional promises to 
give are expected to be realized in the following periods:
 							                  	               June 30,
								        2015	 2014
Amounts due in
	 Less than one year 						      $ 7,969,939	 $ 7,976,719
	 One to five years 						      7,003,245 	 7,841,162
	 More than five years 						      9,638,220 	 9,826,380
	 Less: discount 						      (4,415,728) 	 ( 4,875,070)
								        $ 20,195,676 	 $ 20,769,191

6. ENDOWMENTS

The Huntington’s endowment consists of 207 individual donor-restricted endowment funds. The net assets associated with endowment funds are classified and reported based on 
the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

The Board of Trustees of The Huntington has interpreted the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (“UPMIFA”) as requiring the preservation of the original gift 
as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this interpretation, The Huntington classifies as 
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permanently restricted net assets (a) the original value of the gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, 
and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund.

The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified in permanently restricted net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those
amounts are appropriated for expenditure by The Huntington in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA. In accordance with UPMIFA, the 
following factors are to be considered in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate endowment funds:

	 • The duration and preservation of the fund.
	 • The purposes of the organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund.
	 • General economic conditions.
	 • The possible effect of inflation and deflation.
	 • The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments.
	 • Other resources of the organization.
	 • The investment policies of the organization.

The following table presents The Huntington’s endowment composition, and net asset classification as of June 30, 2015:

						      Temporarily 	 Permanently 	 2015 	 2014
					     Unrestricted 	 Restricted 	 Restricted 	 Total 	 Total
Donor-restricted endowment funds 			   $ - 	 $ 146,215,014 	 $ 130,899,452 	 $ 277,114,466 	 $ 281,971,555
Board-designated endowment funds 			   173,257,641 	 - 	 - 	 173,257,641 	 188,104,382
Total endowment funds 			   173,257,641 	 146,215,014 	 130,899,452 	 450,372,107 	 470,075,937
Total beneficial interests in trusts, insurance, and real estate 			   1,586,082 	 6,952,980 	 2,462,468 	 11,001,530 	 10,475,558

Total Endowment Net Assets 			   $ 174,843,723 	 $ 153,167,994 	 $ 133,361,920 	 $ 461,373,637 	 $ 480,551,495 

From time to time, the fair value of the assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds may fall below the value of the initial and subsequent donor gift 
amounts. Deficits of this nature were reported as an adjustment to unrestricted net assets of $(252,922) and $(76,683) as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

7. FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assets consist of the following:
 							                  	               June 30,
								        2015	 2014

Land 							      $ 2,082,008	 $ 2,082,008
Land improvements 						      45,944,032 	 44,811,904
Buildings and improvements 						      178,001,004 	 114,022,090
Equipment and vehicles 						      20,111,068 	 16,048,542
Construction in progress 						      12,181,421 	 51,853,544
Total land, buildings and equipment 						      258,319,533 	 228,818,088

Less accumulated depreciation 						      (91,711,984) 	 (81,826,414)
								        $ 166,607,549 	 $ 146,991,674
Depreciation expense was $9,942,319 and $7,518,747 for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

8. LIBRARY, ART AND GARDEN COLLECTIONS

The collections, which were acquired through purchases and contributions since The Huntington’s inception, are not recognized as assets on the statement of financial position. 
The collections are held for public education or research in furtherance of public service rather than financial gain.

Collections items are expensed when purchased. Contributed collections items are not reflected on the financial statements. The estimated fair value of contributed collections 
items amounted to $2,199,000 and $3,981,000 for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The Huntington continually reviews its collections and may deaccession or acquire additional items. Proceeds from deaccessions are classified as unrestricted, except when donor 
restrictions apply. The collections are subject to a policy that requires proceeds from deaccessioning to be used to acquire other items for collections.

During fiscal year 2015 and 2014, certain items of art were deaccessioned at auction. They had a value of approximately $0 and $348,000, respectively. The proceeds are restricted 
for future acquisitions of art.

9. CONTRIBUTED SERVICES

The Huntington received contributed services of $14,000, and $178,000 for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, in the form of shipping, production services, and 
lighting.

10. RETIREMENT PLANS

The Huntington maintains a qualified defined contribution retirement plan. All full-time employees with two or more years of service are eligible to participate. The Huntington’s
contributions to the plan were $1,446,682 and $1,335,626 for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. There are no prior service obligations, and all contributions are 
fully and immediately vested in the participants’ accounts. The Huntington maintains a 457(b) deferred compensation plan for management and highly compensated employees. 
The plan balance was $378,213 and $356,100 as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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11. NET ASSETS

Net assets consist of the following:
								        2015	 2014
								        Total 	 Total
Unrestricted net assets:
	 Available for operations 						      $ - 	 $ 1,117,267
	 Invested in fixed assets 						      168,034,984 	 148,306,882
	 Beneficial interests in trusts and insurance 						      1,586,082 	 1,514,883
	 Funds held for investment 						      173,257,641 	 188,104,382
		  Total unrestricted net assets 						      $342,878,707 	 $339,043,414

Temporarily restricted net assets:
	 For program activities 						      $ 9,233,458 	 $ 8,137,157
	 For acquisitions 						      1,436,791 	 1,069,825
	 For fixed assets 						      10,402,360 	 23,048,968
	 Beneficial interests in trusts and insurance 						      6,952,980 	 6,486,911
	 Funds held for investment 						      146,215,014 	 157,442,848
		  Total temporarily restricted net assets 						      $174,240,603 	 $196,185,709

Permanently restricted net assets:
	 Beneficial interests in trust and insurance 						      $ 2,462,468 	 $ 2,473,764
	 Endowment 						      130,899,452 	 124,528,707
		  Total permanently restricted net assets 						      $133,361,920 	 $127,002,471

Net assets were released from donor restriction by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted purpose or by occurrence of other events specified by donors, as follows:

 							                  	               June 30,
								        2015	 2014
Expenditures for program activities, including acquisition of collection items						      $ 7,684,122	 $ 18,143,088
Expenditures for fixed assets 						      29,359,134 	 37,950,650
								        $ 37,043,256	 $ 56,093,738

12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of operations, The Huntington is named as a defendant in lawsuits and is subject to periodic examinations by regulatory agencies. After consultation with legal 
counsel, management is of the opinion that liabilities, if any, arising from such litigation and examinations would not have a material effect on The Huntington’s financial position 
and cash flows.

The Huntington has executed construction contracts with a remaining commitment of $6,893,000 and $19,680,000 as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Huntington evaluated its June 30, 2015 financial statements for subsequent events through November 20, 2015, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

Subsequent to year end the Huntington obtained a line of credit with a bank that allowed for borrowing of up to $7,000,000 at the borrower’s option of “Base Rate or LIBOR plus 
0.45%”. The line of credit expires on August 31, 2017. There were no borrowings under the line of credit as of November 20, 2015. The covenants of the line of credit require the 
Huntington to maintain unencumbered liquid assets with the bank and/or affiliate of the bank with an aggregate fair market value not at any times less than two times the total 
commitment with the bank.

The Huntington is not aware of any additional events which would require recording or disclosure in the financial statements.




